Public Document Pack

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

To: Councillor Greig, Convener; and Councillors Al-Kowarri, Bell, Collie, Cox, Dunbarr,
Farquharson, Hendry, McGillivray, McKail, Mair, Penny, Shepherd,
K Stewart and Webster.
Town House, ABERDEEN
13" May 2011

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

Members of the GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD are requested to meet on

FRIDAY, 20™ MAY 2011 at 10.00 am in COMMITTEE ROOM 2, TOWN HOUSE,
ABERDEEN

JANE G. MACEACHRAN
CLERK TO THE BOARD

BUSINESS

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Minute of Board Meeting - 4th March 2011 (Pages 1 - 10)

3 Minute of Special Board Meeting - 18th March 2011 (Pages 11 - 18)

4 Matters Arising

5 Minute of Grampian Joint Police Board Complaints Sub Committee Meeting of 13th
December 2010 - For Information (Pages 19 - 22)

6 Minute of Grampian Joint Police Board Stewardship Sub Committee Meeting of
13th December 2010 - For Information (Pages 23 - 28)

7 Grampian Joint Police Board - Updated Business Statement (Pages 29 - 32)




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Revenue Budget Monitoring Report - 30th April 2011 - Report from the Chief
Constable and the Treasurer (Pages 33 - 40)

Capital Monitoring - 30th April 2011 - Report from the Chief Constable and the
Treasurer (Pages 41 - 48)

Grampian Police and Grampian Joint Police Board - BV2 Audit & Inspection Report
- Joint Improvement Plan - Report from the Chief Constable and the Depute Clerk
(Pages 49 - 76)

Reorganisation of Estate in Aberdeen to support Local Policing Teams (LPTs) -
Report from the Chief Constable (Pages 77 - 80)

Police Property Disposals - Report from the Chief Constable (Pages 81 - 82)

Force Contracts and Sponsorship - Report from the Chief Constable (Pages 83 -
90)

Grampian Gypsy / Travellers Summit - Summit Report - Report from the Depute
Clerk (Pages 91 - 124)

Independent Custody Visiting Scheme - Update Report - Report from the Depute
Clerk (Pages 125 - 126)

NOT FOR PUBLICATION

Operational Update - Verbal Report from the Chief Constable

Chief Officer Performance Development Reviews - Report from the Depute Clerk

a) Overview Report — Report from the Depute Clerk (Pages 127 — 129)

b) Chief Constable’s PDR — Report from the Depute Clerk (Pages 130 —
138)

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/qgipb

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Fiona Smith
01224 522516 or e-mail fismith@aberdeencity.gov.uk



Agenda ltem 2

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

Committee Room 5, Woodhill House, Aberdeen, 4™ March 2011 - Minute of Meeting of
GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD.

Present:- Councillor Greig, Convener
Councillor Hendry, Vice Convener
Councillor Shepherd, Vice Convener
Councillor Al-Kowarri
Councillor Bell
Councillor Dunbar
Councillor Farquharson
Councillor Fleming (as substitute for Councillor Howie)
Councillor Mair
Councillor McKail
Councillor Penny
Councillor K Stewart
Councillor Webster
Councillor Young (as substitute for Councillor Collie)

In Attendance:- Mr Colin McKerracher, Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr John McNab, Deputy Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr Colin Menzies, Assistant Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr Billy Gordon, Assistant Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Ms Karen Williams, Director of Corporate Services, Grampian Police
Inspector Michael Thompson, Staff Officer, Grampian Police
Mr Gary Black, Senior Accountant, Grampian Police
Mr lan Robbie, External Auditor, Henderson & Loggie
Ms Karlyn Watt, External Auditor, Henderson & Loggie
Mr Barry Jenkins, Treasurer
Ms Karen Donnelly, Depute Clerk
Ms Fiona Smith, Policy & Advice Officer, Aberdeen City Council
Ms Karen Riddoch, Committee Services Officer, Aberdeen City Council

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS

The Convener welcomed all Members to the meeting. He noted that Councillor
McGillivray was not present at the meeting as his wife had recently passed away
following a long illness. The Board resolved to pass on condolences to Clir McGillivray
and his family following this bereavement.

The Depute Clerk advised the Board that there was to be a restructuring of duties
within the Clerks Office. Karen Riddoch is to take on responsibility for the Committee
Services part of the Clerking function, namely agenda production and minute taking, as
she is a professional Committee Services Officer. Karen Riddoch was in attendance to

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 1 of 10

Page 1



observe the Board Meeting on this occasion. It is hoped that this change in remit will
free up additional staff time to undertake more policy and development work in order to
provide an enhanced service to the Board.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillor Collie, Councillor Howie,
Councillor McGillivray, Mr Gary Craig, Deputy Director of Corporate Services,
Grampian Police and Mrs Jane MacEachran, Clerk.

MINUTE OF GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD MEETING OF 12™ NOVEMBER 2010

2. The Board had before it and approved as a correct record, the Minute of the Board
Meeting of 12" November 2010.

The Board Resolved:
To approve the Minute.

MINUTE OF GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD BUDGET MEETING OF 21°T JANUARY
2011

3. The Board had before it and approved as a correct record, the Minute of the Board
Budget Meeting of 21% January 2011.

The Board Resolved:
To approve the Minute.

MATTERS ARISING

4. ltem 7 (12" November 2010): Councillor McKail requested an update with respect
to Forensics provision in Grampian. Assistant Chief
Constable Billy Gordon advised that the SPSA are
currently discussing the future shape of local
provision with Grampian Police and he would revert
to the Board with an update in due course.

MINUTE OF GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD COMPLAINTS SUB COMMITTEE
MEETING OF 7™ JUNE 2010

5. The Board had before it and noted for information the Minute of the Complaints Sub
Committee Meeting of 7" June 2010.

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 2 of 10

Page 2



The Board Resolved:

To note the Minute.

MINUTE OF GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD STEWARDSHIP SUB COMMITTEE
MEETING OF 7™ JUNE 2010

6. The Board had before it and noted for information the Minute of the Stewardship Sub
Committee Meeting of 7" June 2010.

The Board Resolved:

To note the Minute.

UPDATED BUSINESS STATEMENT

7. The Board had before it the updated Board Business Statement dated 4™ March 2011.
The Depute Clerk provided a verbal update with respect to the statement as follows:

09/18:

10/07:

10/08:

10/09:

10/10:

10/11:

11/01:

The Depute Clerk advised that the Stewardship Sub Committee and
Internal Auditor are to consider the status of this draft Audit Report as it
has been superseded by the Best Value Audit & Inspection Report.

A report on this item will be presented to the next meeting of the Board.

An update report with respect to this summit is on the agenda for this
Board Meeting.

The Chief Constable advised that discussions are on-going at national
level regarding the policing jurisdiction in the North Sea. A report to the
Board on this issue will be presented in due course.

The Board Development Working Group met just prior to the Board
Meeting. An update report regarding Board development actions is on
the agenda for this Board Meeting.

The Board Development Working Group met just prior to the Board
Meeting. An update report regarding Board development actions is on
the agenda for this Board Meeting.

A letter to the Scottish Policing Board and a letter to the Grampian
Criminal Justice Board were sent on 24" February 2011. Responses to
both letters are awaited and will be reported to the Board once received.

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 3 of 10

Page 3



11/02: A date for the Budget Sub Group to meet early in the new financial year
is presently being identified..

The Board Resolved:
To note the updated Business Statement

REVENUE EXPENDITURE MONITORING REPORT - 31T JANUARY 2011

8.

The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable and the Treasurer that
presented the Revenue Budget Monitoring Report for the period to 31% January 2011.

The Treasurer introduced the Report which detailed that the Force is projecting an
under spend of approximately £1.707m against an approved net revenue budget of
£115.663m. The vast majority of this under spend has been generated through the on-
going recruitment freeze and a reduction in both Police Officer and Police Staff
numbers. The report advised of the forecast figure for Police Officer numbers which
sits at 1,563 at 31 March 2011. Finally, the report advised that the forecasts indicate
an increase in reserves at the end of the financial year to £3,282m which is being
planned in order to assist with the 2011/12 budget.

Councillor McKail sought clarification on officer numbers and if the 1,563 reported was
officers or the full time equivalent figure. The Chief Constable advised that this was the
actual officer numbers, the full time equivalent figure is slightly lower. The Chief
Constable confirmed that the focus for officer deployment was in the Local Policing
Teams and that the Force is attempting to ensure that officer strength in these remain
strong by, if necessary, reducing officer numbers in other areas.

Councillor McKail further sought information regarding what procurement initiatives
have been used by the Force. The Director of Corporate Services advised that these
initiatives included entering into procurement contracts jointly with government, other
Forces and Local Authorities where possible.

Councillor Young requested details of the number of officers in Force as at 1% March
2011 and details of the number of Police Staff in Force at this time. The Chief
Constable advised that the number of Officers peaked at 1,607 and had reduced as
recruitment is currently suspended. With respect to Police Staff numbers, the Chief
Constable advised that this had been at a maximum level of 830 however was
expected to fall to 720 through a voluntary severance scheme and a recruitment
freeze. The Chief Constable further advised that, although staff numbers are reducing,
the Force is making all possible efforts to minimise the negative impact of these on
service levels through robust risk assessment processes.

Councillor K Stewart congratulated the Force on the opening of the Police Office at
Manor Park School, reporting that local people are happy to see a police presence in
the heart of the community.

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 4 of 10

Page 4



Councillor K Stewart also noted that the number of Officers is vastly increased from the
level in place when he first joined the Police Board when it was 1,050. This increase is
due to vast efforts being made.

The Convener noted that the reported under spend levels are welcomed, as they will
place the Force in a better position moving forward into the new financial year.
However, he also noted concerns that the number of Officers and Police Staff are
falling and noted the potential difficulties that this may cause in future years.

The Board Resolved:
To note the Report

CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING - 315" JANUARY 2011

9.

The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable and the Treasurer to update
the Board on the progress of the 2010/11 Capital Plan, provide an updated projected
outturn for the year and highlight any changes since the last Board report.

The Treasurer introduced the report and advised that the total budget allocated within
the Forces Capital Plan for 2010/11 is £3.026m. The removal of the budget for the new
Force Headquarters in the current financial year has had a significant impact upon the
Capital Plan. As such, the Board agreed to carry forward £1.134m of Capital Grant
funding from 2010/11 into 2011/12. The report recommended that the Board increase
the Carry Forward amount to £1.234m to take account of grant funding requirements.
Assistance is being sought from the three constituent authorities to operate the
appropriate mechanism to support this carry forward.

Councillor K Stewart noted that the carry forward of under spend in Capital was
dependent on the agreement of the constituent authorities and expressed his concern
that, in future years, those authorities may not be willing to agree to this. Although
existing arrangements will ensure that this is not the case, it is important that the Board
ensure that it remains aware of any changes in the future which may alter this. The
Treasurer confirmed that he would ensure to report any likely changes to current
arrangements to the Board.

The Board Resolved:

To note the Report
To approve the carry forward of £1.234m of Capital Grant from 2010/11 into 2011/12,
by the Constituent Authorities.

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 50f 10

Page 5



BEST VALUE AUDIT AND INSPECTION REPORT

10.

The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable and Depute Clerk which
invited the Board to consider the terms of the Report prepared by Audit Scotland and
Her Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary for Scotland (HMICS) following a joint audit
and inspection of the Board and Grampian police, which measured compliance with
the requirements of Best Value.

The Depute Clerk to the Board introduced the reports advising that the Board are
required to consider the Audit Scotland report within three months of its publication.
The Depute Clerk noted that the report evidenced an overall positive view of the Board,
stating that the Board demonstrates many of the elements of Best Value. The areas of
improvement identified for the Board are those which the Board were aware of,
including the outstanding implementation of a Custody Visiting Scheme. In respect of
the Force, the report is also positive and the Force is praised in many areas.

The Board were required to submit a public notice indicating when the Board would
consider the findings of the report. This notice was published in the Press & Journal on
Thursday 24™ February 2011. The Clerks Office and the Force have drafted a
template for the Improvement Plan arising from the reports recommendations. Due to
the limited time between the reports publication at this Board Meeting the Depute Clerk
advised that the Improvement Plan is not yet fully populated, therefore the Board are
invited to agree the template and instruct the Chief Constable and the Clerk to submit
the final draft Improvement Plan for consideration by the Board at the next Board
Meeting.

Finally, the report recommended that monitoring of progress towards achieving the
implementation of the Improvement Plan should be remitted to the Stewardship Sub
Committee in line with the remit of that body.

The Chief Constable noted that Grampian Police and Grampian Joint Police Board
should take great encouragement from the outcome of the Best Value Audit as it
evidences that the Board operates effectively and that the Force operate well in
ensuring positive service delivery. The Chief Constable remarked upon his
disappointment of the local media coverage when the report was published as it
focused on only one or two more negative aspects rather than on the vast majority of
the report which is positive. Finally the Chief Constable expressed the delight of the
Force at the outcome of the audit process and confirmed that the Force would pick up
on the relevant learning points arising from it.

The Convener noted that the external scrutiny of the Best Value process of both the
Board and the Force is welcomes and that the report provides very clear evidence of
the effectiveness of the Force and Board. The Convener noted the areas identified as
requiring improvement noting that these are welcomed and pick up on many areas
already identified by the Board. Overall the report is extremely positive and
demonstrates that the people of Grampian are well served by Grampian police.

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 6 of 10

Page 6



Councillor K Stewart noted his satisfaction with the thoroughness of the Audit process
and noted that the overall positive report provides welcome input on areas for
improvement. Councillor Stewart stated his belief that the Grampian Police approach
to recording complaints is correct and ensures that all complaints are recorded with
learning opportunities from these therefore maximised.

Councillor Young agreed with Councillor K Stewart and wished to record his
congratulations to the Force and the Board.

Councillor Webster noted that she had been apprehensive of the audit process
however has welcomed the opportunity it provided for detailed examination of the
Board and its ways of working. The positive outcome will enable the Board to develop
further and is also welcomed. Councillor Webster concurred with the Chief Constables
disappointment regarding the local media coverage and wished to congratulate all
involved in the Audit process.

Councillor Farquharson also noted the overall positive report as an excellent outcome
and stated that the outcomes noted provided much for the Force and the Board to be
proud of.

The Board Resolved:

To note that the Board had fully considered the Best Value Audit & Inspection Report
of Grampian Joint Police Board and Grampian Police

To approve the template for the Joint Improvement Plan and to instruct the Chief
Constable and Depute Clerk to submit the final draft Improvement Plan to the next
Board Meeting for consideration.

To remit the role of monitoring progress towards achieving the Joint Improvement Plan
to the Stewardship Sub Committee and to instruct Officers to submit regular update
reports to that Sub Committee with a final report to be submitted to the Board once all
of the improvement actions are implemented.

FORCE QUARTER THREE PERFORMANCE REPORT 2010/11

1.

The Board had before it a report from the Chief Constable which summarised the
Forces performance during Quarter 3 2010/11.

The Deputy Chief Constable introduced the report and advised that the report again
shows a positive report despite the challenges in respect to resources which the Force
are facing. The Deputy Chief Constable advised the Board that, due to the calendar of
Board Meetings, the report summarised both the quarter two and quarter three
performance figures. The Deputy Chief Constable provided an overview of the report
and highlighted a number of areas for information.

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 7 of 10

Page 7



Councillor Webster noted that forensics capabilities and CCTV analysis are crucial to
assisting officers in detecting criminals and asked if recent changes in the provision of
these services had impacted upon the Force. The Deputy Chief Constable advised
that no adverse impact had been noted as yet; however output in these areas will
continue to be monitored.

Councillor McKail noted the targets stated within the report regarding reductions in
road casualty figures and requested further information on how these targets will be
achieved. The Chief Constable advised that efforts to reduce road causalities include
activities at both national and local level including advertising campaigns, road
engineering checks amongst a range of others.

The Board Resolved:
To note the report.

BOARD DEVELOPMENT ACTION PLAN

12.

The Board had before it a report from the Depute Clerk which provided an update to
Members in relation to on-going development initiatives which aim to develop both
Members and the efficient workings of the Board. The report further set out a
proposed Action Plan for this development which the Board were invited to consider
and detailed the finalised role descriptions for Board Members, Board Vice Conveners
and Board Convener which the Board were invited to approve.

The Depute Clerk introduced the report and advised that the Board Development
Working group had met just prior to the start of the Board Meeting to consider the
action plan and the role descriptions set out in the Appendices to the report. Councillor
McKail has been elected as Chairperson of the Working Group and the Working Group
will schedule its meetings to take place on the day of Board Meetings. The Working
Group agreed the addition of two further points in the role description for Board
Convener which were noted by the Board.

The Depute Clerk advised that the purpose of the Board Development Action Plan is to
bring together all relevant actions in order to assist with Board oversight and
governance arrangements. The Stewardship Sub Committee will regularly monitor the
Action Plan, in conjunction with the Best Value Improvement Plan.

The Board Resolved:

To agree the Board Development Action Plan

To instruct the Depute Clerk to progress the actions within the Board Development
Action Plan in conjunction with the Complaints Sub Committee, Stewardship Sub
Committee and Board Development Working Group, as appropriate

To instruct the Depute Clerk to provide regular update reports to the Board for
information

[\AGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 8 of 10

Page 8



Approve the role descriptions for Board Members, Board Vice Conveners and Board
Convener set out in Appendix Two to the report and instruct the Depute Clerk to issue
a formal copy to all Members.

GRAMPIAN GYPSY / TRAVELLERS SUMMIT — UPDATE REPORT

13.

The Board had before it a report from the Depute Clerk which provided an update of
arrangements for the Grampian Gypsy / Travellers Summit.

Ms F Smith introduced the report and advised that it provided details of the planned
programme, proposed outcomes and invite list of the Summit following planning for it
undertaken by a Summit Steering Group established by Grampian Racial Equality
Council (GREC). The report suggested that five Members of the Board be nominated
to attend the summit on behalf of the Board.

Following discussion, the Board wished to add an additional desired outcome to those
already identified this being that the Summit should increase understanding of the roles
and responsibilities of respective agencies and organisations with respect to Gypsy
Travellers. In addition, the Board identified Councillors Al-Kowarri, Collie, McKail,
Shepherd and K Stewart as its representatives to the Summit.

The Board Resolved:

To agree that the Grampian Gypsy / Traveller Summit, Building Consensus: A
Constructive Way Forward, will take place on Tuesday 5" April 2011 and will be held at
Inverurie Town Hall

To agree that the purpose of the Summit will be to improve relations and ease tensions
within the North East community and to seek consensus and support for a fresh
approach to identified issues

To agree the desired outcomes of the Summit with the addition of one further outcome,
that the Summit should increase understanding of the roles and responsibilities of
respective agencies and organisations with respect to Gypsy Travellers.

To nominate Clirs Al-Kowarri, Collie, McKail, Shepherd and K Stewart to attend the
Summit on behalf of the Board.

POLICE APPEALS TRIBUNAL

14.

The Board had before it a report from the Depute Clerk which advised the Board of an
appeal to a Police Appeal Tribunal received by the Registrar and which outlined the
process for the appointment of the Tribunal.

The Depute Clerk introduced the report and advised that, following receipt of an appeal
to the Police Appeals Tribunal, the report outlined the procedural measures necessary
in order to facilitate this process. The report detailed the Members identified as willing
to sit on the Tribunal and sought the Board’s approval of these appointments. In

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 90of 10

Page 9



addition, the Board require to formally appoint a Registrar and Depute Registrar for the
Tribunal in order that necessary arrangements can be made.

The Board Resolved:
- To appoint the Clerk as Registrar to this Police Appeals Tribunal
- To appoint the Depute Clerk as Depute Registrar to this Police Appeals Tribunal
- To appoint Clir Martin Greig, Mr Andrew Cameron, Mr Calum Laurie and Mr Andrew
Young QC to this Police Appeals Tribunal.

EXEMPT INFORMATION

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board resolved that in terms
of section 50 A (4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 that the public be
excluded from the meeting during the consideration on the items on the grounds that it
was likely, in view of the nature of proceedings, that if members of the public were
present during the consideration of these items that there would be a disclosure to
them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of part 1 of schedule 7 A of the
said Act.

VERBAL UPDATE FROM THE CHIEF CONSTABLE

15. The Chief Constable and Assistant Chief Constables Billy Gordon and Colin Menzies
provided a verbal update to Board Members with respect to a range of current
operational policing matters.

The Board Resolved:
To note the update

COUNCILLOR M GREIG
CONVENOR

I\NAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 04_03_11.doc Page 10 of 10

Page 10



Agenda ltem 3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

Committee Room 2, Town House, Aberdeen, 18" March 2011 - Minute of Meeting of
GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD.

Present:- Councillor Greig, Convener
Councillor Hendry, Vice Convener
Councillor Bell
Councillor Cowling (as substitute for Councillor Al-Kowarri)
Councillor Dunbar
Councillor Farquharson
Councillor Howie
Councillor Mair
Councillor McKail
Councillor Penny
Councillor K Stewart
Councillor Webster
Councillor Young (as substitute for Councillor Collie)

In Attendance:- Mr Colin McKerracher, Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr John McNab, Deputy Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Mr Billy Gordon, Assistant Chief Constable, Grampian Police
Ms Karen Donnelly, Depute Clerk
Ms Fiona Smith, Policy & Advice Officer, Aberdeen City Council
Ms Karen Riddoch, Committee Services Officer, Aberdeen City Council

Mr Christie Smith, Head of Police Division, Scottish Government and Mr
Richard Rollison, Police Reform Team, Scottish Government — Present
for Item 2 only.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillor Al-Kowarri, Councillor
Collie, Councillor McGillivray, Councillor Shepherd, Assistant Chief Constable Colin
Menzies, Grampian Police, Ms Karen Williams, Director of Corporate Services,
Grampian Police, Mr Gary Craig, Depute Director of Corporate Services, Grampian
Police, Mr lan Robbie, External Auditor, Mr Barry Jenkins, Treasurer to the Board and
Ms J MacEachran, Clerk to the Board.

SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION ON THE FUTURE OF POLICING IN
SCOTLAND - PRESENTATION FROM OFFICIALS FROM THE SCOTTISH
GOVERNMENT POLICING REFORM TEAM

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 18_03_11.doc Page 1of 7

Page 11



2. The Convener welcomed Mr Christie Smith and Mr Richard Rollison to the Special
Meeting of Grampian Joint Police Board and invited them to address the meeting.
Mr Richard Rollison provided the presentation which provided an overview of the
Sustainable Policing Project which is being progressed on behalf of the Scottish
Government and the Scottish Policing Board. The purpose of the Sustainable Policing
Project is to develop a range of rigorously appraised options for further cost savings
which will enable frontline policing outcome to be sustained in future years in the face
of reduced funding levels.

Mr Rollison advised that a report on the Sustainable Policing Project is to be
considered by the Scottish Policing Board at its meeting on 21%' March 2011 and the
content of this report would be published shortly thereafter. This report would provide
further information on the operational and budgetary impacts of each of the options for
the future structure of policing in Scotland.

The Scottish Government consultation process on the Future of Policing in Scotland is
being run in parallel to the work of the Sustainable Policing Project. The purpose of the
consultation is to take stock of the existing structure of policing in Scotland, which has
been in pace for over 35 years, and to respond to new threats and a changing world.
The consultation also seeks to ensure that there is an increase of focus towards
outcomes for communities and partnership working across policing in Scotland.

Mr Rollison further highlighted the financial challenges facing the public sector in
general and the Police Service in particular. He stated that these challenges make the
status quo unsustainable and therefore the question of how best to address these is
necessary.

The purpose of any reform of the structure of policing in Scotland will be on improving
services and ensuring that outcomes are delivered. Policing should become even
more responsive to local priorities and ensure that links with the community planning
process and with Single Outcome Agreements is enhanced. In addition, the Scottish
Government want to ensure equality of access to the range of specialist services
across the Police Service and wants to improve local and national accountability.

Finally, Mr Rollison provided an overview of the consultation process, indicating that
the formal consultation process will last for 12 weeks closing on 5" May 2011. The
consultation documents outlines three broad options for the future structure of policing
in Scotland. Mr Rollison advised that the Scottish Government believe that there is a
strong argument in favour of a single Scottish police force, however recognises
concerns relating particularly to accountability and centralisation exist, and therefore
the Scottish Government have not reached a final position on its favoured option. The
timescale of the consultation means that it will be for the administration which will be in
place following the 2011 Scottish Parliament Elections to determine how to progress
this matter.

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 18_03_11.doc Page 20of 7

Page 12



Thereafter followed a question and answer session where Board Members were
invited to seek clarification from Mr Smith and Mr Rollison on any relevant issues.

Councillor McKail sought further information regarding access to specialist police
resources, particularly on the current position and where any existing weaknesses are.

Mr Smith advised that there is varying capacity within Scottish police forces which
include one of the largest in Britain and 4 of the smallest. A range of initiatives
including the SCDEA and collaboration agreements have been implemented to seek to
address these but it is believed that there is a better way to do this. Mr Smith provided
the example of the terrorist attack on Glasgow Airport where Strathclyde Police had
required to use resources from all other Scottish Police Forces to respond effectively.

Councillor Hendry noted that the existing Mutual Aid policy appears to work well in
cases such as the Glasgow Airport attack where Forces have to draw resources from
other Forces. In addition, Councillor Hendry sought clarification on whether the
decision on the future structure of policing in Scotland was already in place
notwithstanding what the outcome of the consultation process may be.

Mr Smith advised that, although the Cabinet Secretary for Justice is clear that the
arguments in favour of a Single Scottish Police Force are stronger, he has not yet
made a final decision in favour of any one option. Mr Smith also advised that, should
any change to structure be agreed, the required legislative process will mean that there
will be a minimum timeframe for implementation of at least two years. This will ensure
that there remains time to resolve any outstanding issues of concern.

Councillor Bell sought further information regarding local accountability and how this
would be in place in a Single Scottish Police Force. Mr Smith advised that these
details have not yet been set out and would be developed in line with the outcome of
the decision making process.

Councillor Bell further queried how uniformity would be achieved across all of Scotland
if a Single Scottish Police Force was established. Mr Smith advised that the Scottish
Government recognise that Scotland is a diverse nation with very different needs and
demands across the country, therefore uniformity of service provision is not being
sought, rather equality of access to national resources and enhanced local policing are
the aims.

Councillor Webster noted that the consultation document made very little reference to
the Sustainable Policing Project and provided very little detailed information on the pros
and cons of each options. In her view the consultation document including much in the
was on emotive statements rather than factual details and this would hamper and cloud
the outcome. Mr Smith advised that the current Scottish Government wished to
commence a broad national debate on the future of policing prior to the end of its
parliamentary terms. The detailed evidence would be made available following the
Scottish Policing Board the next week.

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 18_03_11.doc Page 3of7

Page 13



Councillor Young stated his belief that the Scottish Government were correct to be
examining the current structures of policing in Scotland, however he noted a perceived
bias within the document towards the central belt. Councillor Young sought further
information as to whether funding for policing in the North East would remain within the
North East. Mr Smith acknowledged that this concern had been raised by each Police
Board outwith the central belt area and noted that the situation with respect to funding
would depend on the final decision reached and is still subject to debate.

Councillor Farquharson also noted his concerns regarding the content of the
consultation document noting that it provided no benchmarking information and
appeared to be superficial.

Mr Smith advised that the focus of any change in structure would be on ensuring
continuous improvement and that the detailed information on options would follow after
it was considered by the Scottish Policing Board.

Councillor K Stewart noted that the issue of funding is key, in particular the historic
liabilities borne by the Board with respect to Police Pensions. Mr Smith advised that
the pensions liability was now directly met by the Scottish Government and this would
not change in any new structure.

Councillor Greig sought further information on how local priorities would continue to be
addressed in any new structure. Mr Smith advised that none of the models specify
how policing will be done locally as this will not be imposed. There will always be
opportunities to tailor service provision to local need.

Councillor McKail sought further information regarding the impact of any change in
structure on the number of Police Officers. Mr Smith noted that there has remained an
upward trend in police officer number over recent years and that each structural
options targets maximising the number of officers on the front line.

Councillor McKail further sought information on how a single police force would
function in respect of the relationship with the Scottish Government and how such a
force would structure its management team. Mr Smith advised that there has been no
work done regarding the design of the management and that this would follow in due
course.

Councillor Bell queried how a Chief Constable would be appointed in a Single Scottish
Police Force. Mr Smith advised that there would still be a Police Board appointed and
that it would manage this process. He further advised that a number of countries
operate a single police service and that the Scottish Government are confident that
such a structure could operate well in Scotland.

There being no more questions, the Board expressed its thanks to Mr Smith and Mr
Rollison for their input into the meeting and thereafter they left the meeting.

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 18_03_11.doc Page 4 0of 7

Page 14



The Board Resolved:
To note the presentation provided.

FUTURE OF POLICING IN SCOTLAND - CONSIDERATION OF BOARD RESPONSE TO
CONSULTATION

3.

The Board had before it a report from the Depute Clerk which sought to advise
Members of the publication of the Scottish Government Consultation on the Future of
Policing in Scotland, to highlight the consultation timetable and invited the Board to
consider the response it wished to make.

The Depute Clerk introduced the report and summarised the process processed for the
preparation of the Board response. Thereafter the Convener invited Board Members
to contribute to the Board response.

Councillor K Stewart highlighted that the Board response should be a rounded one
which details the views of all Board Members. He expresses his aspiration as a Board
Member has always been to maximise the number of Police Officers in Grampian in
addition to ensuring there is proper resources to support the solving of crime. Clir
Stewart noted that in protecting the front line, Police Officers must be placed before
boundaries if this was in the best interests of the public. However, Clir Stewart also
noted that, if the structure of policing is to change, as much as possible should be done
to protect the North East, including pressing for the Headquarters of such a Force to be
based within the North East. Clir Stewart believes the Scottish Government are correct
in seeking the views of Scotland towards the future of the police service, rather than
avoiding the issue at the end of its term. In addition, Clir Stewart noted that this
consultation process would dovetail into the work of the Christie Commission and he
welcomed this position.

Councillor K Stewart noted that his personal preference would be for a single Local
Authority to cover the Grampian Area and include the police service, fire service,
valuation board and Health service within this. This would ensure true democratic
accountability and maximise the potential efficiency savings available. However, being
realistic, Clir Stewart noted that this was unlikely to occur, and therefore his preference
would be for a Single Scottish Police Force being established with the retention of the
maximum number of officers locally and with the retention of local accountability.
Councillor Stewart closed by remarking that without a change to the structure,
Grampian would see a decrease in Police Officer numbers, which he does not want to
see.

Councillor Young noted his agreement with the majority of Councillor K Stewart
remarks. He stated his view that the future structure of the police service should not be
a political debate but should be a debate on what would provide the highest quality of
service to the public. The public are only interested in being safe regardless of the

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 18_03_11.doc Page 50f7

Page 15



structure which exists and this should be the priority. Councillor Young noted that his
preference would be for an Aberdeen Police Force to be in place, however in being
realistic, Clir Young recognised that a Single Scottish Force would be the best option.

Councillor Cowling noted that the consultation document provides no details regarding
potential cost savings and service impacts. He also noted that the structure of the
Police Service in Grampian has not been static for the past 35 years, rather it has
constantly adapted to changing local needs. Councillor Cowling noted that he is
minded to support the retention of existing structures or to move to a regionalised
structure as this would maximise improvements in service delivery locally.

Councillor McKail noted that he would not support a move to a Single Scottish Force.
This position was as such a structure would diminish local accountability and mean that
there would be no local control of resources. Clir McKail noted that the Headquarters
of any Single Scottish Force would, more than likely, be within the central belt and
therefore the North East would lose out.

Councillor McKail further noted that a Single Scottish Police Force would increase the
likelihood of political influence on operational policing which would not be in the best
interests of all communities. In recognising the financial challenges facing the public
sector ClIir McKail noted that regionalisation could be a workable solution as it would
reflect the individual identities of separate areas of Scotland.

Councillor McKail further noted that Grampian should be incredibly proud of the Best
Value Audit & Inspection outcomes and work to further improve services building from
that rather than focusing on changing structures.

Councillor Farquaharson noted that his preference would be for a regionalised
structure to be developed. He recognised the need for efficiencies but expressed the
view that there is a optimum size for any organisation and that bigger is not always
better. Councillor Farquaharson noted that the North East already loses out to the
central belt in respect of funding and resources and therefore a single force would not
best serve this area.

Councillor Dunbar noted her support to the comments of Councillor K Stewart and
Councillor Young. The status quo is not an option given the present economic climate
and front line service delivery should be prioritised over structures and the location of
the Force hierarchy. ClIr Dunbar believes that the liaison between local communities
and locally based Inspectors would still operate regardless of the structure and this
should be the priority.

Councillor Webster stated that there presently was no evidence presented that a single
Scottish Police Force would provide a better service to communities and that the
current consultation document was superficial. The North East has always lost out to
the central belt with respect to the fair distribution of resources, and should the North
East lose its own police service, this would be detrimental. Clir Webster noted that

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 18_03_11.doc Page 6 of 7

Page 16



centralisation of services is not always better and that smaller organisations can often
get better results, as evidenced in the Grampian Best Value Audit & Inspection report.

Councillor Webster further noted that the costs of restructuring the police service would
be immense and cannot be afforded at this time. The focus should be on improving
collaboration between current Forces and tackling any barriers which presently hinder
this.

Councillor Hendry noted that, should a single Scottish force be in place, the North East
would lose out to a central belt bias and this would adversely affect Grampian. Any
change, if necessary, should be towards a more regionalised structure based around
the 5 major cities in Scotland.

Councillor Bell noted that there was presently insufficient information available to
enable a informed debate on the future structure of policing to take place. The priority
of any structure should be on local accountability and control.

Councillor Greig noted his concerns also regarding the lack of evidence available to
support the options detailed in the consultation papers. The consequences of each
structure for local communities require to be fully assessed and understood prior to any
decision being made. Councillor Greig noted that the Best Value Audit & Inspection
report evidences that Grampian Police is a well performing force and that the Board is
effective in holding the Chief Constable to account. Clir Greig noted that the Board
have made many efforts over many years to lobby for a fair deal for the North East and
that recent centralisation, such as the formation of the SPSA, has not been benefical to
the North East. At present, Clir Greig noted that he could not make an informed
decision based on the lack of information available but that the priority in any decision
should be on enhancing service delivery to communities.

The Depute Clerk advised that the views of all Members had been recorded and would
be included within the draft Board response to the consulation.

The Board Resolved:

To instruct the Depute Clerk to prepare a draft response to the Scottish Government
Consultation on the Future of Policing in Scotland which incorporates the views of all
Board Members and to circulate this draft response to Board Members via e-mail for
comment prior to its submission.

COUNCILLOR M GREIG
CONVENOR

INAGENDAS\Police Board\Grampian Joint Police Board\2011\20_05_11\GJPB 18_03_11.doc Page 7 of 7

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Agenda ltem 5

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
COMPLAINTS SUB-COMMITTEE
ABERDEEN, Monday 13" December 2010 — Minute of meeting of GRAMPIAN
JOINT POLICE BOARD, COMPLAINTS SUB-COMMITTEE.

Present:- Councillor Greig, Convenor, Councillor Dunbar, Councillor Hendry and
Councillor Leadbitter (as substitute for Councillor Shepherd).

In__Attendance:- Deputy Chief Constable John McNab, Grampian Police,
Superintendent Colin Brown, Grampian Police and Ms F Smith, Representing the
Depute Clerk to the Board.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillors Bell, McKail
and Shepherd, Jane MacEachran, Clerk to the Board and Karen Donnelly,
Depute Clerk to the Board.

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF GJPB COMPLAINTS SUB-COMMITTEE
OF 7™ JUNE 2010.

2. The Sub-Committee had before it and approved as a correct record, the
Minute of meeting of the Grampian Joint Police Board Complaints Sub-
Committee meeting of 7" June 2010.

The Sub Committee Resolved:
To approve the minute.

MATTERS ARISING

3. Item 3: With respect to the request made at the last meeting for the Sub
Committee to be provided with statistics on the total number of
complainers alongside the total number of complaints received,
the Deputy Chief Constable advised that consideration was still
being given to the best way in which to present this information
in order that it provides the Sub Committee with the context it
was seeking alongside ensuring that complaint figures were
reported with clarity and consistency by the Force. Further
discussions on this matter, along with discussions with PCCS on
methods for dealing with persistent complainers, are on-going
and the outcome of these will be reported to the Sub Committee
in due course.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the matters arising.

Page 19



QUARTERLY REPORT ADVISING NUMBER OF COMPLAINTS AGAINST THE
POLICE — QUARTER 2 - 15T JULY 2010 - 30" SEPTEMBER 2010.

4,

The Sub-Committee had before it a report by the Chief Constable, providing
members with an update on the number of complaints made against
Grampian Police for the period 1 July to 30" September 2010.

Deputy Chief Constable John McNab introduced the report and advised that,
in respect of the volume of complaints received in the three month period from
1%t July to 30™ September 2010, there was a decrease from the last quarter
abd a decrease in comparison with the same quarter last year. Table 1
detailed that 143 complaints were received by the Force, giving rise to 194 on
duty allegations and 7 off duty allegations. Action was taken in relation to 34
allegations.

Mr McNab went on to advise that the most common type of allegation made in
this quarter was Irregularity in Procedure (69 allegations) followed by Incivility
(33 allegations). Mr McNab noted that this quarter saw a decrease in
complaints received, which was welcome given the rises seen in previous
quarters, however he also noted that Grampian Police have higher levels of
complaints than some other Forces.

Table 2 summarised Quality of Service complaints received by the Force and
put these figures into context. 42 Quality of Service complaints were received
during the period 1% July to 30" September 2010, the equivalent of 0.77
complaints per 10,000 population. During this same period, 84 letters of
appreciation were received by the Force which compares to 92 for the
corresponding period in 2009/10.

The report stated that the national target for completion of minor non-criminal
and quality of service complaints is 56 days. The aim is to achieve this 85%
of the time in the quarter in question, 81% of cases were concluded in 56
days.

Criminal and serious non-criminal cases require more complex investigation
and the target for criminal cases fully reported to the Area Procurator Fiscal is
within 126 days of receipt of the complaint. In the quarter in question, 3 cases
was reported which were all within this timescale.

The Sub-Committee resolved:-
To note the contents of the report.

ON-GOING DEVELOPMENT OF COMPLAINTS SUB COMMITTEE

5.

The sub-committee had before them a paper from the Clerk which sought its
approval of actions proposed to address the on-going development of the
Complaints Sub Committee in line with previous Grampian Joint Police Board
decisions.

Page 20



Ms F Smith introduced the report and advised that, following review of the
GJPB Standing Orders, the terms of reference of the Sub Committee were
amended. Given this development, now is an opportune time for the Sub
Committee to give consideration to any changes which are required to existing
ways of working in order to better support the Sub Committee in fulfilling its
role. In addition, the Sub Committee are required to give consideration to the
contents of a Board Complaints Policy and to issues arising from on-going
development activities of the Board.

As such, the report proposed that the Sub Committee hold a half day
development session on Friday 4" February 2011. The agenda for this
session will be prepared by the Depute Clerk in conjunction with relevant
officers at Grampian Police.

The Sub-Committee resolved;-

(i)

(ii)

To instruct the Clerk to organise a half day development session during
the morning of Friday 4™ February 2011 and to liaise with relevant parties
to develop an appropriate format for this session.

To otherwise note the report

EXEMPT INFORMATION

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board resolved
that in terms of Section 50A (4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973 that the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration
on the items on the grounds that it was likely in view of the nature of
proceedings that if members of the public were present during the
consideration of these items that there would be a disclosure to them of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 7A of
the said Act.

REPORT PROVIDING A RESUME OF COMPLAINTS AGAINST THE POLICE
WHICH HAVE BEEN CONSIDERED BY THE POLICE COMPLAINTS
COMMISSIONER FOR SCOTLAND

6.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report which noted that one complaint
handling review had been published by the Police Complaints Commissioner
for Scotland (PCCS) since the last meeting.

The Sub-Committee resolved:-
To note the content of the report.

Page 21



COMPLANT AGAINST A SENIOR OFFICER

7. Prior to the Sub Committee considering this item, Mr John McNab, Deputy
Chief Constable and Superintendant Colin Brown and left the meeting. The
Sub Committee had before it a report by the Clerk to the Board summarising
an investigation undertaken with respect to a complaint received against a
senior officer.

Ms Smith introduced the report and advised the Sub Committee of the remit of
the sub committee and the background of the complaint.

Following detailed discussion of the report, the sub-committee unanimously

resolved to conclude that it cannot draw a reasonable inference from the

complaint that misconduct on behalf of a Senior Officer has been committed.
The Sub-Committee resolved:-

- To conclude that it cannot draw a reasonable inference from the complaint
that misconduct on behalf of a Senior Officer has been committed.

COUNCILLOR MARTIN GREIG - Convener

Page 22



Agenda ltem 6

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

STEWARDSHIP SUB-COMMITTEE
ABERDEEN, Monday 13" December 2010 — Minute of meeting of GRAMPIAN
JOINT POLICE BOARD, STEWARDSHIP SUB-COMMITTEE.
Present:- Councillor Greig, Convener, Councillor Hendry, Councillor Mair, and
Councillor Leadbitter (as Substitute for Councillor Shepherd).
In Attendance:- Ms Karen Williams, Director of Corporate Services, Grampian Police,

Mr lain Robbie, External Audit, Ms Janie Keddie, Internal Audit and Ms Fiona Smith,
representing the Depute Clerk.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1. Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillor Bell, Councillor
Collie, Councillor Shepherd, Deputy Chief Constable John McNab, Mr Gary
Craig, Grampian Police, Jane MacEachran, Clerk and Karen Donnelly,
Depute Clerk.

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE GJPB STEWARDSHIP SUB-
COMMITTEE OF 7™ JUNE 2010

2. The Sub-Committee had before it and approved as a correct record, the
Minute of the previous Grampian Joint Police Board Sub-Committee meeting
of 7" June 2010.

MATTERS ARISING

3. ltem12: With respect of the on-going initiatives to tackle inefficiencies
within the Criminal Justice System, the Sub Committee
requested that a fuller report be provided to the Grampian Joint
Police Board to update on this matter.

The Sub Committee Resolved:
To note the matters arising.
CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT REPORT

4. The Sub Committee had before it a report by the Chief Constable that
provided an update on the work of the Continuous Improvement Unit.

The Director of Corporate Services introduced the report and advised that the
Cl Unit has recently completed work on Best Value 2; Divisional Crime
Management Units and Forensic Support Unit. The report also advised of a
new item of work, namely a review of legal documents.

Page 23



Finally, the report advised that the efficiency savings achieved by Grampian
Police for 2010/11 to the end of Quarter 2 amount to £2.753m.

Ms Smith noted that the Clerks office had received a vast amount of
assistance from the Continuous Improvement Unit in preparing for the Best
Value 2 audit. The Sub Committee wished to record its thanks to all involved
for providing this assistance.

The Sub Committee Resolved:
To note the report.

HMICS THEMATIC UPDATE REPORT

5.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report by the Chief Constable which
provided an update on the progress of implementing previous internal and
external recommendations.

The Director of Corporate Services introduced the report and advised that
there is one new action plan which relates to the Crime Audit. This plan
introduces three recommendations which are relevant to the Police and have
been accepted by the Force. Actions have been created to address the
recommendations.

It was further reported that the Action Plan arising from the 2009 HMICS
Thematic Inspection on Absence Management is now complete.

In respect of the remaining 11 outstanding HMICS Thematic action plans, it
was reported that 13 recommendations have been completed in the last
quarter, with 26 recommendations on-going.

The Sub Committee resolved:

To approve the Crime Audit Action Plan
To endorse the progress to date on the outstanding Action Plans.

REPORT ON THE GJPB SINGLE EQUALITY SCHEME

6.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report from the Chief Constable which
provided a six monthly update on the ongoing monitoring of the Single
Equality Scheme (SES).

The Director of Corporate Services introduced the report and advised that the
SES Action Plan contains previously agreed action, in order to improve
service delivery by the Force in relation to meeting statutory duties under
equalities legislation.

The report advised that progress against the SES Action Plan is monitored on

a six-monthly basis by the Force Diversity Group. The report contained the
detailed summary report outlining the most recent update.

Page 24



Sub Committee Members requested an update with respect to arrangements
for the Board Seminar regarding Gypsy Travellers in the North East. Ms
Smith advised that the Depute Clerk was seeking a meeting with relevant
officers to progress this matter and would be providing an update to a future
Board Meeting regarding this.

Councillor Greig sought further information with respect to recruitment of BME
employees. Ms Williams advised that some progress has been made on this
issue, however the on-going freeze in recruitment has halted this recently.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the report.

ACTION PLAN UPDATE - AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report by Chief Constable which provided
an update on the progress of implementing previous internal and external
audit recommendations.

The Director of Corporate Services introduced the report and advised that, of
the 25 recommendations due to be implemented, 17 have now been
completed. Eight recommendations remain outstanding although all now
have a date for completion allocated.

Members expressed some concern regarding the length of time a number of
the outstanding recommendations have been listed. Ms Williams advised that
was due to the nature of some recommendations meaning these take longer
to complete. Ms Smith advised that, in connection with the recommendation
allocated to the Clerk, a report later on the agenda proposes action to
complete these.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the progress made to date on audit reports.

INTERNAL AUDIT STATUS UPDATE

8.

The Sub-committee had before it a report from the Internal Auditor which
provided an overview of the current status of Internal Audit Reviews which
formed part of the 2010/11 programme.

Ms Keddie introduced the report and provided a summary with respect to the
business areas detailed within it. The internal audit plan for 2010/11 details 6
projects covering a range of business areas for which 92 days have been
scheduled.

The Sub Committee resolved;
To note the update position detailed within the report.

Page 25



INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - REVIEW OF TRANSPORT

9.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report from the External Auditor which
presented the results of an Internal Audit review of the Force’s Transport
Department.

Ms Keddie introduced the report and provided an overview of the operation of
the Transport Department and of the audit process. She advised that the
review had given rise to 10 recommendations, all of which have actions
agreed to address them. There followed a number of queries from Members
relating to the outcomes of the Audit and the audit process to which Ms
Keddie provided the additional information requested.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the Report.

ON-GOING DEVELOPMENT OF STEWARDSHIP SUB COMMITTEE

10.

The sub-committee had before them a paper from the Clerk which sought its
approval of actions proposed to address the on-going development of the
Sterwardship Sub Committee in line with previous Grampian Joint Police
Board decisions.

Ms F Smith introduced the report and advised that, following review of the
GJPB Standing Orders, the terms of reference of the Sub Committee were
amended. Given this development, now is an opportune time for the Sub
Committee to give consideration to any changes which are required to existing
ways of working in order to better support the Sub Committee in fulfilling its
role. In addition, the Sub Committee is required to address the
recommendations outlined in the Audit Status Report considered earlier on
the agenda.

As such, the report proposed that the Sub Committee hold a half day
development session on Friday 4™ February 2011. The agenda for this
session will be prepared by the Depute Clerk in conjunction with relevant
officers at Grampian Police and with the Internal and External Auditors.

The Sub-Committee resolved;-

To instruct the Clerk to organise a half day development session during the
afternoon of Friday 4™ February 2011 and to liaise with relevant parties to
develop an appropriate format for this session.

To otherwise note the report

EXEMPT INFORMATION

Prior to considering the remaining items of business the Board resolved
that in terms of Section 50A (4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973 that the public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration
on the items on the grounds that it was likely in view of the nature of
proceedings that if members of the public were present during the

Page 26



consideration of these items that there would be a disclosure to them of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 1 of part 1 of Schedule 7A of
the said Act.

INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL ASSURANCE STATEMENT 2009/10

11.

The Sub committee had before it a report from the Force Internal Auditor
which provided the Internal Audit Assurance Statement for 2009/10.

Ms Keddie introduced the report and advised that the Annual Assurance
Statement would normally be provided to the September meeting of the Sub
Committee, however the cancellation of that meeting prevented this occurring.
The report detailed an overall activity summary for the Internal Auditors during
2009/10 and detailed the Annual Assurance Statement which noted that the
Internal Auditors consider that the Force generally has an adequate
framework of control over the systems examined, subject to the
implementation of the recommendations detailed in each report.

The Sub Committee Resolved:
To note the report.

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - LOCAL STATION COMPLIANCE

12.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report from the External Auditor which
presented the results of an Internal Audit review of Local Stations.

Ms Keddie introduced the report and provided an overview of the areas and
stations reviewed as part of the audit process. She advised that the review
had given rise to 12 recommendations, all of which have actions agreed to
address them. There followed a number of queries from Members relating to
the outcomes of the Audit and the audit process to which Ms Keddie provided
the additional information requested.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the Report.

SIGNIFICANT RISK REGISTER SUMMARY

13.

The Sub-committee had before it a report from the Chief Constable providing
an update on progress made in relation to significant risks and which
presented Members with an up-to-date version of the Significant Risk
Register.

The Director of Corporate Services introduced the report and highlighted a
number of areas within it to Members.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the report.

Page 27



QUARTERLY REVIEW OF FORCE PRIORTY OBJECTIVES

14.

The Sub-Committee had before a report by the Chief Constable which
provided the Quarter Two Quarterly Review of Force Priority Objectives.

The Director of Corporate Services introduced the report and advised that the
quarterly review for quarter two determined that no identified risks have
increased, but that they have remained static or decreased. The monitoring
and review of these is on-going.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the report

DEBTOR WRITE OFFS IN 2010/2011

15.

The Sub-Committee had before it a report detailing the invoices which have
been raised by the Force but have been subsequently written off with
approval of the Deputy Director of Corporate Services.

The Director of Corporate Services introduced the report and advised of those
write offs which have taken place since the last report to the Sub Committee.
The report also provided further details of outstanding debts analysis which
was welcomed by Members.

The Sub Committee resolved:
To note the report.

COUNCILLOR MARTIN GREIG - Convener

Page 28



20p' L7 G0 0g Moday ssauisng Buipuelsing gdrovlL” S0 02\L L0Z\pleog 891jod julor ueldwel\preog 8910d\SYANIOW\|

m (Livoi22)-Bunes|y pieog ay)
O Joj Jodal aje| e se paye|nalio awayoS Yad ay) 0}
L aq ||Im podal siy) a1ojaiay) | uonejal ul gNd Pue JUsWwulanog)
o 1102 ABIN €1 UO J9BW | Ysioog ‘Alejeioss sWoH ay) o}
® M dnol qnS HAd dYL | )M 0} 3I8[D 8y} Jonlisul 0} pue
[®; 0L0Z Joqueydes 0} uo pleog
c (Lizowe) | ay) 0) podas sjepdn ue pwgns
() L L0z AeN ,0Z uo Bunes|y | 0} pue ainny 8y} ul pejdde
(@) pJeog ay} 0] papiroid | 89 pinoys awaydss ¥Ydd dy)} moy
A aq ||m Hodal ayepdn uy | Bulealbe 0] MaIA B YlIM SAIINDSXT
90104 8y} JO Ssloquiely Jaylo
(ouiiwo) -preog | pue o|qeISUOD JBIYD BUl YIm
ay} 0} papinoid aq [|Im | sSUOISSNISIp  Allea  @2uUsWWOD
ajepdn [eqaA ¥ “Ajleuoneu | 0}  ‘SiI8usAuU0))  BJIA  pue
S|9A8| SNOLIBA B UOISSNISIP | JAUBAUOD 8y} YlIM UOljR}NSU0D L2
L L0z Aeiy HBID jojoelgns ayysienssiayl | Ul SUdID 8y}  jonisul o] | way —0LoZ AInr .2 | 20/01
(LivoiL2) pasolo
S| wayl sIy} 1ey} sesodoud
3I9|D 8y} alojaiay) a9ljod
ueldwels) 10} ue|d Jipny
[eusaiu] 8y} uo sieadde "UOI}BJBPISUOD 10} pieoqg
Jabuo| ou Jipne sy} ‘uonippe | 8y} a104eq ybnoliq aq ||IM sanssi
U] ‘uwoday Jpny |eulaju| | @ainosal Bulyels pajeioosse pue
yelp ay} sepasiadns | uonoun4 Buian ay} uo uoday 2l wey —
paje|dwo) | 010z buudg YI8]0 | Hoday Jipny anjeA isag 8yl | Jipny [eulaju 8y} jey) 8jou o] | 600Z J8quanoN ,9 | 81/60
paja|dwo) 1932140
9)o|dwon | aq 0} ajeq a|qisuodsay ajepdn uois|o9(q pleog 92UaI3J3Y AMNUIN | Jaquinpy

11L0Z Aely ,,,02 — LNJINFLVYLS SSANISNG Qyvod
aydvod 30170d LNIOI NVIdINVYO

Page 29



20p' L7 G0 0g Moday ssauisng Buipuelsing gdrovlL” S0 02\L L0Z\pleog 891jod julor ueldwel\preog 8910d\SYANIOW\|

dnoug Bujopp
Juswdojanaq

(hwoize) | Loz AInpe sk

"SI9qUIBIN
pJeog Joj yooqpueH e dojanap 0}
pue Buneaw pieog puodas Alons
JO UOISN[OUOD B8y} JO} SUOISSaS
Buigeuq jo swwesbold e abueise
0] ‘pleog oy Aq juswoaibe
Jo} swuwelbosd Buiuiesy e pue

pieog uo Bunssw xau |m dnois | suejd juswdojersp aledaid o] Ll way —
zZlLoz Aue3 / Y191 8ndaq qns juswdojane( pleog | Juawdojereg pleog bBulob-uQ | 010 Jo8quanoN 2L | 0L/0L
€39S UHON
ay} jo bBuoyod syl 03 108dsal
ymm pieog a8y Jo bBunesw
'9SIN00 | ainjny e 0} JWodal e Buug |Im 0l way —
"1 10¢C 917 9|gejsuo) Jaiyd anp Ul moj|o} [Im Joday | 8|gejsuo) JalyQ 8y jey) djou o] | 010Z JoqwaAoN 2L | 60/01
(Lusool) *preog
8y} 03 pwodal ul papnjoul
Modal jwwng yeip — |10z
|udy ,G Uo pjay juwng
(Lireorv2) -epusbe ay) uo
sl yodal ayepdn uy “Hwwns
SIY} Jo} sjuswabuelle
ssalboid o) pabebua
useq aAeYy D3YO ‘L 10C
Asenuer |z uo pieog 8y}
wouj Juswaalibe buimo|jo4
(04/111¥0) papinoid
a4 ||Im 8yepdn [eqJon ‘Ise3 YUOoN 8y}
B — Jeulwas sy} abueue | ul sig|eael] AsdAg uo jwwng
0] payse aq uonesiueblo | e Jo} suswabueue peasodoud
[eulalxe ue jey) pajsenbal | yuym  Bunesw  pleog  aininj  Wal| — 0102
9)9|dwo) | 110z buuds IETTe) Sey JOUSAUO) 8y | B 0} WdAaJ 0} 33|10 By} 1oNJsul 0] Jequieldag 0L | 80/0l

Page 30



20p' L7 G0 0g Moday ssauisng Buipuelsing gdrovlL” S0 02\L L0Z\pleog 891jod julor ueldwel\preog 8910d\SYANIOW\|

jlor  enjeA  jseg  Help  |jeuy

110Z 9|geisuo) Jalyd ay} Jwgns 0} }I8|Y 8indeg pue 0l way
a)9|dwo) AeN ,02 / 81D 8inda( (Lisor) epusby uo Woday | 8|geIsuo) Jelyd 8yl jonasul of — LL0Z Ydley v | €0/L1L
::mo\o:.Emsow
Buleq mou si | Loz AInp
urelep y ‘1@aw 0} dnoio
ang 8y} Joj ajep a|qenns
e Ajuspi o} pa|ie) Jey
sny} aney suoys buiob-up
‘(LL/20/v2) passalboud
8q ueod Jaylew SIYy} | "©SIN0d 8np ul pJeog ay} 03 Joeq
1ey) JopJo ul JeaAh |eoueuly | yodas 0} pue 82104 ueldwels
Z1/110Z @Yl Jo pels ay) | Joy AbBejesns bBuiuueld |epueuly
dnolg gng 19bpng 1e aoe|d axe)} 0} pebueute | wiey Buo| e Jo juswdojorsp
/ ©2104 / Jainseal ] aq 0} sl dnoug gng 186png | 8y} 0} uonetapIsuod aAIb 0} dnoug ¥ way|
110Z pud /Y4819 8ynda( gdro ayi jo bunesw v | gng j18bpng gdro 8y onisul o) | — | Loz Aenuer skC | CO/LL
(LLv0/22)
pseog Buioljod ysmoos ayy
wo.lj paAladal oA asuodsal
ON "L10Z Ae\ 0z uo
pJeog ayj Ylm passnosip aq
[l — pJeog adiisnft [eulul)
ueldwels) ay} WO} paAIadal
uaaq sey asuodsay
-(L1/20/%2)
SpJeog Yyjoq wouj pajieme si 'ssa004d 921sn( jeuiwiio
asuodsaly ‘|10z Aleniga4 | ay} JO uonesiuispow JO siajew o)
y v uo pleog aonsnp 108dsal yum ssalboud asnuond o)
|leuiwL) |20 ueldwels) | salpoq yioq abin 0} pieog aonsne
ay} 0} pue pieog builjod | leulw) |eoo] ueldwels 8y
USI}I00S 8y} 0} Juss sem | 0} pue pleog Buidljod ysioos ay) € way
L 10C Yydie Yi9]Q @yndaq | 1do) siy) Bulpiebas Joyd| vV | 0} 81M 0} YJB[D By} Jondjsul o] | — LLog Aenuer Lz | LO/LL

Page 31



20p' L7 G0 0g Moday ssauisng Buipuelsing gdrovlL” S0 02\L L0Z\pleog 891jod julor ueldwel\preog 8910d\SYANIOW\|

Page 32

3JBM SJUBWIWOD JO Jogquinu B | JUSWUIBA09) ysijnoos
1102 - 1102 |Udy L C UO Jaquisy | 8y} 0} asuodsal Jesp e aisedalid € way|
a)o|dwon Aei S 39| ainda@g | 03 paje|nadio asuodsal yelq | 01 Y9l dyndeq 8yl jonasul o = 110Z YotelN 8L | +0/L1

(LL/S0/LL)

L L0z Aey ,G Uo papiwugns
pue pasijeul} sem asuodsal
SIY} yons sy ‘asuodsal yelp
ay} pasield yoiym paaiadal

‘uolissiwgns syl 0} Joud
JUSWIWIOD IO} |lew-8 BIA SISQWSIA
pjeog 0} osuodsal Jyelp Sy}
3]e|naJId 0} pue sJaquis|\ pJeog
[e JO SMaIA 8y} sajelodioodul
yolym  puepoos ul Buljod
JO ainn4 8y} Uuo uole}NsSu0)

"uoljeJapIsu0d Joj Bunes|y pieog
IXau 8y} 0] ue|d juswaroidu




A noanda o
~gengatem

GRAMPIAN
P-O-L-1-C-E

Keeping our commanities sare

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

DATE: 20 May 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: Revenue Expenditure Monitoring Statement

REPORT NUMBER «ReportNumber»

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
To present to the Board for its consideration an update on the likely out-turn
for 2010-11 and a 2011-12 Revenue Expenditure Monitoring Statement for
the period to 30 April 2011.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
To consider and note the contents of the report.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The monitoring statement provides a breakdown of the Force's annual
revenue expenditure and associated funding. It outlines the overall budget for
the financial year, actual spend to 30 April 2011, and the projected out-turn up
to 31 March 2012. The variance identified shows any projected
under/overspend comparing the estimated out-turn with the approved budget.
Given the potential reduction to Police funding in future years, the Force is
aiming to maximise savings in the current financial year in order to reduce the
financial burden in 2012-13 and beyond.

4, SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT
The impact of budget savings on service delivery, both to the communities of
the North East in terms of operational effectiveness and to internal customers
in terms of Corporate Services, is being monitored via the Scottish Policing
Performance Framework (SPPF).

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Page 33



REPORT
Revenue Budget 2010-11

The out-turn figures for the previous financial year are being finalised but it is
still anticipated that the Force will have an underspend of around £2.4m. As
noted previously, the aim throughout 2010-11 was to maximise savings in
order to reduce the financial burden for this financial year and beyond. The
draft out-turn figures will be presented at the next meeting of the Board,
although these will still be subject to review by the Force's External Auditors.

The Board will also be presented with a draft set of financial statements
relating to 2010-11. As with other public sector organisations, the Force is
having to prepare its financial statements for 2010-11 using International
Financial Reporting Standards.

As a consequence of this, the Annual Accounts for 2009-10 have been
re-stated to provide comparative figures. The adjustments have been
reviewed and agreed by the Force's External Auditors. With the introduction
of the new accounting rules, the balance on the General Fund has increased
by £168,000. This reflects an adjustment for grant balances amounting to
£80,000 which were previously carried forward as liabilities, and the reversal
of costs relating to Time Off in Lieu totalling £88,000. The revised figures for
the financial year 2009-10 will be included within the draft financial statements
to be presented to the Board at the next meeting.

As a result, the balance of the General Fund at the start 2010-11 has risen
from £1.575m to £1.743m. With the projected underspend in 2010-11 of
£2.4m, the General Fund will increase to around £4.1m at 31 March 2011.

Revenue Budget 2011-12

Members will recall that in January 2011 the Board approved a budget for the
current financial year which utilised savings carried forward from 2010-11.
This was primarily due to the Force having to contend with a reduction in core
funding of 2.6%, as well as having to absorb real cost budget pressures of
approximately 3.4%. The Force put forward budget savings totalling £5.4m,
but recommended that in the short term £0.6m of reserves be used to cover
the remaining budget deficit, and this was agreed by the Board.

Since the budget was agreed, the Scottish Government has negotiated a
number of changes to Police Officer pay conditions. These changes were
implemented from 1 April 2011. The main changes introduced included the
introduction of new national on-call and plain clothes allowances for Officers
in federated ranks. Linked to this was the removal of the awarding of
Special Priority Payments (SPP's) for federated ranks. In addition the
Police Negotiating Board (PNB) agreements on Chief Officer and
Superintendent bonus payments have been suspended for one year.

Page 34



The net savings arising from these changes are estimated to be in the region
of £850,000. Whilst the projected out-turns have been amended accordingly,
the approved Revenue Budget remains unchanged. These savings will aliow
for the budget to be balanced without the need for reserves of £600,000 and
thereafter would result in a budgeted underspend of £250,000.

As in the previous financial year, the Force will continue to identify and
implement various forms of Service Reconfiguration, with the intention of
generating further efficiencies and cost savings.

If as expected, core funding continues to reduce in future years it is likely that
in the short to medium term the Force will need to consider the best way to
meet any budget shortfall using reserves, efficiencies or other cuts in the
budget.

Reserves

The Board previously agreed a minimum balance on the General Fund, such
that it should exceed 1% of total funding, to ensure that there were resources
available to meet any significant unplanned operational need, especially in
light of the nature and types of risks faced by the Force. Based on the
position for 2011-12 outlined above, the balance on the General Fund would
rise to approximately £4.4m.

The current forecast position on reserves is as follows:

2011-12 General Fund
£ million
Opening balance (subject to audit) at 1 April 2011 4.145
Budget overspend (0.600)
Projected underspend 0.850
Projected closing balance at 31 March 2012 4.395
Minimum balance 1.152
Maximum balance 7.399

Following representation by Forces and recognising the need to make savings
in the early years of the budget reductions, the Scottish Government revised
the carry forward limits associated with revenue underspends in any given
financial year, as well as maximum balances on the General Fund. In any
given year, the Force can carry forward up to 4% of its core funding (a rise of
1%), and be able to hold balances on its General Fund up to 8% of its core
funding (a rise of 3%). '

Page 35



7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Gary Craig, Deputy Director of Corporate Services
gary.craig@grampian.pnn.police.uk
Tel: 01224 305222

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Chief Constable Treasurer
12 May 2011 12 May 2011

Page 36



Appendix A

GRAMPIAN POLICE
Budget Monitoring Report - Expenditure up to 30 April 2011

Gr ian Police S s Variance Qut-turn as a

i Qut-turn (Under)/ % of Budget
Overspend
Approved Expenditure to As At As At
Budget 30-Apr-11 30-Apr-11 30-Apr-11
£ £ £ £
EMPLOYEE COSTS
Police Officers
Pay 54,086,638 4,478,758 54,086,638 0 100%
CRTP/Bonus/SPP 1,569,444 47,823 650,444 (919,000) 41%
TRA and Housing 1,927,364 723 1,927,364 0 100%
Other Allowances 118,317 6,395 187,317 69,000 158%
National Insurance 5,241,970 384,662 5,241,970 0 100%
Notional Pension Costs 13,505,119 1,130,647 13,505,119 0 100%
Injury Pension Costs 415,000 0 415,000 0 100%
Il Health Awards 424,961 0 424,961 0 100%
Sub-total 77,288,813 6,049,008 76,438,813 (850,000) 99%
Overtime 2,762,655 1,167 2,762,655 0 100%
Total Police Officers' Costs 80,051,468 6,050,175 79,201,468 (850,000} 99%
Police Staff
Pay 15,404,192 1,433,457 15,404,192 0 100%
Allowances 1,539,966 120,806 1,539,966 0 100%
National Insurance 1,231,677 88,616 1,231,577 0 100%
Superannuation 2,947,365 225,107 2,947,365 0 100%
Sub-total 21,123,100 1,867,986 21,123,100 0 100%
Overtime 189,043 809 189,043 0 100%
Total Police Staff Costs 21,312,143 1,868,795 21,312,143 ] 100%
Other Staff Costs
Relocation 48,723 900 48,723 0 100%
Recruitment 48,020 5,007 48,020 0 100%
Sub-total 96,743 5,907 96,743 0 100%

Total Employee Costs 101,460,354 7,924,877 100,610,354 (850,000) 99%

OPERATING COSTS

Property Costs
Rent 853,621 54,941 853,621 0 100%
Rates 1,447,926 1,168,249 1,447,926 0 100%
Insurance 20,000 0 20,000 0 100%
Repairs and Maintenance 562,054 6,614 562,054 0 100%
Repairs and Maintenance - Devolved 26,552 35 25,552 0 100%
Heating, Lighting and Cleaning 1,149,267 33,1565 1,149,267 0 100%
Sub-total 4,058,420 1,263,994 4,058,420 0 100%
Transport and Plant Costs
Repairs and Maintenance 275,000 17,685 275,000 0 100%
Petrol and Diesel Fuel 817,355 33,534 817,355 0 100%
Licences and insurances 300,000 291,872 300,000 0 100%
Car Hire 228,328 {2.893) 228,328 0 100%
Travel and Subsistence 480,640 4,608 480,640 9] 100%
Sub-total 2,101,323 344,806 2,101,323 0 100%
Supplies and Services Costs
Operational Equipment and Materials 605,237 35,756 605,237 0 100%
Operational Supplies and Services 2,724,587 66,233 2,724,587 0 100%
Uniforms and Clothing 239,556 15,214 239,556 0 100%
Computer Maintenance and Software 1,125,374 0 1,125,374 0 100%
Computer Network and Telephony 970,332 1,068 970,332 0 100%
Radio Communications 0 0 0 0 0%
Catering 163,662 8,246 163,662 0 100%
Conferences and Training 389,816 16,919 389,816 0 100%
Printing, Stationery and Postages 483,083 34,010 483,083 0 100%
Insurances 406,025 6,369 406,025 0 100%
Advertising 7,650 11,277 7,650 0 100%
Other Administrative Costs 321,240 9,915 321,240 0 100%
Sub-total 7,436,562 205,007 7,436,562 0 100%

Page 37



GRAMPIAN POLICE
Budget Monitoring Report - Expenditure up to 30 Aprit 2011

Appendix A

Gi ian Police S y Estimated Variance Out-turn as a
Out-turn (Under)/ % of Budget
Overspend
Approved Expenditure to As At As At
Budget 30-Apr-11 30-Apr-11 30-Apr-11
£ £ £ £
Payments to Agencies and Other Bodies
Council Support Services 286,500 0 286,500 0 100%
Other Agencies 1,073,933 4,136 1,073,933 0 100%
Sub-total 1,360,433 4,136 1,360,433 0 100%
Financing Costs
Capital Financed from Current Revenue 300,000 0 300,000 0 0%
Supported Loan Charges 1,262,000 0 1,262,000 0 0%
Prudential Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0%
Sub-total 1,562,000 0 1,562,000 0 100%
Contingency Costs 0 0 0 0 0%
Total Operating Costs 16,518,738 1,817,943 16,518,738 0 100%
y Gross Expenditure 117,979,092 9,742,820 117,129,092 (850,000) 99%
INCOME
Recharges for Services (1,098,500) (6,313) (1,098,500) 0 100%
Secondee Recoveries (860,824) 246 {860,824) 0 100%
Sales, Fees and Lost Property (338,000) (20,407) (338,000) 0 100%
Sponsorship (18,000) (5,000) (18,000) 0 100%
Rents (857,401) (129,501) (857.401) 0 100%
Partnership Income (945,525) (214,944) (945,525) 0 100%
Non SG Funding (76,176) 0 (76,176) 0 100%
Other Income (80,000) 0 (80,000) 0 100%
Total Income  (4,274,426) (375,919)  (4,274,426) 0 100%
Total Net Expenditure 113,704,666 9,366,901 112,854,666 (850,000) 99%
FINANCED BY -
Grant Funding
SG Police Grant (47.166,000) 0 (47,166,000) 0 100%
LA Requisitions (45,316,000) 0 (45,316,000} 0 100%
SG Loan Charge Support (644,000) 0 (644,000) 0 100%
LA Loan Charge Support (618,000} 0 (618,000) 0 100%
SG Specific Grant (100% Funded) (19,340,130} 0 (19,340,130) 0 100%
SG Specific Grant (Part Funded) (20,536} 0 {20,536) 0 100%
Other Grant ] 0 0 0 0%
(113,104,666) 0 (113,104,666) 0 100%
Total (Under)/Overspend Against Grant Funding 600,000 9,366.901 {250,000) (850,000)

Page 38



GRAMPIAN POLICE
Budget Monitoring Report - Expenditure up to 30 April 2011

CRTP - Competency Related Threshold Payment

SPP - Special Priority Payment

TRA - Transitional Rent Allowance

SG - Scottish Government

LA - Local Authority

SCDEA - Scottish Crime and Drug Enforcement Agency

Other Staff Costs include the following items:
Interview Expenses

Recruitment Costs

Transfer Allowances and Relocation Expenses
Staff Advertising

Long Service Awards

Operational Equipment and Materials includes the following items:

Ammunition and Firearms

Animals {Food and Equipment)
Equipment Purchase

Equipment Repairs and Maintenance
Furniture Purchase

Intoximeters

Materials General

Medical Supplies (including First Aid)

Operational Supplies and Services includes the following items:
Airwave Maintenance
Body Removal

Car Care Kits

Central Archive Facilities
Consultancy Fees
Interpreters

Mortuary Charges

Police Surgeon Fees
Prisoner Maintenance
Service General

Other Administrative Costs includes the following items:
Affiliation Fees

Audit Fees

Bank Charges

Confidential Waste Disposal

Data Protection Registration

Hospitality

Legal Expenses

Members Allowance

Subscriptions - General

Other Income includes the following items:
Miscellaneous Interest Received

Grampian Police S Y Estil d
Out-turn
Approved Expenditure to As At
Budget 30-Apr-11 30-Apr-11
£ £ £

Page 39

Appendix A

Variance Out-turn as a
(Under)/ % of Budget
Overspend
As At
30-Apr-11
£



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 40



Agenda ltem 9

> GRAMPIAN
P-O-L-

Keeping oar commanities sare

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
DATE: 20 May 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: Capital Monitoring Report
REPORT NUMBER «ReportNumber»

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
To update the Board on the progress of the 2010-11 and 2011-12 Capital
Plans, provide an updated projected out-turn for the year, and highlight any
changes since the last Board.

2, RECOMMENDATION(S)

To consider and note the contents of the report.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The Capital Plan sets out the Force's proposed investment in capital assets
for the current and subsequent 3 financial years. The approved budget for
2011-12 amounts to £4.332m, and is funded by way of capital grant, capital
receipts and revenue financing.
The Capital Plan is overseen by the Force's Programme Board, with any

minor adjustments being reflected in a transfer from or to the Unallocated
Capital Funds.

4, SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

It is important that the Force continues to invest in its infrastructure and
systems in order that it can enhance the operational capacity and generate
efficiencies for front line policing.

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

Brought to the Board for approval.

Page 41



REPORT

The Capital Plan for 2010-11 will be updated to reflect the actual expenditure
incurred during last year and the carry forward of capital receipts into
2011-12. These figures will finalised as part of the accounting exercise which
takes place after the year end. It is currently anticipated that the total spend
in 2010-11 will amount to £2.828m (detailed within Appendix A).

In the lead up to the end of the financial year (31 March 2011) the Force
returned a further £150,000 of Capital Grant to Aberdeen City Council,
increasing the total repaid to the Constituent Authorities from £1.234m to
£1.384m. The Force is unable to carry forward Capital Grant funding from
one financial year to the next and through discussions with the Treasurer,
agreed to return some of the grant, which would be repaid in the new financial
year.

The underspend last year was mainly a result of slippage in two Capital
projects, namely the new Child Protection Unit in Moray and the purchase of
digital recoding equipment.

The profile of expenditure for the new Child Protection Unit in Moray was
revised to take account of delays that resulted from adverse weather
conditions, which occurred during the winter period. The Force has also been
involved in drawing up a nationally agreed specification for the purchase of
digital recoding equipment. This has delayed the procurement process,
however it is anticipated that the equipment will be purchased this financial
year.

2011-12 Capital Plan

The Capital Plan for 2011-12 is detailed within Appendix B. The Force is due
to receive £3.787m of Capital Grant funding this financial year (including the
balance of £1.384m carried forward by the Constituent Authorities).

Members will recall the decision taken last year to suspend further work on
identifying a site for a new headquarters. This decision was taken given
on-going difficulties in identifying a suitable and affordable site as well as the
uncertainty surrounding the potential re-structuring of Forces. Although this
work has been pended, work is progressing within the Force to progress a
number of other important Capital projects e.g. custody in Aberdeen and
office and custody provision in Peterhead. These and other potential
developments are contained in the Forces Property Asset Management Plan,
which will be discussed by the Board as part of a separate report.

National Project
Work is also progressing on the National Performance Platform Project. The
budget for the current financial year is £277,000, and spend will be funded

from the Efficient Government Grant carried forward from 2010-11. The
profile of spend is included within Appendix C.

Page 42



7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Gary Craig, Deputy Director of Corporate Services
gary.craig@grampian.pnn.police.uk
Tel: 01224 305222

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Chief Constable Treasurer
12 May 2011 12 May 2011



Appendix A

GRAMPIAN POLICE
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE MONITORING STATEMENT - to 30th April 2011

Page 44

Revised Projected| Varianc
PPSO Project Finance Total project| Prior years; Budget| Outturn| (Over)/Unde:
Line Project Description - B Divisions / Dept. No _| ProjectNo _ cost spend <a>| <b> Actual Spend Spend| Esti d Budget Comments

| ~ | 201011 201011 Mar-11 <c=a-b>| 2011-12] 2012-13[ 2013-14]

£000s £000s| £000s £000s] £000s £000s £000s|  £000s|  £000s

A |Recurring Items n ) . . - - | i

1 |Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) / Minor Building Work Facilities | GC909n nfa|  nfa 205 | 250 | 250 45[__ 100 100 100 |Expenditure incurred on upgrading or various parts of the property estate

_ 2 |Asset Refreshment for Computers, Printers & Servers c N | S - :

(i) |-SPSA - n_ _ - SPSA GC90870 n/a n/a 240 224 | 224 16 245 250 250 |Expenditure funded by Scottish Police Services Authority Specific Grant.

_(ii) |- Force Funded . B _ - CMBA an. GC90871 n/a| n/aj 27 29 29 ) 20 20| 20 [Purchase complete.

3 |Annual Vehicle Replacement . Transport _ GCY5501 n/a| o/ 764 | 780 | 780 (16) 900 900 900 _ -

_ B |Existing Commitments j | LA - e o \ N ”\\ ..... SRS E= |

4 [Single Point of Contact (SPoC) Software CMBA | GC98199 34 0 34| 35 35 (17 L ‘Work complete.

5 |ON-GOING COMMITMENTS 0 1,270 1,318 1,318 “8 1,265 1,270 1,270

| C |Discrete Items of Expenditure == = I o L . = el | I | P | P — — =
6 |Shared Services Project at Whinhill (New Build) Facilities - GC96601 512 0] 512 497 497 5] | _ | Project complete and awaiting invoice.

|7 [Moray Child Protection Unit (New Build) Facilities i o GC981%0 | 600 0 247 207 207 40| 393] | |Projectdue (o be compleled during 2011-12

8 [Custody Refurbist - Model 2 - Facilities GC98202 218 0 218 219 219 m . | |Work complete.

9 [Torry Police Station Refurbishment - e Facilities il == GC90111 | 5§ 0 S5 50 50 of | |Work complete.

10_|Call Recording | or&s | GPLIY GC98188 64 0 64 69 69 ©) I _ |Purchase complete. L _
11 [Digital Recording N . | CMBA | GPL028 | GC98187 150  of 150 | 9 9 41| 141 | Equipment to be purchased this financial year. L. B0
12 |ANPR Equipment | ~ CMBA | GC908s1 o 10 0 10 10 10 0| | | |Purchase complete. SRR

| 13 |ANPR Equipment _— et tm o oP&S GC98203 22 o] 2 m» 2 ol | _ |Purchasecomplete. == P S, e

14 |[NESCAMP Equipment NESCAMP e GC92821 | 20 0] 2 20 20 0 || |Repk of existing equipment, cost was fully funded by NESCAMP partnership. N
_15_|Community Security Policy (CSP) Work | ProfStandard _ GC98121 36| 0] 36| 19]] 19 17 | | |Projectcomplete. =

16 |Crimefile Development L= . . wer | ~ GC94451 21 0] 21 21 21 0 _ |Project complete.

17 |National Crimefile Development - ICT - GC90811 | 35| 0] 35 35 35 o | Project complete.

18 |Body Armours - Operation Procurement L pg— _GC90491 52 0] 52 52 0 (0 | ) SO Equipment received and awaiting invoice.

19 |Body Armours - Firearms . E—— — __OP&S | | Gecooa90 | 68 0] 68 68 0 0] | __|Equipment received and awaiting invoice.

20 [Firearms Equipment —_— - | or&s e GC92902 57 0 57, 57 0 0] N Equipment reccived and awaiting invoice. 5
21 |Police Vans - CCTV and Specialist Equipment | OP&S | GCo 25| 0] 25| 24 24 1 | [Purchase complete. - E

22 |CCTVE for Various Police Stations Busi; Areas | GC95601 142 0 142 115 115 27 = | |Equipment received and awaiting invoice. gl

23 _[IT Shutdown System St =i 1] IcT \ GC92905 . 23] 0} 23] 16 | 16 70 || [Project complete. -

24 |Force Cstate Security mmn:_.:nu\ R 5 ~ GC91161 0 0 0 0 0 o . ~ |Project was pended by Programime Board in June 2010.

25 |Extension to Laboratory at Nelson Street - Phase 2 | Facilities A P - — ol 0 0 0 0 0 L _ |Project to be costed if the facility remains in Aberdeen.

26 [New Peterhead Police Station | Facilities | GPL024 | 0 0 0] 0 0 o - _ |Project has been mandated by the Force and a supporting business case will be developed. |
27 |Unallocated Capital Funds - | ProgrammeBoard | | 0 0 0] 0] 0 0| 2533| 6000| 3,500 |Funding available for aflocation to capital projects. .y e,
28 |DISCRETE EXPENDITURE 0 1,757 1,510 1,333 242 3,067 6,000 3,500
29 |TOTAL EXPENDITURE 3,027 2,828 2,651 194 4,332 7,270 4,770




Appendix A

GRAMPIAN POLICE |

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE MONITORING STATEMENT - to uc.—_Mwn: 2011

Revised] Projecte: Variance]
PPSO Project Finance Total project|{ Prior yearss Budget Outtur: (Over)/Under|
Line Project Description Divisions / Dept. No Project No cost| _spend <a>|  <b>| Actual Spend Spend| Estimated Budget C
0 2010-11]  2010-11 Mar-11 <e=a-b>| 2011-12] 2012-13] 2013-14] =
£000s £000s|  £000s £000s £000s £000s| £000s £000s, £000s
_ |Financed by: _ = T p— |
D |Governmental Bodies and Local Authorities e = -
30_|Local Authorities - Annual Capital Grant
(i) |Balance carry forward at the beginning of the year 929 929 929 1,384 0 0 |Capita! Grant carried forward by Constituent Authorities and repaid to the Force.
(ii) |Annual Capital Grant for the year 2,928 2,928 2,799 2,403 2,450 2,500 |Annual Capital Grant for the year.
iii) | Balance carry forward at the end of the year (1,234) (1,384) (1.384) 0 0 0 |Capital Grant transferred to Constituent Authorities at the year end.
Annual Capital Grant utilised during the year - A= i e N 21623 2,473 2,344 3,787 2,450 [ 2,500 |Capital Grant utilised during the year. S e
31 |Scottish Government - Scottish Police Services Authority B 240 224 224 | 245|  250| 250 |Funding from Scottish Police Services Authority. )
32 |Scottish Government -ISCIIS - = _ 5 T i 35| 35 35 ol 0| o |Funding from Scottish Govemment - Itegrated Scottish Criminal Justice Infor Services (ISCIIS).
33 |Scottish Government - Other Agents - H‘ Lot R | 8 0| 0] 0 [Contribution for the purchase ofanew vehice. .
34 [NESCAMP - Capital Receipts _ ) 20 20 20 0 ol o = - s
35 Local Authorities = = = = = L ] H‘\—o 10 10 = o 0| 0 |Grantcontribution towards the cost of the Moray Child Protection Unit, : _ =
E [Non-governmental Bodies e ET Sl s L =
36 |Other Capital Receipts | [ . B s 0] 10 10 0| 0| 0 |Contibution from non-governmental bodics for the purchase of vehicles. A e L SN
F | Capital Receipts from the sale of Non-current assets k - = . . s L. o _ E _ 5 )= A
37 |Capital Receipts from sale of Non-current Assets - - - 81 48 0 0] 4270 1,847 |Capital receipts g d from disposal of Non-current Assets. - e
G |Capital expenditures funded from revenue E e =
38 |Capital Expenditure Funded from Revenue Funding "CFCR" 0 0 0 300 300 300 A= W . " _ W i
39 |TOTAL FUNDING 3,027 2,828 2,651 4332 7270 | 4897 1°*
RECONCILIATION OF CAPITAL RECEIPTS: _
Opening balance y 2 | ssn| asm 3e72] | aoe| sur| onaem| RS = -
_ |New Receipls =N il AT - N 1 ] e = | (SR | L= = s 2= - =
| | Sale of police houses L xS T = 575 0] 0 [ 1,205| 300 | 300 . e
| |__Sale of police vehicles, plant & equipment - || =i _ | | | 120 188 188 | _1oof 100 100 i =1
| |Applied Receipts g - ‘ i | — n W (81) (48) 0 0 (4270) (1,847) = N SEN_ s
Closing balance carry forward ., R - ,, . 4,486 4,012 4,060 5317 1,447 0 = _
|
I

Page 45




Appendix B

GRAMPIAN POLICE | I ] . A Iy S
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE MONITORING STATEMENT - to 30th April 2011 | |
i ﬁ
Revised; Projected| Variance|
PPSO Project Finance Total project| Prior yearsy Budgeyl Outturn (Over)/Under|
Line| Preject Description B | Divisions/Dept. |  Ne Project No _costj  spend]  <a> <b>| Actual Spend Spend| Estimated Budget C
I [ - o L | 2011-12]  2011-12 Apr-11 <e=a-b>| 2012-13| 2013-14] 2014-15 } _ Sl e
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s|  £000s| £000s;  £000s
_A_|Recurring Items | ~ S T | _ = [ = e —] = S — - = . = = =
| |Disability Discrimination Act (DDA) / Minor Building Work | Facilities =0 GC9971 |  m/al  oal 100 100 0 0| 100 100| _ 100 |Expenditure incurred on upgrading or various parts of the property estate —
Asset t for C Printers & Servers W || i e i =l S ———— — —=
- SPSA - ) I SPSA . GC90870  na|_ nal  245| 245 0 0] 250 250 | 250 |Expenditure funded by Scottish Police Services Authority Specific Grant. e
Force Funded ] CMBA | ccoesm | wa|  wal 20| 20 0 ol 20 20 20 . =W _"m = Tlwrs =l an
Annual Vehicle -~ Transport _ | | GC9ss01 n/a n/a 900 | 900 | 0 0f 900 | 900 900 - = S
B | Existing Commi = - I RE e B e m == 0 i
4 |Moray Child Protection Unit (New Build) Facilities | Gecos1% 600  207|  393| 393 0 ofl - | |Project due to be completed during 2011-12 o .ol
5 |Digital Recording | cmBA | GPL028 [ GC98187 150 9 141|141 | 0 ofll I Equipment to be purchased this financial year. I Nt
6 |ON-GOING COMMITMENTS 1,799 1,799 0 0 1,270 1,270 1,270
 C |Discrete Items of Expenditure = == __ = | S | | R O | e | S = gt B —
7 _|Force Estate Security Facilities ] eeeel | o0 of 0 0 0 0 - Project was pended by Programme Board in June 2010. = e
8 |Extension to Laboratory at Nelson Street - Phase 2 Facilities ==k o of of 0 0 ol | | |Projecttobecosted if the facility remains in Aberdeen. SR
9 [New Peterhead Police Station _ | Facilitics GPL024 I ol 0] 0O 0 0 M) | [ | |Project has been mandated by the Force and a supporting business case will be developed.
| 10 |Unallocated Capital Funds . | Programme Board | el 0] 253 2,533 0 0| 6000 3500] 2307 [Funding available for allocation to capital projects. St
11 _|DISCRETE EXPENDITURE 2,533 2,533 [/ 0| 6,000 3500]| 2307
12 |TOTAL EXPENDITURE 4,332 4,332 0 0 7,270 4,770 3,577
| |Financed by: A | S e e | I | et ol it o (I | S | ) e S T N
D _|Governmental Bodies and Local Authorities B 1 N [EP e e = —
13 |Local Authorities - Annual Capital Grant
(i) |Balance carry forward at the beginning of the year 1,384 1,384 0 0 0 0 |Capital Grant carried forward by Constitucnt Authorities and repaid to the Force.
(if) |Annual Capital Grant for the year 2,403 2,403 0 2,450 2,500 | 2,500 [Annua! Capital Grant for the year.
| (iii) |Balance carry forward at the end of the year 0 0 0 0 0 0 |Capital Grant transferred Lo Constizuent Authorities at (ac year end.
i Annual Capital Grant utilised during the year [ i 4 3,787 | 3,787 0 2450 | 2,500 | 2,500 |Capital Grant utilised during the year. - == 2
14 |Scottish Government - Scottish Police Services Authority ] b - 245 245 0 250 | 250 | 250 |Funding from Scottish Police Services Authority.
| E_|Non-governmental Bodies | R | iy | - ~ (SRS N . - = = = —
15 _|Other Capital Receipts . o I ) 0 o0 0 } S s _ IR .
| _F_|Capital Receipts from the sale of Non-current assets o " lIE 8 | | S o= b=k _ = __
16 |Capital Receipts from sale of Non-current Assets | Al ol of 0 | 4270 | 1,720 | 527 |Capital receipts d from disposal of No-current Assets. = -Ssu Noly -
G | Capital expenditures funded from revenue —— | | he(TEeN - e B = N L n bl o =
17_|Capital Expenditure Funded from Revenue Funding "CFCR" 300 300 0 300 300 300 i
18 |TOTAL FUNDING 4,332 4,332 0 7,270 | 4770 | 3,577 - = A
_ |RECONCILIATION OF CAPITAL RECEIPTS:
Opening balance SR — - I | 4012 4,012 4012 | 5,317 1,447 127 Tmals > = BN O
_ |New Receipts } s R " R =B _ | i [ (| O o -~ - = == = e — — S = 1
[ Sale of police houses - = 1,205 1,205 | 0| B 300 | 300 300 RN -
| Saleof police vehicles, plant & equipment \\ _1oof 100 0| __ 1004 100} 100) PR S
| [Applied Receipts - 0 0 0 (4,27 (1,720) (527 = o - y
__|Closing balance carry forward “ 5,317 5,317 4,012 1,447 127 0]
! N =
|

Page 46



Appendix C

GRAMPIAN POLICE B ) | I - A i | S S o
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE MONITORING STATEMENT - to 30th April 2011 o | S R—— — -
Total Prior| Revised| Projected Variance|
project| years| Budget| Outturn| (Over)/Under|
Line Project Description Divisions / Dept. cost| spend|  <a Acw Actual Spend Spend Estimated Budget ts
] ] i 2010-11]  2010-11 Mar-11 <e=a-b>| 2011-12] 2012-13] 2013-14|
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
 |Discrete Items of Expenditure . ol | =l = B o S
1 |ACPOS National Platform Project ~ SPSA 5,408 3,996 487 7 7 480 277 648 480 [National project fully funded by the Efficient Government Fund. Grampian Police acting as lead Force.
 |Financed by: B o= o8 = = = | | e ] - _ Tl
2 |Additional Capital Grant - Efficient Government Fund 5378 | 3,966 487 7] 7 480 277 | 648 | 480 |Grant funding received by the Force. D = Bl
3 |Other Capital Receipts o= 30 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 _ == =_ —
- i L5 5,408 3,996 487 7 7 480 271 648 480 = . L
\‘ RECONCILIATION OF CAPITAL RECEIPTS £000s £000s £000s
|Opening balance B | 1,412 1,412 1,412 1405 1,128 480 bl I BN — Lal =5ttt
| |Amount received during the current year — DI | S—— | O N -
Receipts applied for the current year B (487) (1) 7] i 277) (648) (480) = R
Closing balance o 925 1,405 1,405 1,128 480 0 = £l




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Agenda Iltem 10

3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
DATE: 20™ MAY 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: BEST VALUE 2 AUDIT AND INSPECTION REPORT -

JOINT IMPROVEMENT PLAN

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to invite the Board to agree and action the Joint
Improvement Plan which has been development to implement the
recommendations contained within the joint Audit Scotland HMICS report.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that the Board approve the Improvement Plan attached at
Appendix 2.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The proposed Improvement Plan does not contain any actions which have not
already been identified by the Board and Force for development. As such,
there are unlikely to be any unexpected financial implications flowing from the
Improvement Plan.
In terms of the recommendations around medium to longer term financial
planning, then the Improvement Plan should improve the Board’s ability to
undertake this form of planning and monitoring, thereby having a positive
impact on future years.

4, SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT
The findings of the Accounts Commission commend the Board for its
community engagement and leadership. Implementation of the Action Plan
should further strengthen the Board’s community participation.

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None.

Page 49



6. REPORT

6.7 Board Members will recall that the Board gave consideration to the
Audit Scotland / HMICS report on the Best Value 2 Audit and
Inspection at the Board meeting held on 4™ March 2011. For
information the report considered at that meeting is attached in
Appendix One.

6.2 The attached joint Improvement Plan has been prepared by the Force
and the Depute Clerk for consideration, and approval by the Board.
The completed Improvement Plan sets out each of the improvement
actions, assigns ownership as appropriate and suggests how the
required improvements will be achieved. It also details and impacts
and consequences e.g. resource implications.

6.3 As previously agreed by the Board responsibility for ensuring the
delivery of the joint Improvement Plan is remitted to the Stewardship
Sub-Committee. It is intended that officers from the Force and Clerk’s
office will submit regular reports to the Stewardship Sub-Committee,
updating Members as to progress against the agreed action points. It
is also proposed that a further report be submitted to the Board once
the Improvement Plan actions have been implemented.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS
Karen M Donnelly, Depute Clerk

E-mail: kdonnelly@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Telephone: 01224 522416

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Karen M Donnelly
Depute Clerk
13" May 2011

Page 50



3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

DATE:

TITLE

4™ MARCH 2011

OF REPORT: BEST VALUE 2 AUDIT AND INSPECTION REPORT

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to invite Members of Grampian Joint Police
Board to consider the terms of the Report prepared by Audit Scotland and Her
Majesty’s Inspector of Constabulary for Scotland (HMICS) following a joint
audit and inspection of the Board and Grampian Police, which measured
compliance with the requirements of Best value. The Board is thereafter
invited to agree and action the Improvement Plan to implement the
recommendations contained within the joint Audit Scotland HMICS report.

RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that the Board

2.1 considers the contents of the joint Audit Scotland and HMICS report
attached at Appendix 1,

2.2 agrees the Improvement Plan template attached at Appendix 2,

2.3 instructs both the Depute Clerk and Deputy Chief Constable to submit a
final action plan for approval at the Board’s meeting on 20" May 2011,
and

24 agrees to remit monitoring of the joint Improvement Plan to the
Stewardship Sub-Committee and instructs officers to submit regular
update reports to that Sub-Committee, with a final Report to be
submitted to the Board once all of the improvement actions are
implemented.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The proposed Improvement Plan does not contain any actions which have not
already been identified by the Board and Force for development. As such,
there are unlikely to be any unexpected financial implications flowing from the

Improvement Plan.

In terms of the recommendations around medium to longer term financial
planning, then the Improvement Plan should improve the Board’s ability to

Page 51



undertake this form of planning and monitoring, thereby having a positive
impact on future years.

SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

The findings of the Accounts Commission commend the Board for its
community engagement and leadership. Implementation of the Action Plan
should further strengthen the Board’s community participation.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

REPORT

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Members will be aware that the Local Government in Scotland Act
2003 introduced new statutory duties relating to Best Value and
Community Planning. Its provisions apply to police authorities and
require specifically that:

"1 Police authorities secure best value (defined as achieving
continuous improvement in the performance of functions)

71 Police authorities and chief constables participate in the community
planning process

Grampian Joint Police Board and Grampian Police were subject to a
Best Value 2 Audit and Inspection during June and July 2010. The key
objectives of the joint audit and inspection were to:

1 Assess the extent to which Grampian Joint Police Board and
Grampian Police are meeting their duties under the Local
Government in Scotland Act 2003 and complying with Scottish
Government guidance.

1 Agree planned improvements with the Local Authorities, Force and
the Board, to be reviewed by the external auditor and HMICS on an
ongoing basis.

As a consequence of the audit and inspection, a report has been
produced jointly by the Controller of Audit (Audit Scotland) and HMICS.
Key areas were identified where the Force and the Board need to
improve. These key areas are contained within the Improvement Plan
attached.

As stated above, the audit and inspection carried out by Audit Scotland
and HMICS sought to identify the extent to which the Board and
Grampian Police are meeting their duties under the Local Government
in Scotland Act 2003 and complying with Scottish Government
guidance. This was assessed against seven key areas, namely:

2
Page 52



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

Vision and Strategic Direction

Partnership Working and Community Leadership
Community Engagement

Governance and Accountability

Performance Management and Improvement
Use of Resources

Equalities and Sustainability

N Y O

Members will recall that the audit and inspection process involved the
submission of evidence by both the Force and the Board, including
Board reports and minutes. In addition, Members and community
planning partners were invited to complete a questionnaire and both
the Force and the Board submitted written statements outlining
performance against the key audit criteria. This was followed up by a
4-week site visit, during which time Audit Scotland and HMICS
interviewed Members, officers from the Board and Force, and other
interested parties. Audit Scotland and HMICS also observed Board
and sub-committee meetings.

Following completion of this site visit, a draft Report was prepared by
Audit Scotland and HMICS. The Force and the Clerk’s office were
given the opportunity to comment on the factual accuracy of the draft
Report. Thereafter a control version of the Report was prepared and
submitted to the Accounts Commission for consideration.

The Accounts Commission considered the control version of the Report
at its meeting on 20" January 2011. During this meeting,
Commissioners had the opportunity to seek further information and
clarification from Audit Scotland and HMICS, after which the Accounts
Commission determined its findings.

The Accounts Commission findings are set out at page 2 of the Report
and summarised as follows —

The Commission welcomed evidence of the elements of best value
demonstrated by the Board. In particular, the Commission welcomed
the report’s conclusions that—

(i) The Board has a good understanding of its role and has
established an active involvement and positive partnership with
the force in developing a shared vision and a clear set of
priorities.

(i) ~ The Board’s oversight ensures that the operations of the force
are clearly aligned with the agreed priorities.

(i) Board members actively question and challenge the force on
both strategic and operational matters in a constructive way that
focuses on supporting improvement.

(iv)  The Board plays an effective community leadership role on local
policing issues, and clearly demonstrates that it works to meet
the needs of communities at both a strategic and local level.

3
Page 53



6.9

The Commission welcomed the Board’s awareness of its own
improvement needs and commitment to addressing those needs and
recommended that it considers the following areas in particular—

(i)

Further development of its role in longer-term strategic financial
planning, and the use of its scrutiny role to ensure the best use
of resources. The Board also needs to develop its leadership
and challenge role to help realise further efficiencies through
various partnership and shared services initiatives.

Development of a more active role in informing and agreeing
continuous improvement priorities and monitoring progress, and
providing more strategic leadership on sustainability and
equalities issues.

Effective arrangements for an independent custody visiting
scheme must be implemented quickly.

Ensuring that its contribution to accountability and governance,
and its effective partnership with the force, is properly reported to
the public.

In continuing to review its governance arrangements, the Board
should address the fact that it is not good scrutiny practice for
the convener to chair its two main subcommittees.

In addition to the above, the Board is required to consider the specific
improvement recommendations made by Audit Scotland.

HMICS found that Grampian Police is performing well and that the
Force demonstrates many of the elements of best value. In particular:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Grampian Police benefits from an effective and appropriately
challenging working relationship with the Board and they have
worked in tandem to determine a strategic direction which has
community policing as its cornerstone.

The Force executive provides strong leadership and has created
a culture of performance improvement within the organisation.

Crime rates are falling within the Grampian Police area and
levels of public satisfaction are high and improving.

During 2010, the Force introduced a new policing model which
has delivered increased numbers of officers working and
patrolling within local communities.

The Report indicated areas where there is scope for the Force to
improve, particularly:

Page 54



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

(i) the Force should make efforts to better understand the causal
factors which are reflected in the rise in racially motivated crime
and complaints against the police

(i) there is scope for the Force to improve performance reporting by
incorporating more comparative information and to report
performance in a balanced way

(i)  the Force should have a better understanding of the costs of
specific policing activities to inform difficult decisions about
where resources will need to be directed in future to sustain
performance in priority areas.

The Board is required to consider the terms of the Report and the
Accounts Commission findings within three months of receipt and there
is a requirement to publicise this meeting within a local newspaper. As
such, a public notice was published within the Press and Journal on
Thursday 24" February. The Board is also required to produce a plan
which addresses the improvement agenda set out in the Report.

A template joint Improvement Plan has been prepared by the Force
and the Depute Clerk for consideration, and comment by the Board.
The completed Improvement Plan will set out each of the improvement
actions, assign ownership and suggest how the required improvements
will be achieved. It also details and impacts and consequences e.g.
resource implications. Members are invited to comment on the
required improvements and how these might be progressed.
Thereafter, the Depute Clerk and Deputy Chief Constable will work
jointly to populate the Improvement Plan. The completed Improvement
Plan shall be submitted to the next meeting of the Board for approval.

It is important to note that these improvements form part of a wider
action/development plan which is currently being implemented.
Members will recall that significant work has been undertaken over the
last couple of years to review and modernise the work of the Board.
This includes a wholesale review of Standing Orders, reworking of sub-
committee remits and role descriptions for Board Members. The
improvement actions identified by Audit Scotland and HMICS are
encompassed within this wider development action plan and as such,
the Report is a welcome endorsement of the Board’s direction of travel
in terms of its continuous improvement agenda.

It is recommended that responsibility for ensuring the delivery of the
joint Improvement Plan be remitted to the Stewardship Sub-Committee
as that sub-committee’s remit includes the implementation of best
value. It is intended that officers from the Force and Clerk’s office will
submit regular reports to the Stewardship Sub-Committee, updating
Members as to progress against the agreed action points. It is also
proposed that a further report be submitted to the Board once the
Improvement Plan actions have been implemented.

Members will note that some of the improvement recommendations
apply to the Force only. These recommendations will be incorporated

5
Page 55



into the Force business plans and progress will be reported quarterly
as part of the normal governance arrangements, with exception
reporting taking place on a monthly basis.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Karen M Donnelly, Depute Clerk to the Board
KDonnelly@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Telephone: 01224 522416

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None
Karen M Donnelly Colin McKerracher
Depute Clerk Chief Constable
23" February 2011 23" February 2011

Page 56



L 1L0Z AMenuqgad
ue|d JuswaAoiduwiyj Juior

uolj}oadsu| pue Jipny anjeA }sag
991]0d ueldwels) pue pieog 9921j0d Julor ueldwe.rs)

BAVS SII7IUNUWLOD AP0 bu1d/23)y @IvO9d 3D170d INIO[L NVIdWVID

3D+ +7-0-d £=2
NVIdNVED b

Page 57



‘ue|d Juswanoiduwi SIY) UIylIM pauIeluoD ale seale Aay
asoy] ‘eAosdwl O} pasu pleog 8y} pue 82104 8y} aloym pauyiuapl alem seale Aoy ‘puejjods Joy Alejngejsuo) Jo Joyadsu| s hisalep

JBH pue (puepoos lpny) Ipny jo Jajjonuo) ayy Agq Apuiol peonpold usaqg sey podad e ‘uonjoadsul pue jipne ay} Jo 8ouanbasuod e sy

‘siseq Buiobuo ue uo (SOJNH) puepoos Joy Alejngesuo)) Jo Joyadsu| s Aisaleln
JBH pue Jojipne |eulaxa AQ pamalnal 8q 0] ‘pieog 8y} pue 82104 ‘sanLoyiny |ed0T 8yl yum sjuaweroidwi pasuued saiby [
"aouepInb JusWUuIBA0L) YsIjjooS yim BulAidwoo pue £00Z 10V PUBI0IS Ul JUBWUIBA0L)

|[e00T 8y) Jepun sannp Jisy) Bunssw ale 82104 ueidwels) pue pleog 82104 uior ueidwels) 8yl YdIym Jusixe 8y} Ssessy [

:0} aJam uoljoadsul pue ypne julol ay) Jo seAjoalqo Aey ay |

"0L0Z AInf pue aunp usamiaq uonoadsu| pue Iipny Z anjeA 1seg e 0] 10algns alem 821j04 ueldwels) pue pieog 892104 ior ueldwels

'ssa20.d Buluue|d Alunwwod sy ul sledioiued sa|qejsuod Jaiyd pue saljlioyine adljod [

(suonouny jo souewiopad 8y} ul JuswaAcidwi snonuiuod BulAsIyoe Se pauljap) anjeA 1Seq 81ndas Salllioyine 8oljod [

1yl Ajjeolyioads asinbali pue sanuoyine aoljod 0} Aidde suoisinoid
s)| ‘Buiuueld Alunwwon pue anjep 1seg 0] Bunejal sennp Aiojnjels mMau padsnpojul €002 10V PUBOOS Ul JUSLUUIBAOL) |BO0T 8y

NOILONAO™.LNI
A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 58



"9a)ILIWOD qns SAD| Sl pue pleog ay) yioq Agq mainal Jejnbai Jo 109lgns ay) aq

(M (SHSIA WO} SUOIEPUBWILIODSI/SBWO02IN0 8y} Buipnjoul) awayos ay| :(sypuow zZL/9/s 19k "6-9) ¢ palinbay sjuswabuely malnay a1y g

"8WBYOS B Yyons aAeY 0] Juswalinbal ay) yum buiAidwod

Agaiay) @oe|d ul swayog Buluonouny e aAey |IM piseog ay] :(paaaiyoe sbuiaes ‘paulelqo sjiyauaq ajdwexa a0j) abueyd jo joedw) 2

@a)llWo) gns SAD| 9dro eyl Yyum uonoun(uog ul SIe@8junjoA [eUonippe 1INIOa) pue awayos
8y JasIulLIpe 0] 8NUIIUOD [|IM 82110 S MI8|D 8y} UIyIM Saoinosal Bunsixg :(23e Quawdinbg ‘jauuosiad ‘@oueul{) paiinbay sadinosay °9

1102 22Q S198]JUN|OA Jayuny} Jo Juswyinioal aye|dwo) | (9)

SOA LLoZ Aein SUsIA Apojsno souswwo) | (q)

SOA 1102 |udy SI199JUN|OA JO BABM [Bl})IUI JO JuBwInIoal el dwo) | ()

pajejdwor o|easawi] jysel °N
! ysel

WI9|D aindaq pleog a21j0d uior ueldwels) :Ajjiqisuodsay peaq g

aweyog buluonouny Ajny e Jusws|dwi 0] :udye} aq 0} Uoldy

‘Palle}

le @ABY 8S8y) Ing PaonpoJiul sem Alnp ay) aouls sieak ay) JaAo SAD| Ue ysiigeise o) sjdwa)e |eianas usaq aAey aiay] :(suljeseq) uoiisod ¢

"S1921440 JBIYd Ym uoneynsuod ul bunisia Apoisno juspuadapul Jo AIsAlBp 8y} 98SI8A0 pue asiueblo 0] aAey spleoq adljod ‘eoe|d
ul SADI leuonelado ue aney Ajjualind Jou SB0p pleog a91j0d Julor ueldwels) :uoijepuawwiodal 0} buipea] Juajuod punoibyoegpioday g

(SADI) 8weayog Bumsip

Apoisny Juspuadapu] 8A8YS UB SIBAISP 1l 1Byl 8INsSud Isnw pieog ay] "AMIqelunoody pue 92UBUISAOL) | "ON UOHBPUSWIWOIdY °|

"(9dro) pseog a821j0d juior ueidwels
JOUMQO UOIIepUBWIWIOIDY

| LOZ Aenuer
:9)9|dwo)H uonepUAWWOIY djed JpeouUBWIWO) UOePUAWIWOIDY deq

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 59



‘J|9S) pJeog ay} 0} paniwgns aq os|e |m suodal Jeinbay “dnolb gns j196png pue dnois Bupjiom

awdojaaa s,pieog ay) Ag paioyuow aq ||im swwelboisd Bulutesy sy :(sypuow gL/9/€ 4oye ‘b6-a) ¢ palinbay sjuswabuelly MaIAdYy aly *

8

‘Buiuue|d ao1nosas wJia) buo| Buloyuow pue Buidojaasp

ul 8Aoe0Id 810w BWwo098q 0} abpaimouy ay) aaey |Im siaquis|:(paAalyoe sbulaes ‘pauie)qo sjyauaq ajdwexa J1oy) abueys jo joedw

L

‘palinbal aq Jayealay) Aew seoinosal |eulalx] "S8dIAIeg 81elodlo) S,80104 8Y) pue pleog ay) 0} Jainseal| 8y JO 8010 8] Wol)

SJ901J0 AQ @ouUe)sul S} 8Y) Ul pataAlap aq |Im Juawdojaaap pue bBuluiely ay] (930 Quawdinbz ‘jouuos.iad ‘@oueui) paiinbay s921nosay °9
()
L LOZ aunr dnoub gns j96png ay) Jo} sbunesw Jo a|gelowl) e Jo Juswdojanaq (q)
L Loz Aey Buluueld |eloueuly 81 SlaquUIB|A JO} UOISSSS Buisiel Ssaualeme [elju| (e)
9)9|dwo a|eoasawil se ON
p339] J | 1L ysel yse |
Wa|D 8yndaq pieog 821|104 wior ueidwels) :Ajjiqisuodsay pea G
Buiuueld jeloueuly wia) buo| 0] wnipaw pue buliojuow }a6png axeuapun 0} }@aw |IM dnolb gns }abpng s pieog ay) ‘uonippe
U] "slaquwiay Joj papianoid aq |m Buluiesy Aunios/buluueld [eloueul) pajielap aiow uay) pue Bululel) SSaualeme |eljiu] :uaye} aqg 0} uoldy ‘y
's}@bpnq J10}08s 21gnd ul suononpal
pajedionue ay} 0} puodsal 0} spuajul JI Moy jno Buiyas ‘ebueyo Joy ABajens wis) Jabuo| e Buidojaasp mou s| 82104 ay] :(saul@seq) uonisod ‘s
"9|geule)sns jou aJe ainjipuadxa
JO S|9A9| JUB.IND By} Jey)] SI82140 pue slaquaw Buowe pasiubooal Ajppim si )| ‘Buiuueld [eloueuly wis)-buo| ul paAjoAul Aj@Aljoeold aiow awooaq
0] paau siaquiaw pleoq ‘alnjipuadxa olgnd ul suolonpal Jolew JO X8jU0d 8y} U] :uoljepuawiwodal 0} buipes] Juajuod punouabyoegioday -z
‘Aj@1eudoidde paoinosal ale seale Ajoud
ainsua djay 0] Buluue|d aainosal wiv)-Buo| Ul aAoeO0Id 8I10W BWO029(q O} SPAdaU pJeog 8y | "S824JN0SAY JO SN Z "ON UOIBPUSWWOIDY |
(gdro) pieog a91j0d juior ueldwels L LOZ Aenuep
1JI9UMQ UOIJEPUBWIWIOIDY :9)9|dwo ) uoljepuawWWoIdy ajeq :pasusaWWOY) UuolepuUBWWOIdY 3djeq

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 60



‘palinbal suo :(syjpuow zL/9/¢ 19y ‘b6-9) i palinbay sjuswabuelly MaINY aly °g

Jualedsuel) alow aq ||Im sjuswabuelle ay) pue pJeog 8y} JO YJOM Y] 8sIunnIosS
Japeq o) uonisod e ul aq [[IM S88)ILIWOD gns ulew s pieog ay] :(paasiyoe sbulaes ‘pauilelqo sjyauaq ajdwexa Joj) abueys jo Joedw| 2

38D 8y} Jo 821)J0 8y} Ulyym seoinosal Bunsix3 (938 Quawdinbg ‘jauuos.iad ‘@oueul-{) paiinbay s82inosay 9

(9)

(q)

J1eyd
S8A L10¢ WIen Jo uonisod ay) JapISu0oaI 0] SEBNIWILIOD NS Y} JO SI8qUIB|A SIAU| ()
ON
pejajdwon ajeasawi] asel ysel

WI9|D aindaq pleog a21j0d uior ueldwels) :Ajjiqisuodsay peaq g

Jleyo Jo uonisod 8y} 0] 8oualaal YIIM pamalAal 8d O] Il 98))ILUW0D gns Yoes Jo uonoun) Aunnios sy :uaye} aq o} Uonody

"1 1L0Z 4O Japenb puooas ay) ul sjuswabuelle aoueulanob ay) mainal 0} sueld pieog ay| :(suljeseq) uonisod ‘¢

‘pJeog a8y} pue 82104 8y} JO sdouewlopad ay) 8sSIUljNIOS 0} SI S8_ILIWIOD NS 8y} Jo Jwal 8y} jo ped se aoioeld

poob Jou SI SIY| "Se_WWOD gns Ylog Slieyd os|e Ajjualind pieog ayj JO JousAuo) ay) Ing ‘eouewlopad 8210} Buisiunnios Aq AjaAioaye

ajelado spuie|dwoo pue diyspiemals uo S8ajlIlIWOoI-gns ulew oM] S,pieog ayl "600Z Ul MalAal e pajebisul pue sjuswabuelle aoueulanob
S}l 0} @pew aq p|noo sjuswanoidwi Jayuny jey) pasiubooal pleog ay] :uoljepuawiwodal o) Buipes] Juajuos punoubyoegpioday g

"S@8)ILIWO02-gns diyspiema)s pue sjuiejdwos ay) Buuieyo Joj sjuswsbuelle Jusiind ay) Buipnjoul ‘suonoe juswaAoidwi Aue
Juswajdwi pue soueUIBA0B JUBLIND S)I JO MBIABI 8Y) 8)8]dw oo pjnoys pJeog 8y "AJ[IeIUN02dY pue 92UBUISAOL) € "ON UOIIEPUSWWO29Y 'L

"(9dro) pseog a821j0d juior ueidwels
JOUMQO UOIIepUBWIWIOIDY

:9)9|dwo) uoiepUAWWOIdY djeq

| LOZ Aenuer
JpeouUBWIWO) UOePUAWIWOIDY deq

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 61



-abe)s )Jelp je Yoogpuey 8y} Uo JUSLIWOD Uy} pue MalAal 0] PajiAul ] [|IM

slaquisi\ |IY “pJeog 8y} 0} podal |jim dnolg) Buiop Juswdojeaaq ay] :(sypuow gL/9/c 1oy "b9) i palinbay sjuswabuelly MaIAdY aly '8

"9]0J JI9Y} UI }SISSE 0] |lenuew Ajpuall) Jasn B aABY OS|e [|IM Jaquial ‘pJeog ay) bunoaye syuswdojaasp mau Jo abpaimouy ajep 01 dn ue
aABY puUE 8|0l JIaY) axeuapun 0} pasamodws Japaq aq |Im slaquia|) :(paAaiyoe sbuiaes ‘pauilelqo sjyauaq ajdwexa Joj) abueys jo joedw| -2

sainssald peoyJom [euonippe Jay)o o) 108lgns aq

[[IM JoABMOY ‘92110 S }J8[D Y] UIyIIM S804nosal AQ usyeuapun aq [[IM dJom siy] (939 Quawdinbg ‘jauuos.iad ‘esueulq) palinbay saainosay -9

Buiob-up L L0Z 98Q s92inosal buioddns Jayjo pue yoogpueH siaquiaj e Jo Juswdojaraq (9)

Buiob-up L 1L0Z 1890100 slaquia|\ Jo} swwelboid Buluiel) pajielap e Jo Juswdojanag (q)

SOA L LOZ yolen dnous) Buppop) Juswdoas(] Jo Juswysiigelsy (e)

pajo|dwon ajeoasawl| yse] °N
! yse]

Wa|D 8yndaq pieog 821|104 wior ueldwels) :Ajjiqisuodsay pea G

"slequua|\ pue pJeog ayj yjoq Joj poddns Aoljod pue yosessal Jayealb

apInoid 0} 821440 S )JB[D BY) Ul swiy dn aau) pjnoys yoiym pleog ayj 4o} woddns aanelsiuilupe ayj 0} uoljejal ul papiroid Buiaq si woddns jeuonippy

‘sBunesw pieog Jaye aoe(d e} 0}

suoissas Bulutes) buipnjoul ‘1.0z 40 jley ,,,Z Jono padojersp aq 0} sjuswinoop poddns pue swwelboid Bululel| ‘siaquis|\ pieog Joj s80In0osal
uoddns Jayjo pue Buiuiely Jo Juswdo|aAap 8y) Ul SIaquIs|\ SAJ0AUI 0) paysi|gelse uaaq sey dnolb Buniom Juswdojoasq v :uaye} aq 0} uody ‘y

"Hodal malnal BAljeAISIUILIPE SJ0)ipnE [euldlul 8y} Bullapisuod ale |1ouno) AlD usaplaqy je siebeuely :(suljdseq) uoiisod ¢

‘Slequiawi 1o} sisAjeue spasu Buluiel) e Jo ped se SIouNnod Jusn}isuod

sJaqwaw Aq papiroid Buluiel) ay) Buimainal Ajjualind ale Jeis Jay pue 3|0 ay| ‘siequuaw 0} Ajoeded yoleasal/aAleasiuilupe ay) buinoidwil
Joy} suondo jo abuel e palnuapl sey Jo)ipne [euidul 8y} AQ MaIASI Juddal Y :uoljepuawiwiodal 0} buipea] Juajuod punoibyoegpioday g

‘Al@reudosdde paalnosal Buleq ale asay) ainsus 03 sjuswabuelle JuswdoaAasp pue Bululely pue poddns
dAleJISIUIWPE. 8] JO MBIASI BU) JO SUOIIBPUSLILLIODaI JOPISUOD pinoys pJeog ay] ‘AJjIqejunod9y pue 32UeUIdAO0L) {7 "ON UOIJEpUSWIWIOIdY °|

‘(gdro) pseog 821j0d juior ueidwels

| LOZ Aenuer

:I9UMQ UOIJePUBWIWIOZdY | :3}9]dWwo) UOIEPUBWILIOIY dje( :paOUBWILIOS UOIIEPUSWIWOIdY dje(

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 62



‘JJas) pJeog ay) Aq Ajlenuue pamainal 89 [|IM SIY] :(sypuow gL/9/€ 4ok "b-a) ¢ palinbay sjuswabuelly MaIAdY aly g

"saljIAIl0e asoy) Jo uonesnuioud pue Buluueld ayy 8suanjjul 0} paoe|d Janeq ag [|IM pue jJuswaAoidwi SNoNUUOD
JO solueyoaw ayj Jo Buipuejsiepun iajealb e aAey ||IM siaquiai :(paaaiyoe sbuiaes ‘paulelqo sjiyauaq ajdwexa 1o0j) abueyd jo Joedw -2

"HUN JuawaAodw| snonuiuo) S,82104 ay) wolj senbes)||od
ypm uonounfuod ul 80140 s )I8|D 8y} Woly Jeis Aq usyeuspun aq ||IM dJom siy] (939 Quawdinbg ‘jouuos.iad ‘@aueul{) paiinbay s90i1nosay °9

(0)
buiuue|d pue Abojopoylowl
L10C AON JuswaAoJdwi sSnoNuUOD al siaquisly Jo Bulelg/buluiely ayeudoiddy (a)
do ‘AuAnoe Juswanoidwi snonunuod Buisnuoud pue Buiuueld )
L10c ¥des Jo} ssaoo0.d ay) buipsebal sapiwwod gns diyspiemals o) yodeay
ON
pajojdwo) ajeosawi] ysel ysel

WI9|D aindaq pleog a21j0d uior ueldwels) :Ajjiqisuodsay peaq g

‘ue|d jJuswanoidwi snonuiUOd s Jeak yoea Bulealbe pue Buiwiojul Agq saljiAoe Juswaoldwl Snonuiuod
$,80104 8y} Buisnuoud pue Buiuueld ul 8|01 aAljoeold B aABY |IM 8810 gns dIyspiemals 8y} BIA pleog Y] :ud)ye} aq 0} Uuoidy

"saljIAIoe asay) Buluueld ul 8|01 8AoROId OU SBY 991ILULIOD Jey) JOASMOY ‘93)lILuW0))
gns diyspiemals ayj eIA pieog 8y} 0] pauodal SsI juswaAoidwl SNONUIJUOD 81 82104 8} JO YoM ayj Juasald 1y :(sauljaseq) uonisod 'S

"suonoe uonoadsul SH|NH uo ssaiboud Buuojuow ul Jo sanoud JuswaAoidul

snonunuod BuiApuapl ul 8]0 aAoe ue sAejd pJeoq ay) jey) }1sebbns 0] aouspine 3| SI alay | ‘dswwelboid mainal S,80104 8y} SISpISUOD

aaplwwoo-gns diyspiemals ay) pue saAneniul pue sjoaloid [enpialpul uo spodal ajepdn saAlgoal pieog ay] "AuAnoe juswaAoldwi SnONURUOD
$,80104 8y Buuoyuow Jo Bunjoalip ul 8]0J JB3JO B BARY JOU SB0p pleog ay| :uolepuawiwodal o) Buipes] Juajuo) punoibyoegpioday g

"Yiom juswanoidwi Jo Buuoyuow pue adoos ‘uonesnuoLd
a1 uo 82104 8y} yum Ajeanoeold alow abebus pjnoys pieog sy ‘jJuswaAoiduw] pue jJuswabeue|y aouewIouad G "ON UOJBPUSIWLIOIdY |

"(9dro) pseog a821j0d juior ueidwels
JOUMQO UOIIepUBWIWIOIDY

:9)9|dwo) uoiepUAWWOIdY djeq

L LOZ Asenuer
JpeouUBWIWO) UOePUAWIWOIDY deq

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 63



‘aoe|d ul ale
sjuswabuelie pajepdn 80UO0 M3IASJ [enuue Ue Jo 10algns ay} aq ||IM SIY ] (sypuow zZ L/9/c 1oye "6°8) ¢ palinbay sjuswabuelly MalAdy aly '8

sansslI salljenba Buiuoidweyd pue Buissasse 0} uonejal ul
9j0J diysiapes| pue Auinios aAidse alow ayeuspun |Im pleog ay| :(paAaiyose sbuiaes ‘paulelqo spjauaq ajdwexs aoj) abueyd jo Joedw)| 2

WIB|D Y} JO 8211J0 BY} UIYJIM SI82140 AQ usyeuspun aq [|IM YIom sIy | (938 Quawdinbg ‘Jauuosiad ‘@oueuly) paiinbay sa2inosay "9

(9)

1 1L0Z AON pieog o) papioday a9 0} uonejuswaldwi pue SIS Jo MaIASY | (q)
SOA 0102 AON uolnjew.ojul senijenbs apnjoul 0} suodal pieog puswy | (e)
ON
pajejdwo) ajeossauwil] yse] ysel

Wa|D 8yndaq pieog a21|0d wior ueidwels) :Ajjiqisuodsay pea G

‘pepuslIe pue pamalnal aq [|IM uonelado s) pue SIS 8y} uonippe u| "anssi saijjenbs Jo UoNelapISU0D 8pNnjoul S8ANEIIUI pUB SUOISIDap
le 1ey1 ainsus 0} pajejdwod aq pinoys Yyoiym uonoss joedwi saiijenbs ue apnjoul 0} pepuswe aq |IM suodal s pJeog ay] :uaye} aq 0} Uonoy

"'SSaUISNg pJeog Ojul palojoe)
ale sanss| saljenba moy pue (,S3S,) awayosg Ajjenb3 a|bulg s pieog ay) buimalnal Ajjuaind si yig|) aindaqg syl :(suldseq) uonisod ‘¢

0edwl palisap

ay) Buiney si Ayanoe pajejal sanijenba Aue jey) jjosi ainsse 0} Japlo ul 8oe|d ul sainseaw ajelidoidde sey )l Jayjaym JapISUod 0} Spasu os|e

1| “sanssI salljenba uo diysiapes| Jaies|o apinoid 0] spasau pieog ay] "saljijenbs wealjsuiew o0} sdejs pajiwi| uaye) sey pieog ay] “uoneuwoul

sIy) abusjjeyo 1o Auipnios aAljoR JO 80USPIAS 9| SI 818y} INg ‘Spual) pue safsiiels aslopiiom uo suodal Jeinbal pue swayos Ayjenbs ajbuls
$,80104 8y} uo suodal aouewlopad Ajjenba AeaA-jey senieoal pieog ay| :uopepusawwiodal o} buipes| Jusajuon punoibyoeg fioday -z

‘sanss| sanljenba Jo Aunnios pue diysiepes| s)i usyibuals pjnoys pJeog ay| "saiijenbz 9 "ON uoiepusawWIWodY °|

(9dro) pieog 82104 uior ueidwels
JOUMQ UOIIEpUBWIWIODDY

| LOZ Aenuer

:9)9|dwo9 uonepUSWIWOIdY djeq :paoUBWIIO) UOIjepUBWIIOIBY dje(

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 64



"JOM SIY} 8enapun 0] pasn aq [|IM Juswnedaq "ulpy @ 8ouUBUI4 UIYIM S82inosal Bunsixg

(939 Quawdinb3 ‘jouuos.iad ‘@dueul) paiinbay sa2Inosay 9

‘ue|d pa)soo
LLoz Ainp AjIny wey Jabuoj e Jo Juswdojaasp 8y} JapISuod pue Z -1 10z 10} 18bpng (p)
panoidde ay) Buisn g [aAa7 sIsAleuy aA3oalqO 921104 ay) a1e|dwo)
"11-010g 40} ainjipuadxa
L0z Aep [enjoe ay) buisn g [8A87 sIsAleuy aA3oalqO 921104 8y} a1e|dwo) (0)
110z udy Moeqpas} malAal pue siap|oy 1ebpng Aay @)
. pue Jels JoIuaS ‘SIopuewWwOo) |BUOISIAI O] UOIjewIOojul 81edIUNWWOY)
"L 1-010g 40} 396pnq
L10C Uoien panoidde ay) Buisn g [9A87 sIsAleuy aA3oalqO 921104 ay) a1e|dwo) (e)
ON
pajs|dwon ajeoasawl| yse] sseL

"S90IAI9S 8)elodio) ‘UonesIuIWPY @ 80UBUI4 ‘JUBIUNODDY [eloueuld Joluag :Ajjiqisuodsay pea] G

"uoljepuawiLLIodal sIy) 0} pJebal yum usye) aq 0} UOIO. 8y SUIjINO MOJaq SYSe) 8| :udye} aq 0} uondy

‘1JBIS pue SI9IlO 991|0d 10} S1s09 Aed ay) uo sI puads Jo Jusws|e

1s9b661q ay | "pasedw 0o aq ued souewlopad pue s}S0d ay) Jsulebe yiewyouaq |njasn e aq 0} buinoud si 1l ‘sisAjeue sy} 1no BulAled ale sadi0
USINOo9S [|e SY "92104 8y} UIYIM SUOIjoUN) pUB SBIJIAIOE JUSIBYIP B} SSOIOE S)SOD JO UMopyealq e sapinoid SIY| “Z |oAST] pajielap alow ay)
1e ABojopoyiaw sisAjeuy aAoalqo 821104 ay) buisn 186png anuanal | -0 0Z 84} bunsedal usaq Ajjuaoal sey 92104 ay| :(suljaseq) uonisod °s

"JUBWISBAUI Jey} AQ paAalyoe SaWo2)No 8y} pue pajSaAul S821n0sal usamiaq diysuone|al ay) ajen|eAs 0} JNdIYIP I Sayew
siy] ‘Buiesp bnip Bunebue) Jo s1s00 oy} ajdwexs Joy ‘sanianoe Buioijod oioads Jo s3s00 ay) Jo Buipueisiapun padojesp ss9| e sey ‘puejjoos
SS0.0B $82104 Y}IM UoWwWo9 Ul ‘Ing ‘[osjuod Aielebpng Buoldis sey 80104 8y :uoljepuawiwiodal o) buipea| Jusajuos punoibyoeg fioday -z

‘pasiiold aie s821n0sal MOY JNOge SUOISIoap Wojul 0) djay pue ‘s)nsaJ pue sadInosal Usamlaq yul| 8y} alesisuowap
0] JopJo ul AJIAIOe JO seale JO S)S02 ay] Jo Buipuelsiapun Jaleg|o e 1ab 0] spaau 80104 8y "9oueuld Buibeuepy / "ON uonEpuUBWIWOIDNY °|

891|104 ueldwels
1J9UMQ UOIJEPUBWILIOIDY

| LOZ Aenuer
:9)9|dwo)H uonepUAWWOIY djed JpeouUBWIWO) UOePUAWIWOIDY deq

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 65



ol

"JUBWIUIBAOS) YSI}I00S 8y} pue sio)ipny Buipnioul suojesiuebio jeulsixa AQ pue 82104 Ul MalAal 0} 193lgns aq |Im uoljewlojul 8y |
:(sypuow zL/9/c 10k "6°9) ¢ palinbay sjuswabuelly MaIAdY a1y '8

"$90104 Jaylo
yum Bunjlewyouad Joj} Mojje pue Buiyew Uoisioap o) UoiewIoUl Ja)laq apiAo.d [[IM SSIAIOE 8U] OJul S}S00 JO UMOPYEaIq 8y) Jey) papuaul si |
:(panaiyoe sbBuiaes ‘paulejqo sjyouaq ajdwexs Joy) abuey jo jpedw| 2

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 66



Ll

"apew aq 0} souewlopad s,821j04 ueldwels) JO JUBISSaSSe

Ja||n] B MOJ|e 0] S82.104 JBYJ0 WOJ} uoiew.ojul aAneledwos Yyum Japeal ay) apiroid [im suodas souewlouad Alleuenb pesiaal pasodoad ay |

:(panaiyoe sbuiaes ‘paulelqo spjauaq ajdwexs 10j) abuey jo Joedw| g

"MJOM SIU} @epapun 0] pasi|in aq ||IM Hun JuswaAocidw| @ 8ouUBWIOLad 8y} WoJ) S8oinosal bunsixg

(939 Quawdinb3 ‘jouuos.iad ‘@aueul) paiinbay sa2inosay 9

LLoz Ainp ‘Buipodal souewuopad Aapenb oy syejdwa) mau Jo asn sduswwod) | (9)
L L0z aunr ‘a)e|dwa) mau pasodoud uo aAlnNoaxg 82404 wody Juswaalbe uieyqo | (q)
¢L110¢
L10¢ sune Jo} ajejdwa) buiodas aouewsopad AjJapenb 82104 mau e dojeasg (e)
ON
pajojdwon ajeosawi] ysel ysel

"90UBUIBAOS) R Juswdolaraq ‘ebeuey Juswaaoidw] g aouewlousad :Ajjiqisuodsay pea °G

"uonewlojul Jauenb snoiraid ay) aq

[IIM $82104 Jayjo wol) sasodind aAesedwod oy pauodal elep ay) ‘a|qejieAe aq ||IM (Jodal Aapenb SO4OY) $82104 Jayio wol) eyep ayl I1S|IYAA

"gouewlopad Jo JuswSSasse pawloyul alow e uleb Japeals ay djay 0} ejep aAlesedwod
apnjoul [Im yoiym padojansp aq |m (Z1/11L.02) peaye JeaAh |eioueul) ay) 1o} ajejdwa) souewlouad Ajuauenb 82104 mau Y :udye} aq 0} Uoijoy ‘v

‘'sasodind aAnesedwod / Bunewyousaq

Joj pasn ag ued uonewlojul siy] (4d4dS) Jlomawel4 aosuewlopad Buloljod Yysijpoos ayl ul papnjoul siojeaipul ay} uo uodal yaiym paysiignd
uaaq aAey suodal souewsopad Allepenb SOOIV ‘010 Jequads aoulS “ejep ajelndoe Ajdwi JO ¥oe| 8y} 0} anp Uoljewloul Yiewyouaq
apN|oul Jou p|nod spodas aouewlopad 82104 ay) ‘uondoadsul pue Jipne puejoas 1PNy / SOINH 24l Jo awn ay 1y :(suljdseq) uonisod °¢

‘ojelidoidde alteym ‘sanjoslqo |eoo) oioads jsuiebe pue spualy 1o sainbly [euonjeu apisbuoje pauodal aiam sainseaw ay) JIl souewlouad ||eleno
ssasse 0} uonisod Jayeq e ul 8q pjnom 21ignd a8y} pue siaquiaw pleog aouewlopad JO JUsWSSaSSe pauliojul aiow e uieb Japeal ay) djay
0] ,SyJewyousaq, uiejuod Ajgunnod Jou op Aay) se panoidwi aq pjnod suodal 8y :uoljepuawiwodad o) Buipes] Jusajuo) punoibyoeg ioday -z

‘Buipodal souewuopad Jo aouejeq pue Ajjenb

ay) aAoidwi 0) uoiewlojul sAneledwod 810w 8sn pNoYs 82404 8y] “JuawaAoidw] @ Juswabeuel aouewIoudd § "ON UOEPUSWIWIOIdY |

891|0d ueldwels
1J9UMQ UOIBPUBWILIOIDY

L LOZ Aenuer
:9)9|dwo)H uonepUAWIWOIY djed JpeoUBWIWO) UOEPUAWIWOIDY 3k

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 67



¢l

"Z1/1 102 JeaA |eloueul) 8y} JO pus 8y} 1B uayeuapun aq [[IMm a)e|dwa) mau 8y} JO MaIABl Y
:(sypuow zL/9/¢ 10)e "6°8) ¢ paiinbay sjuswabuelly MaIndYy a1y 6

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 68



€l

‘paso|2 pue pabpajmounde S| uoljepuswiwosdl siy} jey) pasodoud si )1 a10ja19y] 99 ILIWIOD) Gd o JueAajal ay} ybnoayy
Apuanbasqns pue 82404 ul swnipaw Jayjo ybnouy} paiojiuow pue passaippe Buiaqg Apeadje si uoijepusawiwiodas siy} ‘Alewwins uj

(98pIWWoD

diyspiemals) gdro oy 0} pauodad aq ||Im SBWOIN0 8y} punole ssalboud pue souewlopad ay) Ajleuly pue (ueld sseuisng uoddng Ajlunwwo)
By} uIyum pauiejuod si Ayjenbg 0} uonejal ul UodY By} Se) pJeoyg dAIINJaX] 82104 (dnoic) AlSIaAIg 82404 U] BIA paulaAob pue painsesw

aq |[IM YDIym ue|d uonoy ue ojul pooylay [|e ul ‘padojaasp aq |IMm SBWO02IN0 passnoo) Juswabebus/uoe)nsuod Jo synsal ay) buimojjo4

‘palojiuow
aq |m pue abie| aq 0] pajedionue 10U a4 YJOM SIU]) YIIM Pa)eIdossSe SIS09 [eniu] "ssad0.d SIy) Ul pasi|iin aq [|IM Jojeulpio-00) Juswabebug
Alunwiwo? ay) Jo 80inosal 8y Juswabebus pue UoONE)NSUOD YoNs JoNpUod ||IM 80104 ueldwels) ayeldn Jo sse|pJebal ing seniunyoddo
Buiaes 1S00 aseaJoul/anbie) uole)NSU0D JO Ysl 8y} 8anpad 0} Apulol 3Nsuod 0} saiousbe Jauled 0] apew aq ||IM JaJJo Uy ‘Sannp

|eJouab Aioinjels ay) 0] uone|al Ul ‘,SonslsloeIRYD 8AN98104d, YliM 8soy) Buipnjoul ‘saiiunwiwiod Yyim Buisiel] 82104 8y 98s |im Juswabebus siy |

"oseyd bBuiuueld ay} ui sI uoneynsuod Jo pouad e sanng Ayjjenb3 0} uonejal ul UOIONJISUI JUBSWUIBAOS) USIN0OS 8y} paspul

pue uonepuswwodal ay) yum bunssw u| ‘uoddng Ajunwiwo) Jo ped S| J0jeulpioo) awayosg Ajjenb3 82404 sy pue Ajjenb3 o) uonejal

ul suonebi|qo sy ypm saidwod 82104 ay} ainsus o0} Ayjiqisuodsal aaey poddng Ajunwwo) -Aing Ajjenb3 1030ag algnd - 0102 1oV Aljenb3

ay} yym asueldwod sy Jo swud) ul Ajuoyine olgnd e se 82404 ay) uodn paoe|d suonebijqo Aiojnies Agq pajeolidal si uonepuswwosal Siy |
:uaye)} aq 0} uondy

"BaJE SIY} Ul YJOM S,82104 8y} Jo Joedwi 8y} JO uonedipul ue aAIB ||IM uiny SI SIY| “uolewlolul siy}

ainydeo 0} aoe|d ul }nd aq ||IM sainseaw ‘pajsanbal se podal 0) 82104 8y} Moje 0 “uonedlignd [eniul JO SIeaA JNo) UIYIM PaMaIASS SBWOIINO

ay] pue sieak om) A1ons ises| je paysiignd aq 0} 8ABY SBWOIINO0 8s8Y}) Uo apew ssalbold ayj ‘siy} 0} Joyun4 “sonsusioeleyd psjosajold

ypum ajdoad Jo JuswaA|OAUl BY} YlIM payoeal usaq aAeY Yoiym sawodino Ajjenba ysijgnd pue aledaid 0} pasinbal aie a21j04 ueidwels)
Buipnjour ‘Ajoyine [eoo] yoes ‘| L0z suonenbay (puepodg) (senng Alonieis) 010z 10V Alenb3 ay] jo ped sy :(sulj@seq) uonisod °¢

‘apew sey JI JuswisaAul 8y} Jo joedwl a8y} ssasse 0} siojedlipul dojeasp
0] SPaau MOoU 82104 8] ‘sainpadoid Bunesado piepuels pue sassadold pue swalsAs ‘salbajelis Buidojonap ul pajsaaul sey }| ‘sanijenba
Jo Buiweansuiew ay) buioddns ul ssalboud poob Buiew si 80104 8y :uoljepuawiwiodal o) buipea| Jusajuos) punoibyoeg fioday -z

"BaJe SIY] Ul YJoM
S1l Jo Joedwi 8y} SS8SSE 0] JapIo Ul sainseaw saljijenbs passnoo)-awoo)no dojeAsp 0] Spasu 82104 8y "sanljenb3 g "ON UOEPUBWIWIOddY |

901|0d ueidwels) | LOZ Aenuer
1J3UMQ UOIJePUAWIIOIY :9)9|dwo)H uonepUAWWOIY djed JpeouUBWIWO) UOePUAWIWOIDY deq

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 69




142

((sypuow zL/9/¢ 49k "6-9) ¢ palinbay sjuswabuely maIndy aly 8

:(panaiyoe sbuiaes ‘paulelqo syyauaq ajdwexa 10j) abueyd jo joedw) -2

(939 Quawdinb3 ‘ouuos.iad ‘@oueulq) paiinbay s90i1nosay °9

(9)

(q)

(e)

pajojdwo)

ajeoasauwil] jysel xmu 1

‘Woddng Ajlunwwo) quapusiuiadng :Ajjiqisuodsay pea g

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 70



Gl

‘01/600¢ Ut 6.8 0} £L0/900C

Ul 61 WO} pa|gnop JsoWe aABY SaLWLIO pajeAllow Ajjeloel pauodal Jo Jaquinu ay] "01/600Z Ul #9S 01 /0/900Z Ul Ot WoJ) pasealoul ueidwels)

Ul SJUSpIoUI 1SIoRI JO Jaquunu 8y "Saljjensed peos uo souewlopad uo JuswaAoidwi Jusdal 8yl NUNUOD O} S82IN0sal JUsIoINS BuIWWwo9

SI ]I JaY18yM SIBpISU0D 82104 8y} 1ey) Jueniodwi S }| "puBpoos Ul 1saybiy puooss ay) Sem pue G/ | Jo abeiaAe ysnoog ay) uey) Jaybiy
Apuesiiubis sem siy) ‘syuspioul 000‘0} Jed siuieldwod ¢ alem a1sy) 0/600Z Ul :uolepuawiwiodal 0} Buipes| Juajuon punoibyoegioday 'z

"S]uspIooe Oljel) peol

pue sBnip pajjonuod Buipioe) ul Ajrendolidde seoinosas Buikodap si )i Jayiaym ssasse pue A|Buipioooe puodsal pue swid pajeAlow Ajeioel
pue sjule|dwoo ul 8sealoul 8Y) J0) SUOSEaI 8U) 8SAeue Jayun) 0] SPaaU 82404 8| JUBWISSISSY 9OUBULIOLIDd (] "ON UOBPUSWIWOIdY |

891|104 ueldwels
1J9UMQ UOIJEPUBWILIOIDY

:9)9|dwo) uoiepUAWWOIdY djeq

| LOZ Aenuer
JpeouUBWIWO) UOePUAWIWOIDY deq

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 71



9l

‘Bunesw 9| | 92104 8y} pue sbunasaw juswabeuely [eojoe] YgND 8y} ybnouy) pabeuew Ajnjaied si sODO isulebe

$92JN0Ssal JO JuswAo|dep 8y | ‘SA0Qe PauljINo Se sjsalle pue Yseo ‘sbnip pajjojuod Jo A1sAodal 8y} pue sOOQ Jo Jaquinu e Jo uondnusip
3y} ul pa)nsas sey yoeoudde pasiaal siy] ‘eade ueldwels) ay) ul (s9DQ) sdnous) swu) pasiuebi) ayoe} 0} seainosal ajqe|ieAe bulkojdap
0] yoeoudde passnooy} aiow e ul pajnsal sey Yolym 0L 0Z YoJepy ul ainoniisal e Juamiapun (YgIND) ealy ssauisng juswabeuepy awLo

"Jeal 1se| 0} paledwod QA 98U} Ul 9,618 Aq pasealoul
sey saouayQ 10V sbniq Jo asnsip\ 0} uoljejal ul pazias suononpold Ysed Jo anjeA 8y} IX8juod U] “pazIas uaaq os|e aney sbnip pa|j03uod
JO GOV'62Z6° L F JO SSOIXa Ul ‘92104 8Y) SSOJoR a1aymas|q ‘geDOS O] uonejal ul pajsalle aiam ajdoad £z JO |ej0] e pue Yyseo ul 000‘88 L3
JBN0 ‘0002683 Alo1ewixoidde Jo anjeA 19a4)s e yum sbnip pajjoauod paisaodal S| | 8U) ‘010z Joqwadaq L€ 0} 010z |udy | pouad ayy u)

‘ajeudoidde se uonoe pue uoeJapISUOD J0) BAIINISXT 82104 8y} JO uonuaje ay)} 0} Jybnouq si
SjuspIoUI ISIoel JO puad) Jo usspued ay) ul abueyd juesiiubis Auy “eale Ssiy) ul 8ouapiuod d1ignd aAosdwi pue subledwed aAljoeold ‘ssaualeme
pasiel ‘swsiueyosw bBuiodas aaoidwi 0} S}086 8y} JO }NSal B S| SBWIO pue Sjusploul [eloel ul 8sealoul 8y} Jo Led ey} SIapisuod 82104 ay |

‘Bunssw 59 | | 82404 a8y} ybnolyy pabeuew pue palojiuow Ajjnjaied ale uononpay Ajense) peoy apoe;} 0}
uoljeo0||e 821N0Ssal pue aduewlouad ‘Buusaulbus pue uoneasnps ‘uswadioius ybnolyy Jnoineyaq bBuibueys pue Jasn peod ay} Jo Ajjigisuodsal
|leuosiad Buibeinoous je pawie si AJLIoLd SIY} UO YJOM JO SN20) 8yl “ZL/L L00Z Ul AjLioLd 82104 B &g 0} S8NuUjuod uoonpay Ajjense) peoy

"sonsiels Ajjensed peol s,ueldwels) ayeulwiop

Ims Aayy ybnoyye ‘sdnoub asayy 404 sainbiy (1SH) painlul Alsnouag pue paj|iy 8y} Ul UoioNpal B UsaS Sey 82104 8y ] "J0}oe} B Udaq Sey |oyooe
alaym Jnolneyaq pajejal uelsepad pue sisijoAolojow ‘siaAlp BunoA uo aqg 0} panunuod sey Ajuold uononpay Ajensed peoy ayj JO Snooy
3yl '80/.00Z PuUe /0/900Z ueyl Jaybiy |1s Sem )l ‘saljjensed peod Jo Swa) Ul Jeak snoinaid ay) uo juswanoidwi ue patayo 01/6002 Ybnouyyy

‘Bunsaw (991 1) dnois uoneuiplo-0) x Bupise| |eanoe| 82104 ay} ybnoayy usyeuspun uoljeyuswajdwi
Jo Buliojuow yym spew usaq aAeY suollepuawiwoday -sjuiejdwod Jo sadA oyioads 0] pisebal yym pajidwod usaq aAey s9)1joid wajqoid

"01/600¢ Buunp suieidwos Aing uQ |Ie 1o 9%g 0} salenba siy] pue apew aiam sjule|dwod yons g¢ ‘Jeak ay) buung

‘Mmo| AJaA si spuieldwod jeuiul) Aing uQ Jo Jaquinu ay) ‘JaAamoH ‘sieaA ¢ 1sed ay) Jano sjuie|dwod paplooal Ul 8sealoul ue pasualadxa

sey 92104 8y} ‘@ouanbasuod e sy 'sassad04d Buipiooal 1SnNqo. aiow pue Aj[eussjul SSeualeme Ul 8sealoul Ue ‘uojiuiep sjuie|dwod mau e Jo
uoneuswaldwi ay} yum ‘g0z pue 200z usamiaq padojanap pue pauljal usaq aAey sjule|dwod o) sassaoold Buiplooay :(auljaseq) uonisod °¢

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 72



Ll

((sypuow zL/9/¢ 49k "6-9) ¢ palinbay sjuswabuely malndy aly g

:(panaiyoe sbBuiaes ‘paulejqo syyauaq ajdwexa 1o0y) abueys jo joedwy 2

:(939 Quawdinb3 ‘lauuosiad ‘@oueul) paiinbay sasinosay ‘9

(9)

(q)

(e)

ON

pajojdwo) ajeasawi] ysel ysel

"80UBUIBAOD) R Juswdojarsq ‘1ebeuely Juswanoidw] g aouewlousd :Ajjiqisuodsay pea ‘G

"pPaso|o pue pabpajmouoe si uoijepuawiwiodal siyj yeyy pasodoud si 31 alojaiay] 99104 Ul swnipaw
Jayjo ybnouyj paljojiuow pue passalppe Bulaq Apealje si uoijepuswiiodal siy} ‘anoge (¢) Je uonisod auljaseq ay} uo paseq ‘Alewwins uj

:udye)} aq 0} uody ‘¥

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 73



8l

‘Allenuue mainay
((sypuow zL/9/c 10)e "6°9) ¢ palinbay sjuswabuely MaIAdYy a1y '8

*ollgnd 8y} 0} d|qIsIA 8q
M 82104 8y} JO AJIjIgejunodoe ¥ aodueulanob ay) 0} uonnguIuod JiIvy} pue sanljiqisuodsal Buodal souewlopad o1gnd Jiayy Bunsaw aq |IM 9dro
:(panaiyoe sbuiaes ‘paulelqo spjauaq ajdwexs 10j) abuey jo Joedw| 2

"WIOM SIU} 93 euapun 0} pasi|iin aq |IM ‘Hun Juswanoidw| ¥ 8duewIONad ‘921|104 ueldwels) pue pJjeog 891104 8y} Wody SadInosal bunsixg
(9392 Quawdinb3 ‘jauuos.iad ‘@dueul) paiinbay s821n0say 9

(9)

(a)

L 1/90/€) "L1/01L0C (e)
Buiouswwod xeam Hoday |enuuy 82104 8y} Ul UOISNoUl J0} UOII0as e apinoid 0} gdro
pajajdwo) ajeasawil] yse| xMw_._.

'901|0d ueldwels)
‘9oUBUIBAOS) RluswdoeAs( ‘Jabeue|) JuswaAcidw| @ ouBWIOLSd R pJeog a21|0d ulor ueldwels) ‘pieog ayj 0} 9|0 :Ajiqisuodsay pea g

"1 1/010Z Woday [enuuy 82104 8y} Ul UOIIOSS B apnjoul ||IM pleog 8y :uaye} aq 0} Uonoy ‘v

‘uolssalboud o) eale ue aq pjnom podal |enuue ay) ul UOIRISS B JO UoISNjoul 8y} }8) 8apiwwo) gqng diyspiemals ay] ‘podal
[enuue s,82404 8y} ojul Indul Joadip ay} buipiebal 01|04 ueldwels) g aapiwwo) gng diyspiemalsS gdro usamiaq aoejd uaye) sey uoissnasi|
:(aunj@seq) uonisod "¢

-0lgnd 8y} 0} 3|qISIA JOU SI 82104 8y} JO AJIjIgeIun0ooe pue 8ouBUIBAOD 8y} 0} UOIINQLIIUOD JIBY) 1By} sueaw

Jodal |enuue ayj ul pJeog ay} Jo asuasqge ay] "uonedijgnd ayy 0} Indul Joa11p apinoid Jou op Asy) ‘Wodal [enuue s,820104 8y} MaIASI SiaquuBW

piseog ybnoyyy “senijigisuodsal buipodas asuewlopuad ognd si Jo Loys Buljje;) si i jey) suesw siy| “Wodal aouewlopad jenuue 82104 a8y} Ul
aJnjea} 10U saop pue uodal souewlopad [enuue ue 8onpoud Jou Seop pieog ay| :uoiepuawiwodal o) Buipes] Juajuo) punoibyoegpioday g

"oedWi S}l pue SaljiAloR S,pJeog ay) Jo Alewwns e sapiAocid 11 eyl ainsus o) Wodal souewlopad olgnd
[ENUUR 8Y] JO JUSJUOD 8Y) MBIASI PINOYS 82404 8Y) pue pieog 8y -juswaAoidw] pue Juswabeuepy 90UBWLIOLISd || "ON UOEPUSWIWOIdY |

901|0d ueldwels) ¥ (gdro) pieog a91j0d 1uior ueidwels) | LOZ Aenuer
1J3UMQ UOIJePUAWIIOIY :9)9|dwo)H uonepUAWWOIY djed JpeouUBWIWO) UOePUAWIWOIDY deq

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 74



6l

"dIND 3y ul pajiejep ale sbulnes [eloueul) pue 0D aylL
:(panaiyoe sbuiaes ‘paulejqo syjauaq ajdwexs 10jy) abueyd jo Joeduw

L

‘ase) ssauisng e Aq pauoddns aq 0} asinbau |im Buipuny [eyded
[euonippy "s}abpng |eydes pue anuaAal pajeoo|e Bunsixa woll Jow 8q ued 1o uonesldwi Buipuny ou aAeYy dIAD 8Y} Ul SBANeRIUl 8y} JO Jaquinu
v ‘((e)g ‘oN Ysel) pleog swwelboid Ag paaibe aq 0} aoueulanob dIND 8y} JoAlep M (HANT) dnols Buiop) [elUBWIUOIIAUT 82104 Bunsixa ay |
(939 Quawdinb3 ‘jouuos.iad ‘@aueul) paiinbay sa21nosay 9

BulobuQ

dIND Mauas pue ajepdn "dIAID UILIM SaAleNIUl 1BAIRQ

(9)

L1/20/10

adro 0} diND uo poday

(a)

LLiviLe

pJjeog swwelbold 82104 ay)
Aq paaibe aq 0] J\D JO sjuswabuelle aoueulaAob aininy uo poday

(e)

pajo|dwon

ajeoasauwil]

AseL

ON

ysel

"901|0d Ueldwels) ‘seoinleg ajelodio) ‘sonsiBoT Jo pesH ¥ pJeog 82104 ior ueldwels) ‘pieog sy 0} yIo|D :AMjiqisuodsay pea °g

‘G102 AQ %0z Aq suolssiwa 0D SH 8onpal 0} 18b.e) e J|as)l 18s sey a921j0d ueldwels) ‘paonpold aysem pue pawnsuod Ablaus
pue |any ul sbuiaes 1s09 jJuedliubis aonpold pue SUoISSIWS ZOD) 9onNpal O} SWEaJ}S YIOM JO SBLISS B JN0 S18S dIND 3yl :udye} aq 0} uooy

)4

"'SOUUO] £ZG‘6 Sem 01/600Z Ul 21104 ueldwels) AQ apew SuoISSIWd
209 10 ainbly auldseq ayj 1ey paiuapl sey dIN9D SIYL '1shi] uogle) ayj jo woddns yum aoljod ueidwels) Ag paaosdde pue pajajdwod
uaaq sey (dIND) ue|d Juswabeuel uoqie) vV ‘'SOJdOV Ag paroidde usaq sey 0z/0L0Z Ueld uonoy abueyd ayewlD v :(sulaseq) uonisod

‘A|9AI}08Y8 paJo}jiuow pue pajeulpJood ‘pasiiiold Jou aie saljiAloe
asay] jeyl sl e si alay) ‘yoeoidde oibajens e Jo 90UaSge aY) Ul JOASMOH “jJuswdojoAap B|qeuIBISNS JO SJUBWS|d 8aly) 8y} uoddns jey) Ajaioe
Jo so|dwexs ale asay] ‘1oeduwi Jojyuow pue ssalboid malnal way) djsy o0} aoe|d ul sassao0.d pue swalsAs Ind pue uonoalip d16ael)s Jes|o e 1as
0} JapJo ul Ayjigeulelsns 0} yoeoisdde J1oy} MalAal pnoys pleog pue 82104 8y :uoljepuawiwodal 0} Buipes| Juajuon punoibyoegioday

"P8IaPISUOD ale S]0adSe |BJUSWIUOIIAUS PUE [BID0S ‘OILUOU0DS
ay) 1ey) ainsus 0} Ayjiqeurelsns o) yoeoidde oibs)els e dojaasp pjnoys 82104 syl pue pieog ay] "Ajjiqeule}sng Z| "ON UOIEPUSWIWOIdY |

a01|0d ueldwels) ¥ (g9dro) pieog a91j0d juior ueidwels)
1JI9UMQ UOIJBPUBWILIOIDY

| LOZ Aenuer

:9)9|dwo) uoiepUAWWOIdY djeq :paoUBWIIO) UOIjepUBWIIOIBY dje(

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 75



74

‘(s1seq Apj@am-xIs e U0 pamairal) sjuswabuelle aoueulaAnob pieog swwelboid
90104 |ewuJou Jo Jed se uayeuapun aq [im ajepdn / malAal SIy| Siseq Jeinfal e uo ueld ay} ayepdn/malnal 0} pasu ay) s|ielap dIND dulL
((sypuow zL/9/c 10)e "6°9) ¢ palinbay sjuswabuelly MaIAdYy a1y '8

A3aIxNdVIN ATIAILOTLOHd LON

Page 76



GRAMPIAN
P-O-L-1-C-E

Keeping our commanities sare

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

DATE: 20 MAY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: REORGANISATION OF ESTATE IN ABERDEEN TO
SUPPORT LOCAL POLICING TEAMS (LPTs)

REPORT NUMBER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1  To provide Members of the Grampian Joint Police Board with (a) an update on

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

4.1

estate improvements within Aberdeen City which support the new Local Policing
Teams (LPTs) and (b) to seek agreement to terminate the leases at two offices
and to declare the office at Cairncry Road, Aberdeen surplus to requirements.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

To note the estate changes within Aberdeen City, including the opening of all the
3Rs police offices at Cults Academy, Hazlelhead, Manor Park, Seaton, Kaimhill
and the police office at Whinhill.

To note that accordingly, as a result of new improved accommodation being
available, the leases of property at Silverburn Crescent and 90 High Street,
Old Aberdeen will be terminated.

To agree to declare the property at Cairncry Road, Aberdeen surplus to
operational requirements.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

It is estimated that the financial savings of relinquishing the three offices
mentioned above are as follows:

[#
Property Caplt?;;)ecmpt Revenue Saving
30 High Street MNIA £12,000
Silverburn Crescent NiA £52 000
Cairncry Road £100,000 £6,000
Totals £100,000 £70,000

SERVICE AND COMMUNITY IMPACT

The changes to the estate outlined in this report support the aims of LTPs in
operating at a local level within the community.

Page 77

Agenda Iltem 11



5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

The relocation of the LPTs into shared premises will reduce the collective carbon
emission footprint of the partners.

REPORT

On 1 April 2010, Aberdeen Division moved to a new policing structure based on
13 Local Policing Teams (LPTs) across the City. This represented a major
change in the way policing services were carried out by placing a greater focus on
local communities and a drive to improve service delivery, particularly in relation to
calls concerning quality of life issues.

In Continuing Our Platform for Success and the "Local Policing-Closer to you”
ethos, this new structure provides an excellent and sustainable framework to take
forward and enhance our engagement with communities.

To support this revised structure a number of changes to the estate have either
taken place or are proposed.

At the meeting on 29 August 2008, the Board agreed to lease police offices within
Aberdeen City Council 3Rs schools. All of these five offices have now opened at
Cults Academy (February 2010), Hazlehead (July 2010), Manor Park and Seaton
(both opened in January 2011) and Kaimhill (opened in April 2011).

At the meeting on 11 December 2009, the Board agreed to participate in a joint
services project with NHS Grampian at Whinhill, Ferryhill, Aberdeen. This office
opened in April 2011.

Following representations by the local community in Torry to provide a central
facility in the community, it was agreed to refurbish and reopen the property at
Victoria Road, Aberdeen. This office was re-opened in April 2011.

The City Centre LPT has been relocated from Queen Street into the Police Office
at Windmill Brae.

As a consequence of these 8 new Aberdeen Division facilities, all Aberdeen LPTs
(with the exception of the Rosemount LPT) are fully located within accommodation
in their Inspector Areas. Opportunities to identify alternative accommodation
opportunities within the Rosemount Area are continuing to be scoped.

With the introduction of the new offices, it is intended that three other existing
offices in Aberdeen are relinquished:

o Before the opening of the Whinhill and Torry offices, a number of officers
serving these areas were based out-with their respective areas in the police
office at Nigg. Their relocation to these new local offices has released
space at Nigg and this has enabled NESCAMP, who were previously
occupying a leased office at Silverburn Crescent, Bridge of Don, to be
relocated to Nigg as from April 2011. There is a break clause within the
lease at Silverburn Crescent and it is intended to exercise this right on
August 2011.

Page 78



o The new office within Seaton Primary school now serves the Seaton LPT. It
is intended to terminate the lease of the smaller stand alone office at 90 High
Street, Aberdeen. This lease runs until May 2013 but there may be an
opportunity to assigning the lease of the property to a third party before this
date.

o The new office within Manor Park now serves the Northfield LPT. Itis
proposed that the smaller stand alone police owned property at Cairncry
Road be declared surplus to requirements and sold.

6.6  These estate changes will be incorporated into a proposed overall Property Asset
Management Plan (PAMP) which will be reported to the Board in early course for
approval.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

7.1 Alan Cormack
Head of Logistics
Alan.Cormack@grampian.pnn.police.uk
01224 305260

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

8.1  Report to GJPB (29 August 2008) - Lease of accommodation within Aberdeen
City Council 3Rs New School.

8.2 = Report to GJPB (11 December 2009) - Shared Services Project at Whinhill,
Aberdeen

Chief Constable

6 May 2011

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80



Agenda Item 12

GRAMPIAN
P-O-L-

Keeping our commanities sare

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

DATE: 20 MAY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: POLICE PROPERTY DISPOSALS

REPORT NUMBER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To provide Members of the Grampian Joint Police Board with an update on
progress made in respect of the disposal of surplus Police property.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

21 Members of the Board are asked to note the contents of this report.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1  The sale of surplus property is a key part of contributing towards the funding of the
Force Capital Plan. There is £3.961 million of accrued receipts for asset disposals
carried over into the 2011/12 budget.

3.2 Itis proposed to increase the existing £630,000 capital receipt profile in 11/12 by
£575,000 (c/f from 10/11) which gives a total revised anticipated profile in 11/12 of
£1,205,000.

3.3  The revised Capital Plan for property sales over the next 3 years will be as follows:
Year Amount

2011/12 £1,205,000 (£575,000 c/f from 10/11)
2012/13 £300,000
2013/14 £300,000

4. SERVICE AND COMMUNITY IMPACT

41  There are none.

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

5.1  The disposal of surplus property will reduce the Force's carbon emissions.

Page 81



6. REPORT

6.1 In the Standing Orders of the Grampian Joint Police Board, the Chief Constable is
responsible for managing the Police estate, including the sale of property up to a
value of £500,000.

6.2  There was a Capital Receipt Profile through property sales in 10/11 of £675,000.
While no receipts were forthcoming, two properties are currently under offer and it
is anticipated that these sales will be concluded in 11/12. These are:

. Former Police Station at 124 North Deeside Road, Peterculter - Under offer.
. Former Police office at Provost Graham Cresent, Aberdeen - Under offer.

6.3  Other Properties identified for disposal during 11/12 include the following:

House at 29 Viewfield Road, Aberdeen (currently being marketed).

Office at Fonthill Road, Aberdeen (currently being marketed).

Office at Cairncry Road (to be declared surplus).

Former Station at Spey Terrace, Mastrick, Aberdeen (sub-let — to be vacated by
Aberdeen City Council).

o Redundant radio masts at Mormond and Corehill.

6.4 It will be action to continue to maximise capital receipts from non-operational
property in the Property Asset Management Plan(PAMP). The PAMP will be
reported to the Board in early course for approval.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

71 Alan Cormack
Head of Logistics
Alan.Cormack@grampian.pnn.police.uk
01224 305260

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

8.1 Report to GJPB (7 May 2010) - Police Property Disposals.

Chief Constable
6 May 2011

Page 82



Agenda ltem 13

GRAMPIAN
P-O-L-1-C-E

Keeping our commanities sare

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

DATE: 20 MAY 2011

TITLE OF REPORT: FORCE CONTRACTS AND SPONSORSHIP
REPORT NUMBER

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 To inform Members of the Grampian Joint Police Board of procurement
activity in relation to contracts let on behalf of the Force and sponsorship
entered into by Grampian Police over the period 1 April 2010 to 31 March
2011

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 Members of the Board are asked to note the contents of this report.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

3.1 The Force contracts, completed in accordance with Standing Orders, ensures
that goods and services are procured in terms of best value to Grampian
Police.

3.2 The monies and goods raised via sponsorship have allowed the Force to
proceed with projects which may not have materialised had these approaches
not been made. The sponsorship route has also had the effect of raising
public awareness and the profile of the Force in many areas of the
community. A list of Sponsorship obtained is attached at Appendix 'B'.

4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

None

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

Page 83



6. REPORT

6.1 During the financial year 2010-11, the Force let or joined 20 new
contracts/arrangements. The value of contracts let is just over £3.029 m.
This is up 43.21% from 2009-10. A list of let contracts is attached at
Appendix 'A'.

6.2  The Procurement Unit has generated both Cashable and Non Cashable
savings during the year (£217,065 Cashable and £110,600 Non Cashable).
The total savings figure of £327,665 is an increase of 29.80% on 2009-10.
This figure can be evidenced and will be reported to the Scottish Government
as part of the Force's Efficiency Savings.

6.3  The Unit also had an objective to raise £400,000 in sponsorship during the
year. With the down turn in the economic environment across the country,
obtaining sponsorship monies has became a challenge. In difficult economic
times the Force managed to obtain £390,125 of Sponsorship/Partnership
funding(an increase of 6.69% on 2009-10).

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

7.1 Colin Heppenstall, Head of Procurement
colin.heppenstall@grampian.pnn.police.uk
01224 305261

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

Chief Constable

6 May 2011



s821A8G Juswdinbg

juswiulodde ulsypoN | 00°009°63 0102 JeqWiaAoN wawdinbg abeles) Jo iedoy obeles) Sueg oIy
juswjuiodde uIsyUON | 00'009°'63 010z 1890300 sbuppey Aynaidsuo) YbiH N IAd
Jusuwnuiodde anysplousH | 00°000°83 1102 Uoiepy Jeamjoo4 wnubep MN spodg 29 1H
L apelbdn suonesuNWWo?)
[eubip 0y enbojeue wol) walsAs apeibdn | 008 083 L Loz Alenugo AAQ — 998dS 91aNd ALDD USINOOS
Buiures | s1oysgo | 00°01LE'63 L L0Z Aenuer Buiuies] jorsog 99)NN >ioled
Buioljod speoy | 03 010¢ 13qWSAON 393YD ysnu) |dH IdH
Juswiulodde 990 | 000009823 0L0Z |udy len4 [enly
juswiuiodde 821jod Jo)sayduepy Jajeals) | 00°00S°€F 0102 |udy sjueduqnT S|0IYsA AN 104)sBD
yuswjulodde idN | 00°0E6°013 0102 |udy Buize|b aj01yaA Juswaoe|doy SUS3IISPUIAA OINY
juswyulodde V|dN | 00°000°G3 0102 udy salA} | saiA| dojunq Jeshpoos
uonebisanu| auoyd 3[IqoN obueyd 010z aunp wewsalby ygIy 19
e . [BUILUON

juswiulodde JusWwuIBA0D Ysinoos | 00'000°0593 0102 |udy Alddng Ayouyoe|g 19MOd Ysijjoog
Juswiulodde JuBWUIBA0L) YsooS | 00°000°08Y3 0102 |4dy Aiddng seq Jomod B seo) |ejo |
ueldwels SHN Yim uoounfuod uj | 00'000°28S3 0102 judy 90e|d pajeubisag poddng |oyooly
Juswiulodde 821104 apAjoylelS | 00°000°0L3 0102 |udy se9 SO Alddng @dusjeq IA1D

Cr A L1-010¢
JOBAUOD [enuuy [ €L LLO LL3 010z |udy JOBJUOD) UORBIGIED) 3 S9IAISS uoi
o SjuUB)NSuU0) SUOBIIUNWIWOD)
aonsNe YINOA | 00°001'C3 0102 |udy ABoiens — ueidwels U uonoy ueISsO

et LL-0L02C
Pejuo) [enuuy | 006 L3 0102 |udy JOBIUOD UOHRIQIED § SOINISS MN sIS)8WiIXoju|

sjuswIwon junowy ajeq SPOO0ND)/92IAIDS 191ddng

Y. Xipuaddy

(1102 yo4eN LE —0102 [Hdy L) sjornUO) 82104

Page 85



Page 86

0.°1L9€°620°€3

Josfoid wiopeld | 89'2/8°L3 L L0Z Aenuer | poddng siempley Jins 8oIAI8S E]
. ‘ suonduosgng
Josfoid uuogeld | LO'€Z0'LL3 | Loz Aenuer pue surq poddns xnur Xnui
j09foid wuopeld | 00'00S°LL3 L 10z Aenige Bujures| soubod NG| pyoeueq
sjuswiwo?) junowy ajeq SPOO0L)/aDIAIDS 191 ddng

g, Xipuaddy




ubiedwen BuisiuaApy sjeloadg 00S3 L L-Alenuep adueuld P17 uondaoxg
JUSA] peoy HO 666 003 0l-Jequiaidag dueUlH syoesedng
JUSA3 peOY HO 666 00S3 0l-lequisydag @dueul4 ejoho]
JuaA] peoy HO 666 0063 0l-Joqueldeg aoueul4 ZUua(q SopadIoN
JusAd peocy HO 666 000°L3 0l-lequisydeg Sdueul JSA0Y puET
JUsAd peoy HO 666 0093 0lL-lequisydeg ddueul SJBD OAJOA
alIysusapIaqy UoioNpay swWuUy) 10) 9|2IYSA 000°0L3 | OlL-isnbny CTR]VEY dnoug) |elow|eg
S}ojjea] 9ouepIng JuswaAealsg 003 0L-1snbny s}ojjean Buiuiel) oejoned
ybnouiqiaselq awayog UsSpIepA Jolunp 000°'cH oL-AIne aoueul4 [ejo|
ybnolgiaselq awaydg Uspiepp Jowunp 00€3 oL-isnbny aoueul %)
94!1g ulejunojp Jo sseyoind 00.3 oL-Ainp sdueulH [eninA NN
ayig UIBJUNOA JO 8sBYIINd 0093 oL-AInp aoueul / easgng
weo| sjeg 000°L3 Ol-aunr sdueuld d9
Hun 9|9A240J0}\ 104 B|2IYSA 66v'C2L3 | OL-udy 3[OIYSA $9]9A210)0}\ 95S00]
UOHUBABIH dwD) allysuaaplaqy Jo} S|2IYdaA 005‘S3 oL-Aepy BJOIYBA abeueo) yied
anoge 1o} Aed 0} aoueuUl4 009‘€3 oL-Aep aoueul 19]0JABYD Juow g
Buloljod (8207 Ussplaqgy 10} d|oIYdA 000°G3 0L-Rep SPOIYSA (3N) 11 8d2noo0id
SpJeMy 90US||99X] 000°'G3 oL-Aep aoueUIl4 dnous) [eiowjeg
Bulures | aioys Ho 000°G3 0L-udy oueul pPajWIT MN seo B 110
Hoddng diysiosuodg 92104 anjep ajeq adA Jauped

.8, Xipuaddy

(L10Z ystel Lg — 010z 1Udy |) sdiysiauped/diysiosuodg

Page 87




P3IS o9 1eas VMRS 00Z3 01-18q0100 ddoueuld sdi|iyd ooouo)
spun4 Ajojes peoy 0GL3 01-19q0100 aoueul4 dnoig) poopn
spun4 Ajajeg peoy 9623 0l-1equeydeg aoueulq Awapesy suhoqy

SJUBAB J9ALQ BunoA 10} SIBYONOA YIS 00L3 oL-AInp Spoo9) ‘leN [eAod

spund Ajejes peoy 00S°L3 oL-aunp SdueUl4 Allwed aimo)

1Ing ayig Jayjes| 0083 0l-ludy SpooYH Buiures| oejoled

snoleAp L0L'8EF | 1102/0L02 doueul puepoog JalleH

sesawe) 03pIA UIop Apog 09Z'63 L102/0L0¢C soueul] PUEjOOS JaleH

Bupjug abesspun @ soueAouuy YINoA - asegq 19a4S €12'63 1102/0102 aoueul4 puepoos Jale4

OOUB|OIA UO UodY £e83 1102/010¢C ddueul4 puepoog JaleH

selswe) 0apIA uIop Apog 00S°'c3 1102/010¢C doueUlH sjesliS J9jes

S|0Jjed }9a4lS 09083 L102/0L0cC aoueUl] sjloallg J9jeg

SOUS|OIA / SBUBQQOY 000°623 | LL0Z/0L0C adueulH PUEJOOS Jaile

Aydo.] ssauaiemy |0y0d]y Sjo0YOS G8C3 LLoZ/0loe ddueUIlH PIjWIT 3suUoy

a1eQ Apoysn juelbiww| [ebajlf 000°0L3 | LLOZ/0L0Z doueUIlH veanin

inoineyag [e100S Juy 9¢.'83 1102/0L0C ddueul4 puejodg Jale

Ao @duUs|0IA / SBLIDGGOY 000'G3 1102/010¢ ddueulH puejoog Jalied

anuag AjD 9ous|olIA / s8HBqqoy 000°G3 1102/010¢ adueul{ PUEjOOS JaldieH

uopnyisold Buipioe | 962'€C3 | 1102/0L02 adueul puejoog JaleH

sejawe) 0apIA oA Apog L¥6'GL3 | 1L102/01L02 SdueulH PUEJOOS Jalied

UuoloNpay swWl) allysuaspiaqy Wodj s[oIysA 00013 0l-tequiade SIOIUSA S9eg SIDIYSA piay wip
poddng diysiosuodg 90104 anjep ajeq adAy Jaupied

., Xipuaddy

Page 88




abuajiey)d o0y 000013 | LL-uyosepn aoueulq SoljlUNWIWOY 10} Yoeguse)
‘ 1sni|
wes] ojeg 000 L3 b -yoieiy adueuly AUNWWon Jayes usepIaqy
. diysiouped A)sjeg
wes| sjeg 000 L3 }L-UdIeN 9dueuld ANUNWIWOY BIYSUSSPIOGY
wea | sjes 0083 L L-yotepn adueul4 Jablaquin|yos
wes] 9jeg 00S°L3 L L-UdieN 9dueuld [1O uoyieiey
) awilo
oply Buipoday swu) | 0/8°L3 LL-yolepy SOUBULY | 5 im BuiyBly 10y PUNY MY
$1S09 Buluunu Jeo1O uoleosnp3 000'v3 L L-YyoJep adueulq ewndo
awuo
uool uonesad 000‘L3 L L-UoJenn adueuly oup{Im BunyBl 10} puny >>¢n_
] awD
sndaT uonelsad 000°L3 | L-yoie aoueuly oyl BunyBIL 10} PUNE MY
uonpnquisi ‘ }
pue uonoNpold ‘Juawdojeasq ‘Yoed uoneonp3 000713 | O-AINr SPooS luejelg ebey
480140 uonesnpy 000°6¥3 | OL-AInp adueuld abejiiay |einjeu ysiyoog
. Aelop
430140 uonesnpy 009623 | OL-AInr adueulH - Buipun [einy ueadoing
. aliysuaapiaqy
180140 uoiednp3y oo¥'se3 | oL-Ainr sdueuld _ Buipun [eany ueadoing
spund Ajejeg peoy 0SL3 L L-ydielN adueuld youny9 ysued apisasq pIN
Yusz uolesado 000°L3 | L-Aienige4 sdueuly dd
J9indwion doyden 00S‘L3 L L-Adenuep Spoo95) gn|o Aejoy ueyong [ejuan
Po|S }og 1eas 90IAIeS 02Z'L3 | L-Adenuep aoueuly saibojouyosa] uoidwey)n
P3IS lieg 1edS VIAIBG 00023 01-49G0J00 adueuid [1O uoyieliew
poddng diysiosuodg 90104 anjep ajeq adA | Jauped

g, Xipuaddy

Page 89



GZ1'06€3

suapJepn Jounp ybingiasel - SI8yosnop 00L3 Ll yotep Spo09) 0989
suspsepp Jounp ybinglasel 10y Spoob snouep ¥93 Ll yolepw Spoo9) aysnp ‘way) 1weg ‘doo)n
suspiep\ Joiunp ybingiasel - Sisayonoa 0053 Ll yolepn Spo0o9) P00
108[01d UOISIBAIQ YINOA 0053 LL-yotep aoueul4 s19)dooI|SH MmojsuUg
obusjeyd o0y |  005°L3 L L-yosepy 9oueBUIS ueidwels SHN
abusjeyo ooy 00013 LL-Udiep Sdueuld 9JI7 8s00UD
abusjley) ooy 00013 L L-Udslep 9dueulH £ diysisunied Ajajes
Hunwwo? allysuasplaqy

Joddng diysiosuodg asi04 anjep ajeq adA] Jauped

.4, Xipuaddy

Page 90



Agenda Item 14

3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
DATE: 20" MAY 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: GRAMPIAN GYPSY / TRAVELLERS SUMMIT -

SUMMIT REPORT

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to invite the Board to consider the draft report of
the Grampian Gypsy / Travellers Summit held in Inverurie on Tuesday 5"
April 2011.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that the Board consider the attached draft report and
provide any feedback on it to the Depute Clerk.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The total cost to the Board for hosting the summit amounted to £1,960 which
is within the £2,000 budget approved for this purpose.

4. SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

None

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

6. REPORT

6.1  As previously agreed by the Board, Grampian Racial Equality Council
(GREC) facilitated a Gypsy / Travellers Summit on Tuesday 5" April
2011. This event was attended by just under 70 delegates, including
around 20 Gypsy / Travellers.

6.2 The Board were represented at the event by Councillor Al-Kowarri,
Councillor N Collie, Councillor R McKail and Councillor K Stewart.

Page 91



6.3 Following the event, GREC undertook to prepare a summary report of
the event. The draft report is attached to this report as Appendix One.
Board Members are invited to consider this report and advise of any
feedback which should be presented.

6.4 The Summit Steering Group will meet on Wednesday 25" May 2011 to
finalise the report and any feedback from the Board will be presented
to this meeting. The Steering Group will also consider how the report
will be utilised to progress the outcomes arising from the event.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS
Fiona Smith, Policy & Advice Officer

E-mail: fismith@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Telephone: 01224 522516

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Karen M Donnelly, Depute Clerk
12th May 2011

Page 92



Equality whew you really need it

Grampian Gypsy/Traveller
Cross-Community

Dialogue Day

Building Consensus:

A Constructive Way Forward

Page 93



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

N
NS

Page 94



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Contents
Summary Page 4
Introduction Page 5
Format and Methodology Page 8
Programme and Discussion Page 11
Pledges Page 21
Feedback and Evaluation Page 24
Moving Forward Page 27
References Page 32

Page 95



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Summary

0

At the meeting of Grampian Joint Police Board in September 2010, there was
unanimous support for a proposed summit event to “bring together Local
Authorities, Police and other Local and National Agencies to explore the
pertinent issues in Grampian and identify appropriate solutions” with regard to
improving relations between Gypsy/Travellers and the settled community.
Specifically, the Board also agreed that the Area Procurator Fiscal,
appropriate members of the Scottish Government, members of the
Gypsy/Traveller community, and members of the settled community should be
involved. In January 2011 GREC were asked to organise and facilitate the
proposed summit event.

A steering group was set up to plan the organisation and format of the event.
The group brought together council officers from Grampian's three local
authorities, members of Grampian Police, members of GREC, the clerk to the
Grampian Joint Police Board, and George Dunwoody - an expert in
community engagement who was volunteering his services to GREC.

From the start of the planning process there was wide agreement that the
overarching focus of the event should be to improve relations within the
Grampian area. As it became clear that what was being planned was the
start of a new approach focussing on participation and dialogue, the following
was agreed upon as the aim of the event: To facilitate a process allowing
multiple stakeholders to contribute to a dialogue that enhances cross-
community relations.

The day was a success, with just under 70 delegates attending, including
around 20 Gypsy/Travellers. Participants were asked to put forward topics for
discussion and a diverse range of issues were covered. The day ended with
participants making personal or professional pledges to improve relations
within Grampian.

The event received positive news coverage across Scotland.

The Dress and ournal

Summit held with travellers is hailed a
breakthrough

PROGRESS IN BID TO COOL TENSIONS

BY CALUM ROSS

Published DS042011

Page 96



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Introduction

Gypsy/Traveller is an over-arching term which includes those who identify
themselves as Travellers, Gypsies or Roma, and may be of Scottish, English, Irish,
Welsh, or European origin (EHRC Scotland 2010: 8). The term refers to those whom
travelling is an important part of their shared group culture and identity (Ibid: 8).

In 2001 the Equal Opportunities Committee of the then Scottish Executive published
its first report, an Inquiry into Gypsy Travellers and Public Sector Policies. The
report was based on wide-ranging research and hearings undertaken over the
previous year. The Committee's report made a number of significant
recommendations, for example that Gypsy/Travellers should be recognised as a
distinct ethnic minority group until they are recognised as a distinct racial group in
case law (Equal Opportunities Committee 2001: 7) Many of its 37
recommendations focussed on a number of changes and initiatives to be put in place
in order to improve education and health provision, whilst others covered issues of
equalities and anti-discrimination (Ibid: 7-30). In a follow-up report in 2005 the
Committee raised concerns of the lack of progress and the slow pace at which
developments had been made (Equal Opportunities Committee 2005).

In May 2009 social research company Craigforth published the report, An
Accomodation Needs Assessment of Gypsies/Travellers in Grampian. Craigforth
were commissioned by the three Grampian local authorities to undertake the
research, which involved 73 Gypsy/Travellers at that time located in the area
(Craigforth 2009: 3). In the report it was estimated that there was an estimated
population of 500-650 Gypsy/Travellers living in Grampian; this is a conservative
estimate during the summer months, though numbers were lower in the winter
months (lbid: 3). The report spawned an inter-agency action plan covering the whole
of the Grampian area, based on the following outcomes of the research project:

{1 Outcome 1: Better planning by local authorities, RSLs [Registered Social Landlords]
and partner organisations to anticipate, and plan to meet, the future needs and
aspirations of Gypsies/Travellers in Grampian.

[1  Outcome 2: Gypsies/Travellers normally resident in Grampian and
Gypsies/Travellers visiting the area have accommodation that meets their needs,
culture and lifestyle.

[J Outcomed: Individual support and community development needs are identified and
met.

[J Outcome 4: Better and more constructive relationships are developed between
Gypsies/Travellers and settled communities.

(Craigforth 2009: 9)

Page 97



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

The Craigforth report has played an important role in encouraging and focussing
inter-agency work in Grampian and has also shaped the relevant work of each
individual Local Authority.

As a “Housing Needs Assessment”, one of the issues that the Craigforth Report
focussed on was the lack of site provision. There is currently one official site in
Aberdeen City, Clinterty, which is owned and managed by the Council. There is one
seasonal site in Aberdeenshire, Greenbanks (Banff). There have been no official
sites in Moray since the closing of the Channonry site in 2004. In addition there are
private Gypsy/Traveller sites in both Moray and Aberdeen. All three Local
Authorities have made efforts in the past to develop short-stay Gypsy/Traveller
sites’, though efforts have so far been unsuccessful. The lack of site provision in the
North-East and elsewhere in Scotland has often been cited as the cause of
increased tensions between Gypsy/Travellers and the settled community.

There are a number of factors that may influence Gypsy/Travellers in their pattern of
movements, such as proximity of family and employment factors (Craigforth 2009b:
47). As an economically affluent area in a time of economic hardship in many other
areas, the North-East has seen an increase in the numbers of Gypsy/Travellers
coming to the area, drawn by employment factors (amongst others). This has further
emphasised the lack of site provision in the North-East and led to increased numbers
of Unauthorised Encampments. Although there had been previous problems with
tensions between Gypsy/Travellers and the settled community, the summer of 2010
saw increased tensions reach dangerous levels in some circumstances. Stand-offs
took place between local youths and Gypsy/Travellers on Unauthorised
Encampments. The location of some Unauthorised Encampments appeared to be
the source of discontent within sections of the settled community and the media.

One notable case was that of an Unauthorised Encampment on private land in
Aberdeenshire which drew much media attention and put a spotlight on issues such
as the role of local authorities and the police in such situations, especially in
situations where refuse and waste are left on the property.

As a result of the Unauthorised Encampment mentioned above a petition was
presented to the Scottish Government's Public Petitions Committee. The petition,
submitted on October 6™ 2010, called on “the Scottish Parliament to urge the
Scottish Government to review all guidelines relating to trespass and encampments
for Gypsies and Travellers to ensure their intent is clear and that they are being

1 This report takes the terminology recommended by the 2004 Scottish Executive guidelines on the
management of unauthorised encampments: “Please note that for the purposes of this paper, the
term ‘short-stay’ supersedes terms such as ‘transit site’, which has negative connotations for the
Gypsy/Traveller community” (Scottish Executive 2004: 8).

6

Page 98



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

applied” (Public Petitions Committee 2010). The Committee asked respective
agencies for their input on matters relating to the management of unauthorised
encampments, in the hope that some of the issues raised in the petition could be
resolved.

In November 2010 the Aberdeen & Aberdeenshire Gypsy/Traveller Issues Working
Group was set up by the Scottish Government Minister for Housing and
Communities, Alex Neil. The group was made up of relevant parties in the area
(including Gypsy/Traveller representation in the form of young person's group Article
12) and the following remit was agreed upon: “Our objective is to improve community
relations by ensuring that issues relating to unauthorised Gypsy/Traveller
encampments in Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire experienced during 2010 are
resolved and/or mitigated to the extent that incidents are significantly reduced”
(Scottish Government 2011: 1). The group thus had an over-arching purpose of
improving relations in “a manner underpinned by improved communication, respect
and understanding” (Ibid: 1). An action plan was developed which formed a
substantial part of an Interim Strategy for the area, published in March 2011.

In light of the above developments, at the meeting of Grampian Joint Police Board
on September 10" 2010, there was unanimous support for the call for a “summit” to
“bring together Local Authorities, Police and other Local and National Agencies to
explore the pertinent issues in Grampian and identify appropriate solutions”
(Grampian Joint Police Board 2010: 3). Specifically, the Board also agreed that
appropriate members of the Scottish Government, members of the Gypsy/Traveller
community, and members of the settled community should be invited to the event
(Ibid: 4). In January 2011 Grampian Regional Equality Council (then Grampian
Racial Equality Council) were asked to organise and facilitate the proposed event.

Page 99



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Format/Methodology

Steering Group

A steering group was set up to plan the organisation and format of the event. The
group brought together council officers from Grampian's three Local Authorities,
members of Grampian Police, members of GREC, and a clerk from Grampian Joint
Police Board. Efforts were also made to include Gypsy/Traveller representation on
the steering group. GREC engaged a volunteer, Abeline, from the Gypsy/Traveller
community, who helped recruit Gypsy/Traveller attendance. Abeline was also able
to influence the structure of the day, making it a more appealing event to the
Gypsy/Traveller community.

Format of the Day

The initial format decided upon by the group was one that reflected the wording used
by Grampian Joint Police Board, i.e. that the event was to be a summit. The
purpose of the day would therefore focus on reaching an endpoint, with a fairly rigid
format covering only a few key issues or questions. As time went on there was a
growing acceptance that what we were really embarking on was a starting point to
further cooperation and dialogue, rather than fulfilling any ultimate goals at this
stage.

A key addition to the steering group was George Dunwoody, an expert in community
engagement and consultation, who volunteered his services to GREC. George
helped focus the group on defining its objective, and secondly in encouraging the
group to choose a format that would allow such an objective to be realised.

Aim, Objectives and Desired Outcomes

From the outset of planning the event there was agreement that the overarching aim
should be one of improving relations within the Grampian area. This was re-
enforced by the remit of the Housing Minister's Working Group, and the discussions
of the Grampian Joint Police Board. As it became clear that what was being planned
was the beginnings of a new approach, encouraging progress with a basis in
participation and dialogue, the following was agreed upon as the overarching aim of
the event:

To facilitate a process allowing multiple stakeholders to contribute to
a dialogue that enhances cross-community relations.

Following discussion and debate within the steering group and some input from
Grampian Joint Police Board, the following objectives for the day were identified:

Page 100



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

To encourage better community relations.
To improve awareness of the needs of the respective communities.

To discuss the obstacles to alternative provision for
Gypsies/Travellers as recommended in the Craigforth
Accommodation Needs Assessment.

To increase understanding of the roles and responsibilities of the
respective agencies.

To increase understanding of the Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire
Interim Strategy and what it may mean for the area.

The following desired outcomes were also agreed upon:

The beginnings of a dialogue process involving multiple stakeholders
to enhance cross-community relations.

Participants identify and commit to one or more
personal/professional actions that will improve community relations.

The first desired outcome reflected the overarching aim of the day, to initiate a
dialogue process aimed at improving relations, as well as emphasising that the event
was the beginning of a longer, challenging process. The second desired outcome
came about as an example of a similar type of event that a steering group member
had previously attended. As it was decided that there was no need for another
action plan, this second outcome, with its focus on personal responsibility and
initiative, was deemed a suitable alternative.

A title of the day, reflecting the aim and objectives, was then agreed upon:
“‘Grampian Gypsy/Traveller Cross-Community Dialogue Day. Building Consensus: A
Constructive Way Forward.”

Invite List

In-keeping with the concept of building a dialogue involving all respective parties it
was decided that all relevant stakeholders should be invited. Gypsy/Travellers,
MSPs (including the Housing Minister), councillors, council officers, Grampian
Police, representatives from community councils, the fiscal's office, NHS Grampian,
relevant organisations/groups such as the Equality and Human Rights Commission,
the Scottish Traveller Education Programme and Article 12 were all invited to
participate in the event. It was decided that due to limited spaces being available
that members of community councils should be invited to represent the settled
community. Community Council representatives were invited based on the past

9

Page 101



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

occurrence of Unauthorised Encampments in the area. Emphasis was placed on
attracting Gypsy/Traveller attendance at the event as meetings and events regarding
this community and related issues have often lacked legitimacy and effectiveness
due to a lack of participation. This was particularly important in this circumstance
due to the event being designed as a “dialogue day”. Unfortunately no MSPs were
able to attend, due to the event falling within the purdah period.

There were subject areas that were predicted as topics participants would want to
discuss, and experts in these fields were invited to attend to aid the group
discussion. Experts were asked to “be on tap, not on top”, i.e. to provide their
expertise when answers could not be reached through the general discussion of the
group. Experts were paired with a facilitator whose role was to encourage all
participants to contribute and to ensure that there was an appropriate focus to the
discussion. Facilitators were also asked to make sure participants were respectful
and polite to one another, and that a constructive attitude was encouraged
throughout.

10

Page 102



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Programme and Discussion

The Dialogue Day was opened with a welcome from the Director of GREC, Jeannie
Felsinger. Jeannie emphasised that the day was future-focused and that
participants should concentrate on matters that improve understanding and
communication. Participants were reminded that the day was informal and that only
first names should be used, and no job designations.

Jeannie then introduced Dave Simmers, someone with long experience of direct
work with Gypsy/Travellers. In 1997 Dave helped set up GTEIP- the Gypsy Traveller
Education and Information Project which he coordinated for 7 years. Dave offered
some insights that he had gained from his previous experiences. He made it clear
that the Gypsy/Traveller community was a heterogeneous group and not the
homogenous group of wrong-doers that is portrayed by the local media. Dave made
the point that the closing off of traditional sites and moving people from
encampments is just moving the problem elsewhere. Gypsy/Travellers just want a
safe and secure home like everyone else, and therefore new site provision is
needed. Dave emphasised the benefits that would arise from such new provision in
terms of the greater access to services like education and health. Dave concluded
by saying that it doesn’t really matter what people think of Gypsy/Travellers, they will
still be here, and so we must find a way that we can live side by side.

George Dunwoody then introduced the first session of the day, asking participants to
introduce themselves to their group and state their areas of interest that they would
like to raise as topics for discussion groups in the following sessions. Facilitators
then fed back each groups' areas of interest to the wider room and discussion group
topics were assigned to each table on the basis of this feedback. Although many of
the areas raised by participants had been foreseen by the steering group and
“‘experts” had been asked to join groups covering these topics, there were topics
raised that were unforeseen, such as cultural awareness, employment issues, and
site facilities. With each table assigned a different subject area, participants were
then able to choose the discussion group they wished to join and were encouraged
to move between different groups during this session. This Open Space-type format
allowed participants the opportunity to cover all their areas of interest and also
allowed for participants to leave a group if they were becoming frustrated with the
discussion.

11

Page 103



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Feedback to all participants was given by facilitators:

Education

Issues raised during the discussion:

0

0

Bullying at school.

Parents are often lacking information and knowledge of schooling and the
education system in general.

Gypsy/Traveller children who attend primary school don’t tend to continue into
secondary education. Often Gypsy/Travellers feel neglected and that the
school is not interested in what they have to say.

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

0

Raise awareness of bullying within schools. A holistic approach was
recommended which provides support for both victims and perpetrators of
bullying in order to break ongoing cycles of harassment and abuse.

Better communication between schools & Gypsy/Traveller families to improve
parents' knowledge, with the hope of avoiding misunderstandings, therefore
building up trust. Better use could be made of the school and local authority
websites to enable wider access to information.

Teachers working more closely with primary 7 pupils to promote the benefits
of continuing with their education. School could be more flexible, taking into
account that different communities have different beliefs and approaches.

Local authorities should make sure that relevant information is easily available
and is kept up-to-date, e.g. home tutoring information, curricular guides etc.
Schools and Local Authorities should also be aware, and make use, of
national guidance from the Scottish Government and the Scottish Travellers
Education Programme (STEP).

STEP, with funding from the Scottish Government, are piloting a new scheme
— elLearning and Traveller Education Scotland (eLATES) - making use of ICT
by issuing Gypsy/Traveller secondary school children with laptops to allow
further access to education beyond primary school. Only 4 local authorities in
Scotland have taken up this scheme — involvement from a greater number of
authorities could be a move forward.

If Gypsy/Traveller children are unable or unwilling to attend school then the
possibility of specialist teachers visiting sites should be considered.

12

Page 104



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Equalities

Issues raised during the discussion:

0

Lack of data regarding discrimination suffered by Gypsy/Travellers, which in
turn leads to a lack of support and resources. Tied into this is that
Gypsy/Travellers are unlikely to report instances of discrimination and
harassment.

Perceived lack of support when discrimination and harassment are reported.
Although policies are in place, it seems they are not fully implemented.

Discrepancies in the cost of renting council properties and the cost of renting
a pitch on Gypsy/Traveller sites.

Specific instances of discrimination such as bin men refusing to pick up
rubbish because of alleged fear of Gypsy/Travellers.

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

0

0

0

Doing what needs to be done to move beyond fear on both sides.
Encouraging a more balanced coverage of Gypsy/Travellers in the media.

A need to foster the political will to provide Gypsy/Traveller sites and therefore
off-set the tensions that arise from some unauthorised encampments.

Equalities training should be provided to relevant stakeholders, whether this
be mandatory or voluntary.

Unauthorised sites

Issues raised during the discussion:

0

g

The lack of official sites and appropriate stopping places.

The problem of fly-tipping and the difficulty of identifying perpetrators.
Specifically, the leaving behind of work-related materials and waste. There is
a perception that the number of Gypsy/Travellers coming to the area from
outside of Scotland has increased in number and that such groups may tend
to be worse in terms of fly-tipping. There was recognition that this was a
generalisation.

13

Page 105



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Some Gypsy/Travellers stay too long on temporary sites. An example was
given of one family/group staying on a site for 10 months.

Perception that police don’t always act when problems are brought to their
attention. However, this was refuted by at least one member of the group.

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

0

More well-run sites. This would take some pressure away from unauthorised
sites. There should be more planning groups working on setting up new sites
and it should be easier to access local authority and Scottish Government
grants for setting up sites.

Basic sites, with limited facilities provided in fields could be adequate for a
temporary site. Some Gypsy/Travellers would be quite happy to pay fees for
such sites.

There is a need for an increased political will to give planning permission to
Gypsy/Travellers for private sites.

Older/traditional sites which have been blocked off over the years for various
reasons should be re-opened. If such land is now in private ownership this
would obviously be problematic.

The task of local authorities could be helped by placing a statutory duty upon
the crown commission and forestry commission to provide land for sites. .

In terms of fly-tipping and removal of waste there is a need for dedicated staff
within local authorities to deal with such issues.

The need for building up a rapport between designated officials roles and
Gypsy/Traveller groups, though this is a long-term project.

There should be firmer ground rules for the use of sites, and these need to be
enforced.

In general the dialogue between Gypsy/Traveller communities and settled
communities could improve.

Sites and facilities

Issues raised during the discussion:

14

Page 106



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

There is very little authorised provision in terms of sites, with Clinterty being
the only one in Aberdeen.

A lack of understanding of Gypsy/Traveller culture and related things such as
group sizes and movements. There needs to be recognition that
Gypsy/Travellers tend to work and move around in family groups, and
therefore site provision needs to be large enough to accommodate this, but
small enough to be manageable.

Gypsy/Travellers in the group suggested Clinterty is small enough for
Gypsy/Travellers to develop a relationship with the site manager.

The community centre at Clinterty's site has been closed for some time —
having a negative impact on quality of life.

Some in the Gypsy/Traveller community often feel that there is no point in
applying for planning permission as they have a very low expectation of
getting it.

Lack of Gypsy/Traveller participation and representation. Gypsy/Travellers are
spoken about in their absence and no-one represents their views.

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

0

There should be more authorised sites. This would reduce unauthorised
encampments, which in turn would have a knock on effect in terms of
reducing costs and tensions created by the mess left behind by some
Gypsy/Travellers.

New sites should be of a manageable size, taking into account
Gypsy/Traveller culture and corresponding needs.

Good working relationships between site managers and Gypsy/Travellers on
new sites should be fostered.

There should be an improved process of applying for planning permission.
There should be more information available to explain the system so that
people have a better understanding.

The possibility of Gypsy/Travellers having representatives on local community
councils or community area forums.

Policing and Legislation

15

Page 107



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Issues raised during the discussion:

0

the relationship between unauthorised encampments and the lack of sites.
Other areas in Scotland have sites in place and appear not to have the same
problems as in Grampian.

Budget cuts - what priority do local authorities now place on getting sites up
and running?

There is a lack of clarity In terms of guidance and policy that relates to
Gypsy/Travellers. Much guidance and policy is ineffective without legislative
backup.

Cities and towns have grown, old policies are no longer fit for purpose
The blocking off of more sites.

Not meeting problem in terms of timetable.

Coverage in the local media is high profile and negative.

There is a lot of self-policing within the Gypsy/Traveller community, which is
often not seen by the general public.

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

0

Look into the experience of other local authority areas and see how better
relations are maintained and how sites are developed.

Liaison workers playing a key role in mediation between Gypsy/Travellers and
public authorities.

Suggestion that Gypsy./Travellers should attend Community Council
meetings.

Short-term sites

Issues raised during the discussion:

0

The difficulties of getting short-term sites established. This is something that
has been talked about and attempted for years but with no result at the end of
it. Some local authority areas have many sites.

16

Page 108



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

The need to look not only at short-stay sites, but a variety of sites.
Community needs to be clear about what is meant by short-stay sites.

Where should short-stay sites be placed: nearer larger villages, where much
land is already earmarked for housing developments; or more remotely,
where there is a lack of amenities and transport links?

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

71 Going through the Local Development Plan process. This can be used to

provide for sites rather than as basis for refusal (which has sometimes been
the case or the perception in the past). One way of achieving this may be to
link new short-stay sites into new housing development plans.

A review of the management of sites, and how travellers themselves can be
involved in such management.

Serious assessment of Scotland's policies is needed, as there have been lots
of changes to policy in England.

Economics and Employment

Issues raised during the discussion:

] misunderstanding and lack of knowledge about Gypsy/Traveller culture and

and employment is common. Local Authorities also seen as having problems
understanding random movement of Gypsy/Travellers and this can make it
difficult to put resources where most needed.

Finding work is much harder now, it seems there are more people chasing
fewer jobs.

In terms of employment issues there are some unscrupulous groups giving
other Gypsy/Travellers a bad name. Tensions between different ethnic
groups, rather than resolving these issues themselves the groups felt it was
better to move on and move out of the area.

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

[l Greater awareness and understanding of Gypsy/Traveller cultures.

17

Page 109



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

[ Increasing the possibilities of employability; therefore more education is
required. This would also involve tackling bullying problems in schools and
changing the attitude of some teachers

71 Overcoming lack of numeracy and literacy skills with tutors being available on
sites to help.

[0 Innovative education models could be tried out.

[J Re-training people with other skills.

Media
Issues raised during the discussion:
(1 Written media reports are usually inaccurate.

[l The Gypsy/Traveller community get blamed for things they’re not involved in
or the whole community get blamed for the actions of the minority of people.

1 Newspaper journalists often take photos without getting permission and this
causes discord.

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

1 Looking for a spokesperson to build up relationships with the press and get
more positive stories out there.

1 Reaching out to local newsletters and magazines.

(] Persevering to get stories out there. It will be an on-going project to affect the
media's reporting.

Health issues
Issues raised during the discussion:

[ Relatively poor health of some Gypsy/Travellers compared to the settled
community, for a variety of reasons.

1 Some Gypsy/Travellers, moving to different areas, not registering with GPs.
This is an important point of access into health services: offering help with a

18

Page 110



0

Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

lot of advice like stopping smoking, children's health, access to specialists
such as midwives, and providing access to prescriptions.

Relatively fewer male patients accessing health services — a problem in the
Gypsy/Traveller community and wider society.

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

0

Promoting health care and a healthy lifestyle for all, including
Gypsy/Travellers.

More permanent sites as this would make it easier for provision of care, and
better access to health services, midwifes etc.

Encouraging GP registration for all. Also encouraging the use of Hand-Held
Records to promote better information-sharing.

Males need to be encouraged to access health services more — effort needs
to be made to engage with this section of the population.

Cultural awareness

Issues raised during the discussion:

0

Main issues were cultural differences between different Gypsy/Traveller
groups — Scottish, English, Irish, all seem to be different. Tensions within
Gypsy/Traveller communities themselves — feelings of people coming to take
away the jobs of others.

Changing lifestyle and character of Gypsy/Traveller. There is a perceived
new generation of Gypsy/Travellers - the group felt that there is a difference
from previous generations of Gypsy/Travellers.

The question of who is actually a Gypsy/Traveller. Some felt it seems like
some people travel to the area to look for work and seem to pick up the name
Gypsy/Traveller so they can avoid prosecution for staying somewhere too
long or staying somewhere they shouldn't be.

Concern that there is prejudice against Gypsy/Traveller from settled
community, for example, not wanting any sites near them.

Feeling that some councils are slow to move waste from Gypsy/Traveller
sites/lencampments The waste then spreads around as it is left for too long

19

Page 111



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Suggestions made by the group for resolving issues and moving forward:

1 Need to get different Gypsy/Traveller communities together and facilitate
dialogue between them.

1 New sites should be agreed with Gypsy/Travellers, not without them.

(] Councils should be quicker in removing waste, therefore avoiding the
dispersal of rubbish that is left sitting to be picked up.

Closing Summary — George Dunwoody

20

Page 112



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Pledges

The main afternoon session was dedicated to personal/professional pledges.
Facilitators went round their table, asking participants to sign up to either a personal
or professional commitment to improve relations. In general the response and
participation of delegates was very positive. Here is a selection of the pledges that
were made:

To facilitate better communication between Gypsy/Traveller groups
and settled communities, and continue to look for short stay sites.

To do my best to speak to private landowners to give land for sites.

I will encourage all politicians to put pressure on the government to
pass legislation that requires the Crown Estate and Forestry
Commission to bring forward land for sites.

| will seek to encourage respect between Gypsy/Travellers and
settled communities, and to encourage Gypsy/Travellers to show
respect for the environment.

I will continue to be committed to issues of Gypsy/Travellers and
provide the necessary advice and support.

I will improve my knowledge of the situation with regard to
Gypsy/Travellers in the North East.

To undertake to speak to Traveller groups and understand their
culture and encourage Gypsy/Traveller membership of Community
Councils.

To do my best with quality and non-discrimination as the basis for
how | treat everyone | deal with.

To work harder to acquire transit sites.

To have a more proactive role in providing education for travellers.
Try to get at least one transit up and running this year in the county.
Work to meet accommodation needs of Gypsy/Travellers.

To try and get settled community and Travelling community to
understand each other better, possibly through Community Council
Forums.

21

Page 113



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

To address the concerns both of the Gypsy/Traveller and setted
communities and assist in seeking a long term resolution.

To ensure the response to any issues arising from the presence of
an unauthorised encampment is proportionate and takes a balanced
view which respects the rights of Gypsy/Travellers and the settled
communities.

To continue to work in collaboration with partners, both at a local and
national level, to achieve the aims of the interim strategy of Scottish
Government Working Party, and in an effort to develop sustainable,
long term resolutions to the issues arising from unauthorised
encampments.

Continue to design and deliver joint training and awareness
programmes.

Be involved in short-life projects looking at best practice in relation to
the management of unauthorised and short-term halting sites.

If I pull in to a lay-by | will make sure it is kept tidy, even if it is not me
who has left a mess.

To put forward the opinion of Gypsy/Traveller community, and try to
get a representative to put forward issues/feedback to other people.

I will collate feedback from people and provide a voice for
Gypsy/Travellers.

I will discuss the learning issues from today with colleagues,
particularly in literacies.

Continue to promote equality and diversity in connection with work
that effects both settled and travelling community.

Shared view: treat everyone fairly and continue on path to find a
resolution.

To support children who face bulling at schools.

To encourage the involvement of Gypsy/Travellers in community
planning matters.

To contact relevant people within Aberdeen City and Shire council
and pass the necessary messages on about difficulties with

22

Page 114



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

continuing secondary school, bullying, draw attention to guidance
and other supportive leaflets regarding the school.

Pass the message in the form of policy statement to Aberdeen City
Council.

To raise personal awareness and understanding of the culture and
way of life of Gypsy/Travellers.

Sharing knowledge with others, especially students at the secondary
school.

NHS pledges:

NHS Grampian will continue to provide healthcare to all of the people
of Grampian and the North East of Scotland. Heath care will
continue to be provided on a fair and equitable basis.

Specifically we will:

Continue to meet the health care needs of the Gypsy/Traveller
communities in a fair and equitable basis

Promote greater GP registration
Promote the Hand Held Record.

Continue the programme of Equality and Diversity training for NHS
Grampian Staff

Work jointly with Gypsy/Traveller communities and stakeholder and
Gypsy Traveller Liaison officer.

Grampian Police pledge:

To take forward the Interim Strategy for the North-East by
progressing all of their action points.

Some participants felt that this was not the right stage in the process for individuals
to be making pledges, and that instead it was the responsibility of local and national
authorities to be putting in place legislative frameworks for progress to be built upon.

23

Page 115



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Feedback and Evaluation

At the end of the event participants were asked to give their impressions of the day
to the facilitator. Participant's feedback was generally positive:

“Helpful and very worthwhile, start of a new beginning”
“The day was worthwhile in hearing what others had to say.”

“Already knowledgeable on issues but hopefully this can be a further catalyst for
change and improvement.”

'””

“A very useful start - “long journeys begin with small steps

“Constructive day to take matters forward and provide a platform from which to
build.”

“Positive opportunity to share and develop views in a candid and forward looking
context.”

“It was useful. It would be good to have a follow up — perhaps every 6 months to
make sure progress is made.”

“Ongoing dialogue is important.”

“I'm more informed — it was really interesting and thought-provoking.”
“Excellent to be able to get my views across.”

“I'm more positive now — was a good event and discussion.”

“Better insight into Gypsy/Travellers — positive awareness raising.”

“Interesting and valuable — a lot of work to be done.”

“Good opportunity to start knocking on the door that's been closed for so long.”
“Helpful — greater understanding of Gypsy/Traveller culture and needs.”

“It brought people together.”

“A day well spent — useful for understanding the bigger picture.”

Some participants specifically felt the benefits of the involvement of members of the
Gypsy/Traveller community:

24

Page 116



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

“Excellent, particularly great to have many Gypsy/Travellers families. Good to make
contacts.”

“Helpful, informative, was good to meet some of the Gypsy/Traveller families”

“Very worthwhile event. Valuable hearing views and exchanging views of the issues
regarding Gypsy/Travellers. Of particular value was having members of the
Travelling community present. Would have been advantageous to have had a
contribution to the discussion from them.”

“‘Interesting to meet with Gypsy/Travellers, particularly younger travellers views.
However, local elections may impact on ability to move forward.”

There was some negative feedback received, though on the whole this was
constructive:

“How will pledges be taken forward?”
“Should have had more members of the settled communities; very useful.”
“Of limited benefit for me as many of the issues have previously been discussed”

“Useful in hearing Gypsy/Traveller perspective. However, there were no pointers in
how things will move forward — there needs to be a political solution.”

“‘Worthwhile, reaffirming key focus: halting sites. However, lack of executive level
presence from Local Authorities, and lack of attendance form local community
councils noted and would have wanted them here as part of debate to listen and
contribute.”

“My views haven't changed since | came this morning, | still feel the same way
(unfortunately it is negative). Informative but no positive vibes.”

“Difficult to say. There was a lack of councillors and government officials.”

“Enlightening about culture. | would have liked to hear what is to be done — there
should have been information on that. Where is info going and where do we go from
here?”

“Good: the initial idea of wanting to help; the day was well-organised; | would like to
have seen more Gypsy/Travellers from different sites.”

“Disappointed that Aberdeen City representatives failed to attend. | will get active
and will progress this as soon as possible”

25

Page 117



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

“‘Would be good to see 6 months from now if any positive outcome from this event is
taking place.”

Some feedback was also received after the event. Again, this was on the whole
positive, with members of Grampian Police, Local Authorities and the Scottish
Government congratulating GREC on organising a successful event. Again
questions of future plans and progress were raised.

Over the course of planning the event and the experience on the day itself it became
clear that to limit the issue to improving relations between the settled community and
Gypsy/Travellers, was reductive. It is clear that there are many divisions and
tensions within both communities, and it will be crucial to bridge many of these if
significant progress is to be made. On reflection it would have beneficial to try and
address both inter- and intra- based tensions during the dialogue day.

26

Page 118



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Moving Forward

There were ten topics covered during the Dialogue Day. How can the issues and
solutions raised under these topics be taken forward? Many of these issues have
already been incorporated into such documents as the Grampian Inter-agency
Action Plan (based on the recommendations of the Craigforth report) and the
Aberdeen & Aberdeenshire Gypsy/Traveller Issues Working Party Strategy. The
Dialogue Day can be seen in terms of re-focussing energies on the content of such
strategies and action plans and allowing for the type of multiple stakeholder dialogue
that has often been missing from previous attempts to address the relevant issues.
Below is a summary of how each topic that was discussed on the day fits into the
context of previous reports, strategies and action plans, and how things can now be
taken forward as part of a wider focus on improving relations in the North-East.

Health, Education and Equalities

There has been much research done across the UK into education provision and
Gypsy/Traveller communities. Much of the research focuses on barriers to effective
education provision, such as bullying, lack of cultural awareness, distrust between
Gypsy/Travellers and Local Authorities, interrupted learning and an unwillingness to
try innovative solutions. The Scottish Traveller Education Programme (STEP) is the
main organisation that deals with these issues in Scotland. Amongst other things
they have worked to explored ways in which the problems of interrupted learning can
be overcome. More joined-up working can be done between Local Authorities,
STEP and Gypsy/Travellers in the area to develop suitable education provision that
meets the needs of Gypsy/Travellers.

Similarly, many barriers exist for Gypsy/Travellers accessing health services.
Although there is a lack of reliable data that covers the whole of Scotland, there are
smaller studies and substantial studies south of the border that highlight the
shocking disparities between the health inequalities that exist between
Gypsy/Travellers and members of the settled community. Some of factors that
impact on the health of some Gypsy/Travellers and the ability of some to access
services are: inadequate accommodation; lack of access to running water; insecurity
and harassment; problems with follow-up treatment; lack of continuity of care;
difficulties registering with a doctor; lack of postal address; and intolerant attitudes of
health staff and receptionists (National Resource Centre for Ethnic Minority Health
2007; The University of Sheffield 2004).

The Craigforth Action Plan calls for greater engagement between Gypsy/Travellers
and NHS services, including the proper implementation of barriers to access such as
Handheld Health Records (Craigforth 2009: 113). As can be seen from the pledges

27

Page 119



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

made by the NHS staff present at the Dialogue Day there seems to be a substantial
commitment to help diminish the gaps in inequalities seen in this area. It is hoped
that increased working between relevant staff in all three local authorities, along with
a re-launch of the Handheld Health Record scheme, currently in progress, will help
improve access to health services.

Equality issues lie at the heart of education and health provision. Equalities also
have a wider dimension in terms of Gypsy/Traveller issues. English and Irish
Gypsies have already been recognised in law as distinct racial groups; in 2001 the
Equal Opportunities Committee recommended (the recommendation was accepted
by the Scottish Executive) that Gypsy/Travellers (including Scottish Travellers) be
recognised as a separate ethnic minority group until case law confirms this.
Therefore it follows that the sections of the Equality Act 2010 relating to race and
ethnic minorities apply to Gypsy/Travellers. More work can be done, perhaps in the
form of training, in order to further understand the implications of this for
Gypsy/Travellers and service providers such as Local Authorities.

Another aspect of equality that is sometimes raised by members of the settled
community, is a perception that Gypsy/Travellers get special treatment because of
who they are. In order to improve relations it is important that, in moving forward,
both the voices of the settled and Gypsy/Traveller communities are listened to, and
that relevant agencies make it clear that although in certain circumstances extra
efforts may be necessary to ensure that Gypsy/Travellers have equal access to
services like health and education, such action is justified because of the ongoing
barriers faced by Gypsy/Travellers. Such improvements in relations rely on
improved communication between communities. The Interim Strategy Action Plan
calls for “improved liaison and communication” with both local settled communities
and visiting Gypsy/Travellers (Outcome A1 and A2) (Scottish Government 2011: 4).

Unauthorised Encampments

The issue of unauthorised encampments is perhaps one of the most sensitive in
terms of relations between Gypsy/Travellers and the settled community. This can be
seen in the coverage of Gypsy/Traveller issues in the local press which focusses
almost solely on encampments, and the prominence that the issue has in documents
like the Interim Strategy. The Strategy's Action Plan calls for “clear and consistent
application of procedures relating to Unauthorised Encampments” (Outcome D1). It
is hoped that through such means as improved communications and clear
procedures, tensions between communities can be eased while longer-term
solutions are developed and put in place.

28

Page 120



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Although unauthorised encampments were widely discussed at the Dialogue Day, it
is important to note the wide range of other topics that were covered: evidence that
the issue of unauthorised encampments are part of a much bigger, more complex
picture. For example, when considering the difficulties in accessing health and
education two important factors are the lack of official sites and the unauthorised
encampments that this leads to.

Policing and Legislation

Many of the issues regarding policing and legislation relate to misunderstandings
over the powers of the police and when various legislation is applicable. Grampian
Police have recently published an updated policy document, Gypsy/Travellers
Unauthorised Encampments Force Procedure. This new policy is available at
.................... As mentioned above Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire will publish
new “Managing Unauthorised Encampments” policies in 2011 and these will include
explanations of the various relevant legislation. The publication and circulation of
these documents will diminish tensions that have been caused by
misunderstandings and lack of clarity in the past.

Short-Stay Sites, Sites and Facilities

One of the themes to arise throughout the Dialogue Day was the lack of site
provision in the North-East. There is a fairly widespread consensus that in order for
relations to improve significantly and sustainably some form of increased site
provision will be necessary. This has formed substantial parts of the Interim Strategy
and Craigforth action plan. For example Outcome 2 of the Craigforth action plan
states that “Gypsies/Travellers normally resident in Grampian and
Gypsies/Travellers visiting the area have accommodation that meets their needs,
culture and lifestyle” (Craigforth 2009: 109). Under this outcome Local Authorities
are expected to increase provision in the North East by 35 pitches — 12 in
Aberdeenshire, 23 in Moray and a reallocation of pitches in Aberdeen to provide for
a short stay site (Ibid: 109). Under a similar outcome heading the Interim Strategy
calls for continued efforts to provide more sites through Local Development Plans
(LDPs) and for an additional “transit” site to be provided at Clinterty (Scottish
Government 2011: 6).

Work on increased site provision is ongoing through Local Development Plans
(LDP). Additionally, money has been allocated by the Scottish Government for
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire to develop short-stay sites in the interim period

29

Page 121



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

before LDP sites come to fruition. This additional money and focus (provided by the
Housing Minister's Working Group) should lead to the provision of a short-stay site in
Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire by the end of 2011.

Media

There was general agreement within the Media discussion group, and other groups,
that media coverage of issues relating to Gypsy/Travellers in the North-East was
almost always negative and therefore a barrier to improving relations. The Craigforth
Action Plan mentions working together to counter negative media coverage and for
greater partnership work in responses to the media on issues pertaining to
unauthorised encampments (Craigforth 2009b: 115). The Interim Strategy Action
Plan calls for an “Effective Media Strategy” (Outcome AG), calling for joint working
between local authorities and the police when dealing with media, and also for
greater consideration to be given to the “impact of negative language, stereotypes
and press reporting with a view to promoting more positive images and messages”
(Scottish Government 2011: 5).

More balanced media reporting is a difficult issue to tackle; as long as output is kept
within the boundaries of what is legal (i.e. it does not amount to incitement to racial
hatred), then it is the prerogative of the media as to what is broadcast or printed. It
may be down to members of the Gypsy/Traveller community to increasingly engage
with local media outlets in order to produce the reporting of more positive stories.

Cultural Awareness, Economics and Employment

However, a lack of cultural awareness seems to be at the root of many tensions and
misconceptions between Gypsy/Travellers and the settled community. The
Craigforth Action Plan calls for “Increased understanding of the needs, culture and
lifestyle of Gypsies/Travellers amongst public sector employees” (Craigforth 2009:
118). One of the desired outcomes of the day was to improve awareness of the
needs of the respective communities. It felt that this was successfully achieved
through the discussion in this group in particular, and more generally in the
discussions throughout the day. Outcome A5 of the Interim Strategy also calls for
“Improved understanding of Gypsy/Traveller culture and a reduction in prejudice”
through better engagement with various groups such as schools, businesses and
local communities (Scottish Government 2011: 5). It is hoped that through increased
use of an inclusive format such as the Dialogue Day with discussion between all
stakeholders, relations can be improved.

General themes to come out of the day

30

Page 122



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

Like the Dialogue Day, the Interim Strategy also focuses on more general aspects of
improving relations. This can be seen in outcomes such as “Improved liaison and
communication with local and settled communities”, “Improved liaison and
communication with visiting Gypsy/Travellers” and “Improved use of mediation”
(Scottish Government 2011: 3-4). To achieve these outcomes the report
recommends such actions as reviewing engagement arrangements in such settings
as community councils, a suggestion that came up in a numerous groups throughout
the day, and identifying representatives from both the settled and Gypsy/Traveller
communities to attend Grampian's Inter-agency group (Ibid: 3). Due to contacts
made at the Dialogue Day, moves have already been made to seek such forms of
representation. In this way it is hoped that many more meetings in the future take a
similar approach to the dialogue, with as many key stakeholders involved in the

process as is possible and practical.

The events of 2010 and early 2011 have made it clear that there must be an
improvement in relations between Gypsy/Travellers and the settled community in the
North-East of Scotland. The Dialogue Day, along with the publication of the Interim
Strategy on improving relations in the area, marked the beginning of a fresh and
energised attempt to tackle issues that have been on-going for some time. Itis
hoped that a multi-stake holder approach based on the foundations of dialogue and
understanding the needs of others can provide a solid foundation for making future
progress and entrenching good relations in Grampian. As one participant put it:
“Long journeys begin with small steps”.

31

Page 123



Building Consensus — A Constructive Way Forward

References

Craigforth (2009a). 'Accommodation Needs Assessment of Gypsies/Travellers in
Grampian, 2008-2009, Executive Summary'. Stirling: Craigforth.

Craigforth (2009b). 'Accommodation Needs Assessment of Gypsies/Travellers in
Grampian, 2008-2009. Stirling: Craigforth.

Equal Opportunities Committee (2005). Equal Opportunities Committee Report: 5th
Report, 2005 (Session 2). Available online at
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/business/committees/equal/reports-05/eor05-
05.htm

Equality and Human Rights Commission (Scotland) (2010). Gypsy Travellers in
Scotland: A resource for the media.

Grampian Joint Police Board (2010). 'Minute of [September 10", 2010] Meeting of
Grampian Joint Police Board'

National Resource Centre for Ethnic Minority Health (2007). Voices from the North:
Exploratory Needs Assessment of Gypsy/Traveller Communities in the North of
Scotland.

Public Petitions Committee (Scottish Parliament) (2010). 'Public Petitions Committee
Minutes of Proceedings', available online at
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/s3/committees/petitions/mop-10/pumop10-
1026.htm

Scottish Executive (2001). 'Equal Opportunities Committee,1st Report 2001, Inquiry
into Gypsy Travellers and Public Sector Policies, Volume 1'.

Scottish Executive (2004). 'Guidelines For Managing Unauthorised Camping By
Gypsies/Travellers In Scotland'.

Scottish Government (2011). 'Good Relations between Settled Communities and
Gypsies/Travellers: A Strategy prepared by the Aberdeen & Aberdeenshire
Gypsy/Traveller Issues Working Party'.

The University of Sheffield (2004). The Health Status of Gypsies & Travellers in
England.

32

Page 124



Agenda ltem 15

3

GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD

COMMITTEE: GRAMPIAN JOINT POLICE BOARD
DATE: 20™ MAY 2011
TITLE OF REPORT: GRAMPIAN INDEPENDENT CUSTODY VISITING

SCHEME - UPDATE REPORT

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to provide an update to Board Members with
respect to the introduction of an Independent Custody Visiting Scheme in
Grampian. Additionally, the report invites Members to consider appropriate
travel expenses rates for Scheme Volunteers.

2. RECOMMENDATION(S)
It is recommended that the Board:
i) Approve the Volunteer Expenses Scheme detailed within the report
ii) Note the update provided.

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The proposed new expenses will have some impact on the overall Custody
Visiting Scheme budget. The Scheme Administrator will monitor the spend
and manage the visit rota to ensure that planned activity can be progressed
within budget.

4, SERVICE & COMMUNITY IMPACT

None

5. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

None

6. REPORT
6.1 Seven volunteers were formally appointed as Independent Custody

Visitors for Grampian Joint Police Board with effect from 1 April 2011.
All volunteers have indicated their acceptance of this appointment and

Page 125



the majority have now completed all necessary steps to be issued with
a Visitor ID Badge.

6.2 A visit rota, providing for two visits per month to the three Custody
Facilities presently being covered is now in place. A verbal update on
progress of visits will be provided to the Board.

6.3 A schedule of dates for Volunteer Development Sessions has been
provisionally set. The first meeting for all volunteers will take place in
Mid June 2011 and arrangements for this, including facilities to enable
attendance via video conference are being finalised.

6.4 The Scheme is presently making use of printed report forms which
were prepared some time ago. An update of these forms is currently
being arranged in order to reflect best practice guidance and ensure
that all relevant information in respect of visits conducted is recorded.

6.5 A recruitment drive for new volunteers will be run in August —
September 2011. Any Board Members who can assist with the
identification of potential volunteers are asked to advise the Policy &
Advice Officer.

6.6 In progressing the appointment of volunteers, it has been noted that
current expenses levels do not adequately reimburse the actual cost of
mileage, nor do the current levels compare with the rates offered by the
majority of other Custody Visiting Schemes in Scotland or with other
similar voluntary roles such as the Children’s Panel.

6.7 To this end, it is proposed that the Board agree to adopt the Inland
Revenue Mileage Rate as the rate available to volunteers. This rate is
currently 45pence per mile. All other expenses, such a public transport
use, are reimbursed at cost based on the production of receipts.

7. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS
Fiona Smith, Police & Advice Officer

E-mail: fismith@aberdeencity.gov.uk
Telephone: 01224 522516

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

Karen M Donnelly
Deﬁute Clerk
12" May 2011

2
Page 126



Agenda ltem 17

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 127



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 1 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



	Agenda
	2 Minute of Board Meeting - 4th March 2011
	3 Minute of Special Board Meeting - 18th March 2011
	5 Minute of Grampian Joint Police Board Complaints Sub Committee Meeting of 13th December 2010 - For Information
	6 Minute of Grampian Joint Police Board Stewardship Sub Committee Meeting of 13th December 2010 - For Information
	7 Grampian Joint Police Board - Updated Business Statement
	8 Revenue Budget Monitoring Report - 30th April 2011 - Report from the Chief Constable and the Treasurer
	9 Capital Monitoring - 30th April 2011 - Report from the Chief Constable and the Treasurer
	10 Grampian Police and Grampian Joint Police Board - BV2 Audit & Inspection Report - Joint Improvement Plan - Report from the Chief Constable and the Depute Clerk
	BV2 Action Plan Appendix One
	BV2 Action Plan Appendix Two

	11 Reorganisation of Estate in Aberdeen to support Local Policing Teams (LPTs) - Report from the Chief Constable
	12 Police Property Disposals - Report from the Chief Constable
	13 Force Contracts and Sponsorship - Report from the Chief Constable
	14 Grampian Gypsy / Travellers Summit - Summit Report - Report from the Depute Clerk
	Travellers Summit Appendix A

	15 Independent Custody Visiting Scheme - Update Report - Report from the Depute Clerk
	17 Chief Officer Performance Development Reviews - Report from the Depute Clerk
	PDR Chief Constable 20_05_11


